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CHAIRMAN STATEMENT
ERBE

A YEAR IN REVIEW

“Change is the only constant in life”.

Heraclitus, the pre-Socractic Greek philosopher, once said that

FEEE
A & A% 1 K B &
Year 2018 marks many changes for UMP Healthcare Group, with

FHI A
(Heraclitus) & = i&
=4

an intense focus on expanding our healthcare service offerings,
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2018F R H
increasing our investments in our people, exploring innovative
collaborations with government entities and extending our
elaborate on each of these in turn.

geographical reach throughout key cities in China. We shall

BAE
While we have changed our business development approach, we

BEREZ T EmHE
LHEBRENERRMARENERFREREE
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have also ensured we have not changed our core philosophy of

BMARNDERBRANER - ZHEAIFHH
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delivering affordable, accessible, convenient and quality healthcare

services to all of our customers. Our focus on such philosophy has
gained the trust of our customers, patients and partners, and has
helped us to generate good financial results for FY2018, achieving
a record high revenue of HK$585.6 million and processing nearly

B 1T
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LDESTE  SEPRHEMRE  5E &4
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REENBERRERY -BREHE BTN
1.5 million patient visits. Our business has continued to be very

cash generative, delivering an adjusted EBITDA of HK$64.8 million
(FY2017 EBITDA: HK$55.7 million). With such resilient financial

BEF -BEREBHONEE
BYHRER
Acquisitions

¥ WAERSSS.6ABELT S 0 W5
results, the Board has recommended, subject to shareholders’

B N T AFTR201 851 BR 4F [ S+ X B 2 B 9 B 75
approval, a final dividend of HK2.35 cents per share, taking our full
dividend: HK2.7 cents per share).

MISBEENRD AR - RANEBFET K
year dividend pay out to HK2.9 cents per share (FY2017 full year

KTAFEEBITDAZEE|64.8F B8
7T (201 7B L EEFEEBITDA : 55.7 A& TT) °
ERBREMNFBEE B2 HREARY

In order to provide comprehensive services to our customers, we
have, through different collaboration models, been active in making

BB &hR2 3578 Ml (HEZA R BRERBEAE 1R 5 AT
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strategic acquisitions to strengthen our service offerings. We have

acquired a majority interest in a reputable imaging centre in Central,
further expanding our capacity to deliver high quality imaging

services to our customers. In addition, we have also acquired a

AERA B E T RB IS - AR
FHEEY

PR EH R - RPAMETHR-HBER
=T R
majority interest in the largest physiotherapy group in terms of

RATFREZ2TURY  RABBTRD
service locations in Hong Kong in July 2018, thereby expanding our

physiotherapy service locations to cover all key regions of Hong

CEINOES ¢ T
BMAECRHEEESY
ESh -
service offerings.
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Kong. We have revamped our central laboratory services with new
facilities and product offerings to better serve our network doctors,

E—HRS
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and we are currently also in discussion to acquire a majority interest

in a leading dermatology service group to expand our dermatology

BAZEME - KPR R
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All of these acquisitions were conducted in the spirit of long term
partnerships, with our partners choosing to continue to operate
and grow their businesses together with us. We believe UMP is
highly regarded as a good platform to partner with, whereby our
partners would gain access through us to a wide range of corporate
customers, customers from China, and more importantly, benefiting
from our management expertise to help them grow their business
further. The joining of our partners to our platform further reinforce
our leading position and also propel our virtuous circle, where our
customers would benefit from a wider suite of service offering, and
hence more likely to continue to do further business with us. All
of these acquisitions and partnerships are expected to contribute

meaningfully to our financial performance in the future years.

In China, we have been laser focus on the development of our
medical team. Our goal is “To become the leading affordable
primary care provider in Greater China, and through such pursuit,
give our members access to their own trusted family doctor”.

The development of private healthcare in China is a slow and
long progress, requiring time and significant capital investment in
both the development of medical staff and in physical healthcare
New World
Development, NWS and CTFE, UMP clinic network now covers 5

facilities. Together with our strategic partners,
locations in Beijing, 3 locations in Shanghai, 1 in Guangzhou and 3
in Shenzhen, making us one of the largest private healthcare clinic
network operator in terms of geographical spread within China and
likely the only operator that has covered the 4 Tier 1 cities. We are
also in the process of planning to open up further service locations
in the Greater Bay Area.

Our GOLD training programme

We have made significant investment in our medical staff in 2018.
We are now in our 2nd year of our internally developed General
Practice Oriented Learning and Development training programme
(the GOLD Programme — www.goldgptraining.com). The 52 weeks
GOLD programme was founded by our Chief Training Officer,
Dr. Kenny Kung, and represents our dedication and commitment
to develop our doctors to become a trusted family doctor to their
patients. All of our doctors who deliver outpatient care in our clinics

are required to go through this GOLD Programme.

20185 3R
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In addition to delivering training to our internal medical staff, the
GOLD Programme has also garnered the trust and recognition
of regional government in China. In February 2018, the Pan Yu
district government in Guangzhou City has mandated UMP to also
deliver the GOLD programme to their family doctors in China. The
programme is currently still on-going and has received much praise
for its practicableness in demonstrating to Chinese family doctors

international family medicine concepts.

WONCA Practice Accreditation

To further show to our commitment to delivering quality primary
care, we have also decided to enrol our clinics in Beijing and
Shanghai for the WONCA Practice Accreditation. The World
Organization of Family Doctors (WONCA) is a not-for-profit
organization and was founded in 1972 by member organizations
in 18 countries. WONCA now has 118 Member Organizations
in 131 countries and territories with membership of about
500,000 family doctors and more than 90 per cent of the world’s
population. This includes eight organizations in collaborative
relations with WONCA. There are some 21 members in the
Academic membership category, which consists of Academic
Departments of Family Medicine. The WONCA executive team
visited the UMP clinics in Beijing and Shanghai, and granted its
accreditation approval to all of the clinics visited. The related news
can be found on WONCA'’s website (https:// www.wonca.net/News/
FromtheCEOsDeskWONCAStandardsandAccreditation.aspx).

OUTLOOK

In our previous results announcement and in our annual reports,
we have focused our discussion on the development of our clinic
network and partnerships with different corporations and partners.
This year, we would like to focus on our outlook for the Greater Bay

Area.

We are living in exciting times for Southern China. Nowhere is this
seen more clearly than in the ambitious plans being drawn up for
the Greater Bay Area initiative, and its goal of building a world-class
city cluster across the Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macau region. By
2030, the region is expected to play a leading role in advanced

manufacturing, innovation, shipping, trade and finance.
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The proposed initiative is a testament to the region’s economic
development and significance. Last year, the combined GDP of the
11 cities in the area reached US$1.4 trillion, or 12 percent of the
national PRC economy, even though it is home to only 5 percent of

the country’s population.

Within the Greater Bay Area, Hong Kong is generally viewed as the
international financial and trade centre, connecting all the activities
in the Greater Bay Area with the capital and trade support that Hong

Kong is well known for.

What the regional governments have further identified as a growing
industry that Hong Kong can contribute significant to the region
is healthcare. While there is expected to be significant investment
in the region across many industries, the respective regional
governments also realise that healthcare and education are the two
areas in which they need significantly more input from the private
sectors to provide innovative ideas and solutions.

Within the healthcare sector, primary care is the most urgent
issue all the regional governments are trying to tackle. Due to
China’s specialists training mindset, most Chinese patients seeking
healthcare services are used to seeking specialist services in a
hospital setting rather than in a primary care clinic setting. This
has caused much problems for regional governments, where all
patients would go to hospitals to seek the most basic care, leading to
healthcare expenses rising at an unprecedented rate.

With a history of more than 28 years in co-ordinating affordable
primary care services in Hong Kong, UMP has been at the forefront
of private sector primary care development in the Greater Bay Area.
Since our entry to the China market, we have placed great emphasis
on the importance of family doctor training. We believe that without
well trained family doctors, it will be very difficult for both the
government and the private sector to develop private healthcare and

also private healthcare insurance

20185 3R
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UMP was most honoured to have been invited by the Hong Kong
government to be one of the key speakers at the opening ceremony
for the 100-member delegation to Guangzhou. At such event, UMP
shared its experience and insights in its clinic operations in China,
its core GOLD training programme and its commitment to deliver
quality primary healthcare services. Following such delegation,
we have received significant interests from different regional
governments in the Greater Bay Area seeking collaboration with
UMP to explore family doctor training, as well as development of
Public-Private-Partnership (“PPP”) for the roll out of primary care

services in government clinics.

We believe that a PPP model of working with the respective
regional governments will present a great growth opportunity for
UMP, whereby we will be able to expand our influence through the
training of family doctors, expand our clinic network geographical
reach through collaboration with government clinics, and
subsequently, also developing, together with insurance companies,
new, innovative and affordable PPP insurance products to facilitate
the development of private healthcare insurance in China.

This is an ambitious goal, but we believe that all ambitious goal
start from having a right vision and mission. Our mission of giving
our members their own trusted family doctor is in line with our
philosophy, and most importantly, also in line with the Chinese
government’s goal of developing family doctors and community
based care. We are confident we are walking the right path, and we

thank all our shareholders for your continue support on our mission.

Last but not least, on behalf of the Board, | would like to extend my
heartfelt thanks to the management, our employees and partners for
their contributions to the development of the Group as well as to
shareholders for their continued support to the Company. We are
positive and confident about the future, and we are working hard

with our partners to build it.

Sun Yiu Kwong
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

8 UMP HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

OUR BUSINESS

UMP’s business scope consists of the following business lines:

Hong Kong & Macau Corporate Healthcare Solution
Services

UMP provides corporate healthcare solutions through the
design and administration of tailored healthcare benefits
plans for its Contract Customers. UMP aims to provide
convenient, reliable, coordinated, comprehensive and
affordable healthcare services through the well-established and
multi-specialties UMP Network. As at 30 June 2018, the UMP
Network comprises more than 600 points of services located

across Hong Kong and Macau.

The Group’s Contract Customers comprise (i) insurance
companies, which enter into contracts with the Group for
healthcare services for their policyholders or employees
of their policyholders and (ii) corporations, which enter
into contracts with the Group for healthcare services for
their employees and/or their dependants. When designing
healthcare benefits plans, the Group collaborates closely with
the Contract Customers and designs and refines corporate
healthcare benefits plans, with each plan tailored to each
customer’s needs based on factors such as industry or
occupational health-related concerns, scope of healthcare
benefits desired, employee demographic as well as their
budget.

Hong Kong & Macau Clinical Healthcare Services

UMP provides medical, dental and auxiliary services to
Self-paid Patients. For medical services, UMP provides (i)
general practice services, which serves as the first point of
contact for the patients and (ii) specialist services covering
more than 18 different specialties. For dental services, UMP
provides both primary dental care and secondary dental care
such as dental implants. For auxiliary services, UMP provides
services such as medical imaging and laboratory services,

physiotherapy and vision care.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEENwR DT

10

PRC Healthcare Business

Our PRC Healthcare Business currently consists of (i) health
check-up business, (ii) corporate healthcare solutions
business, and (iii) within the clinics we own and operate,
revenue from selected outpatient services such as family
medicine and paediatric services. As our corporate healthcare
solutions business is still at a development stage, the revenue
and operating profit for this business segment is primarily
contributed by our health check-up business. Our current
focus is on the development of our PRC Healthcare Business
in Beijing, Shanghai, Guangzhou and Shenzhen together with
our strategic partners, like HAML and other local reputable

healthcare partners.

Hong Kong & Macau Corporate Healthcare Solution
Services

Revenue for this business line has increased 11.3% from
HK$311.7 million to HK$346.9 million (before intersegment
elimination) due to a general increase in patient visits
and average spending per visit, while our operating profit
(operating profit before tax and before non-recurring items)
has increased approximately 12.7% from HK$31.7 million
to HK$35.7 million. Our results show that we are able to
generate increase in revenue through the marketing to and
the delivering of a comprehensive suite of services to our

corporate customers, insurance companies and patients.

Hong Kong & Macau Clinical Healthcare Services

Revenue for this business line has increased 14.6% from
HK$234.6 million to HK$268.9 million (before intersegment
elimination) due to a general increase in patient visits
and average spending per visit, while our operating profit
(operating profit before tax and before non-recurring items) has
increased 53.3% from HK$17.0 million to HK$26.0 million.
The increase in revenue and operating profit is in part due
to the previously expanded specialist services and auxiliary
services have been ramped up and also the contribution from

the newly acquired auxiliary service centres during FY2018.

UMP HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

PRC Healthcare Business

Revenue for this business line has increased 26.9% from
HK$44.6 million to HK$56.6 million (before intersegment
elimination) primarily due to the increase in the number of
health check-ups, while our operating loss (operating loss
before tax and before non-recurring items) has decreased
67.5% from HK$19.1 million to HK$6.2 million. The decrease
in operating loss was primarily attributable to the reduced
operating losses of the four PRC clinics in Beijing and Shanghai
which were disposed of to HAML following the Disposal in
March 2017.

The following table sets out the revenue and operating profit

for our business lines for FY2018 and FY2017 for comparison:

Revenue by business lines

BEEFWE DM

FEREER

REBEBEHOBA B4 68EET
#IN26.9%ZE56.6 5 & 7% T (9 5K
SHAT) - HEEHAN RN BRIREIY
e RPN E S BB (R AT &R IE
KEHIEBALEEE) HI91B5ES
O 67.5%%E6. 2B 8B o (K& EIE
WL EBERARMRIE R X /YR
FEZH(ER2017F3 A #ETHESE
BEETEREETRE) MEEEBER

9\0

T&RE IR FIR20188 B E E K2017
B IR AF S BN T AR MR R 468 8 1) DA
L #R

BREXRZREIHEA

Year ended 30 June

HZE6H30HLFE Increase/
2018 2017 (decrease)
20184 20174 380,/ CR2)
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT THET
Hong Kong & Macau Corporate ERRMLEER
Healthcare Solution Services REEBRR T RERT 346,894 311,668 11.3%
Hong Kong & Macau Clinical BB RRFIERIK B E
Healthcare Services R 2 AR 75 268,870 234,581 14.6%
PRC Healthcare Business B IR {2 26 7% 56,567 44,589 26.9%
Total before elimination of EKBRBHEE
inter-business lines sales KA EE 672,331 590,838 13.8%
Reconciliation: SBED -
Elimination of inter-business 375 4R [ 85 B 4R 8
lines sales (86,701) (76,815)
TOTAL EEr 585,630 514,023 13.9%
BEBBEEARAR

20185 3R
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Operating profit by business lines

BERBGRE T NWEERE

Year ended 30 June

BZ6A30BLEE Increase/
2018 2017 (decrease)
2018% 20174 30,/ CR4)
HK$’000 HK$’000
THT TETT
Hong Kong & Macau Corporate BRI EEERE
Healthcare Solution Services fif R T BRI 35,693 31,673 12.7%
Operating profit margin REM B X 10.3% 10.2%
Hong Kong & Macau Clinical BB RRPIERIK B&E
Healthcare Services 1R R 7% 26,028 16,977 53.3%
Operating profit margin REMB =X 9.7% 7.2%
PRC Healthcare Business B R R 3 1S (6,189) (19,066) (67.5)%
Operating profit margin 1R & (10.9)% (42.8)%

(1)

Operating profit by business lines represent operating
profit before tax for each business line and excluding

non-recurring items.

Operating losses for PRC Healthcare Business for FY2018
included operating profit for PRC Health Check-up
Business and operating losses for PRC Corporate
Healthcare Solution Business in Shanghai and Beijing
while the operating losses for PRC Healthcare Business
for FY2017 included operating profit for PRC Health
Check-up Business, operating losses for PRC Corporate
Healthcare Solution Business in Shanghai, operating
losses for PRC Clinical Healthcare Business in Shanghai
and the share of losses of joint ventures from the joint
ventures with CR Phoenix Healthcare Group in Beijing.
The losses primarily represent costs including rental

expenses, management and administration staff costs.

UMP HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED

(1)

REBREASNKEER BASE
ERABRBATEERE  TEEIE
KEMIAR -

PEREEBR2018 BFEEH
KEEERRTEEBREBNL
EEBERKRE LERIERHPE
TEBBEREBRFREBHL
EEE - mPBEREEBR2017
BBEFENKEBEREPBE
REBHLECETE - ka LFHFR
BrEBRREMBAFTREBLDH
KEEE - RE LSNP RBRRE
BREEGHEEBEBEKREHE
EHEERBEESBENILERNEGE
NAINELEEAREE - BHE
BXEARERASAY  BERT
BB ITHRAZERA -
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEWS
FY2018 compared to FY2017

Revenue

During FY2018, we primarily generated revenue from (i) the
provision of corporate healthcare solutions to Contract Customers
in Hong Kong and Macau, (ii) the provision of clinical healthcare
services to Self-paid Patients in Hong Kong and Macau and (iii)
the PRC Healthcare Business, which represents revenue generated
from the provision of medical examinations for local residents
and corporate employees in the PRC, revenue generated from the
provision of corporate healthcare solutions to Contract Customers in
the PRC and within the clinics we own and operate, revenue from
selected outpatient services such as family medicine and paediatric

services.

Total consolidated revenue increased by 13.9% from HK$514.0
million in FY2017 to HK$585.6 million in FY2018, primarily due
to (i) an increase in revenue from HK$469.4 million to HK$529.0
million from the provision of corporate healthcare solution services
to Contract Customers and provision of clinical healthcare services
to Self-paid Patients in Hong Kong and Macau, and (ii) an increase
in revenue from HK$44.6 million to HK$56.6 million from the PRC
Healthcare Business.

Provision of corporate healthcare solution services to Contract
Customers in Hong Kong and Macau

Revenue from the provision of corporate healthcare solution services
to Contract Customers in Hong Kong and Macau increased 11.0%
from HK$310.5 million in FY2017 to HK$344.6 million in FY2018.

J Medical.
Services to Contract Customers increased by 10.8% from
HK$295.6 million for FY2017 to HK$327.6 million for FY2018,

primarily due to an increase in the average price per patient

Revenue generated from the provision of Medical

visit in FY2018 as well as the increase in the number of visits
from the patients seeking Medical Services.

20185 3R

BEEFWE DM

Bt %% [B B8
201887 B 5 JE EI201 78] B F [E H B

LGN

R2018EFE - HFINBAZTEELEA®)
Eé%i%&@?ﬂl‘ﬂé%@%ﬁﬁ@iﬁ%%ﬁ%ﬁ
BORTER  (WREBBRRMAAAEEEREM
[ K 2 ff%&ﬁﬁﬁ&nut{ﬂl%&%ﬁ% Bl
TEREMERAREXRESRHEBRRBES
MBA  REBEREHNTFREHEEEERR
RERTREENRARKREERMEAR K
LENZARKETFIDRG (WREBS
MEFRTS) BUA -

BIZRA WA B0 7 BRFE514.08 875
TLHEAN13.9%ZE201 88 B & E #9585. 6@%,‘%
T NEZEHRNAANEFRELXE
REEFRFERBARREERBMMAA E
BEREEABEREREAMEEDKARH
469.48 BB LB INZE529.08 BB T ¢ Kdii)
REFREREEFHBABI4.68 8B TG
MZE56.6BEEBTT -

REBREMOEGEHAEFRMGEE
R RIS
RERBBRBMAMAGNEFRELEE
1%&%/?&7?*}1&%%&’94&)\&&2017E7IE51¢EH’9
310.5 A BB TEINT1.0%E201 88 BREEHY
344.68 BB TT o

XERRRE

e EBERE MEANREFPRHUHBERBELE
B A 3201787 U E #9295.6 8 &8
JCHE N110.8%ZE 201858 B & € H327.6
BEABT DNEZHRBHEREZER
2018 BUFZIE N - LA RS KEHERE
B E L KB M o
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEFWE DM

. Dental. Revenue generated from the provision of Dental
Services to Contract Customers increased by 13.3% from
HK$15.0 million for FY2017 to HK$17.0 million in FY2018,
primarily due to an increase in the average price per patient
visit in FY2018 as well as the increase in the number of visits
from the patients seeking Dental Services.

Provision of clinical healthcare services in Hong Kong and Macau

. Medical. Revenue generated from the provision of Medical
Services to Self-paid Patients increased by 20.0% from
HK$107.0 million for FY2017 to HK$128.3 million for FY2018,
primarily due to an increase in both the patient visits and the
average price per patient visit in FY2018 driven by higher
spending by patients who needed to utilise our auxiliary

services.

. Dental. Revenue generated from the provision of Dental
Services to Self-paid Patients increased by 8.1% from HK$51.9
million for FY2017 to HK$56.1 million for FY2018, primarily
due to an increase in the patients in FY2018.

PRC Healthcare Business

Revenue contribution from the PRC Healthcare Business increased
by 26.9% from HK$44.6 million in FY2017 to HK$56.6 million
in FY2018, primarily due to an increase in the number of health
check-ups for the PRC residents traveling abroad for study or
for work and the health check-ups for corporate employees and
insurance scheme members, as well as an increase in the revenue

generated from the PRC corporate healthcare business.

Other Income and Gains

Other income and gains primarily comprise administrative support
fees (including fees derived from providing administrative support
to Affiliated Doctors, Affiliated Dentists and Affiliated Auxiliary
Services Providers), dividend income and fair value on financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss and interest income from

held-to-maturity investments and bank savings.

14 UMP HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED

e IR -MANEFEHIMBRBEEN
WA R201 7 BRFER15.08 BB T
013.3%ZE2018 BUF EM17.08 878
T DEEHM2018HHEEN B E R
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BRI EIEM o
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TT 0 BEBEHN2018 MEE B E I
e

hERBEL
KEFERBESHKATR H20178 B
FER44.68 8B TIENN26.9%%E201881 I
FER56.688BT DNEZHRABEEI
BEFITENTREREZHOEBRABRA
¥ E B RRERETEIK B IRE M SRR BUE
N LA K AR B4 FEAR AR S A UL A N o

H e A R Wz
HitWARMEETEBRREITEXEER (8
T[] B B R A - WU OT BB N B VR B AR5 1R
HERUTBREMEENER) - RAAE
Ef \BRWEREENREVRARAAE
B AEREFERINPRE RRITHERD
BN °

2018 ANNUAL REPORT



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Other income and gains decreased by 78.4% from HK$53.6 million
in FY2017 to HK$11.6 million in FY2018. The significant decrease
was primarily due to the one-off gains, including gain on disposal of
subsidiaries and gain on remeasurement of previously held interests
in joint ventures pursuant to the Disposal in March 2017 which did
not generate in FY2018.

Professional Services Expenses

Professional services expenses primarily comprise fees paid to
Doctors, Dentists and Auxiliary Services Providers for Medical
Services, Dental Services and Auxiliary Services rendered within the
UMP Network, as well as fees paid to third party laboratories and

testing centres for services rendered to the Group.

Professional services expenses increased by 7.5% from HK$287.6
million for FY2017 to HK$309.3 million for FY2018, primarily due
to an increase in the cost of services rendered by doctors, dentists
and other professionals. Such increment percentage was lower than
the Group’s increased revenue percentage in FY2018 representing
the Group’s improved profit margin, attributed to the expansion
of higher margin medical and dental services by way of business

acquisition and service diversification in FY2018.

Employee Benefit Expense

Employee benefit expense primarily comprise salaries and related
costs, equity-settled share- based payment expense, as well as
pension scheme contributions for nurses and administrative
personnel, and also include those of the Directors and key

management personnel.

Employee benefit expense increased by 21.0% from HK$100.3
million for FY2017 to HK$121.4 million for FY2018. Employee
benefit expense increased primarily due to general increase in staff
costs, full-period recognition of staff costs from UMP Lujiazui for
FY2018, full consolidation of staff costs of corporate head office
in Beijing upon the increase in shareholdings in UMP Healthcare
(Beijing) in March 2017 and the increase in number of staff for the
headquarter office and clinics in Hong Kong in connection with the
Group’s expansion plans and business acquisitions.

20185 3R

BEEFWE DM

Hp W A R H201 7 B EEB53.68 &
IR A 78.4%E2018 B FEM11.68 &
Bt BREKERD EZEHMR2018FBEE
WEELE—XHRE  BIEER2017F3 A
THESENEELENBARMNKRERE
M 2BOTmiEaERREENKRE -

EXRBEA
EXRGERTIZCENELE  TEREY
RIS 1R B RUMPH#E MR L B0 BB RS -
FRRE LB R M AENOER - A
ERF=TERERRAFOAAEERHE
MR MAENNER -

EEREEAA017HHREEN287.608
S TCIE N7 5% 201881 LA [Z H309.35 B
B FEHRBLE FEREMEEAL
REREHK ARG - ZILBERAEREER
2018 U ERIR AR - EREZEAEEK
MBEEENE - TYHR2018RFEER
ERWBEBEREZTLERERRSAEN
BERIRIRE

BERAMX

BERMNAXTIEERELIRTRABUR
EERTIZEEABNHFSREBKRA - A
T o 45 B A B 4D 73 EE R A 5 SR B S DA R AR

SRt B -

EE®AMA X H2017H BFE 10038 B
TG IN21.0%E2018 M FEM121.45658
BT o EERFAEMEZHARE KA
FELIE NN - L2018 UF E 2 HARER LB IR
BRI B TARA - R20174F3 AT A B
(R MRERE2EEATELR ARG
EEMBINA  UERAEENIETTE
REBBBEMENEERMEERZINE
THH -
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Property Rental and Related Expenses

Property rental and related expenses increased by 4.1% from
HK$41.0 million for FY2017 to HK$42.7 million for FY2018,
primarily due to the full-period recognition of rental expenses
from UMP Lujiazui in FY2018, the full consolidation of corporate
head office in Beijing upon the increase in shareholdings in UMP
Healthcare (Beijing) in March 2017 and the increase in rent for
those existing premises for which leases were renewed. The increase
was partly offset by the decrease in rental expenses of the Shanghai
clinic which was disposed off pursuant to the Disposal in March
2017.

Cost of Inventories Consumed

Cost of inventories consumed increased by 15.6% from HK$20.5
million for FY2017 to HK$23.7 million for FY2018, primarily due to
an increase in the amount of drugs and other medical consumables
consumed for the provision of clinical healthcare services to
Self-paid Patients. Such increase is generally in line with the
increase in revenue from the provision of clinical healthcare services
in FY2018.

Depreciation and Amortisation

Depreciation and amortisation increased by 13.6% from HK$17.6
million for FY2017 to HK$20.0 million for FY2018, primarily due
to the renovation of the medical centres in Shanghai, opening of 2
dental clinics in Hong Kong and the consolidation of depreciation
expenses of the newly acquired businesses.

Other Expenses, Net
Other expenses, net primarily comprise provision of impairment
loss, net made to the Group’s amount due from/to associated
companies and general overhead expenses such as utilities,
operation and other administrative expenses as well as repair and
maintenance expenses incurred with respect to the Group’s offices
and medical equipment, audit fees, printing expenses and bank

charges.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Other expenses, net, increased by 9.3% from HK$31.2 million
in FY2017 to HK$34.1 million in FY2018, primarily due to the
provision of impairment loss made to the Group’s amount due from
associated companies, an increase in maintenance expenses in
relation to the computer hardware and medical equipment and an

increase in overseas travelling expenses.

Share of Profits and Losses of Joint Ventures and Associates
The Group shared profits from joint ventures of approximately
HK$254,000 in FY2018 while recorded share of losses in FY2017 of
approximately HK$14.0 million. The significant change from losses
to profits was primarily due to the reduced share of operating losses
of the clinics in Beijing which had been disposed to HAML pursuant
to the Disposal in March 2017.

Share of profits of associates increased by 37.5% from
approximately HK$1.6 million in FY2017 to HK$2.2 million in
FY2018 primarily due to the improved performance of the existing
associates and the contribution from the Group’s new investment
in a medical imaging centre in Kowloon, Hong Kong, made in May
2017.

Summary of operational data for FY2018 with comparative figures
for FY2017:

BEEFWE DM

HRAZ FEA2017HMBREEN31I28 &S
TG IN9.3%E20188 R F E R34 18 B A
T THE B B R EEANE B A R U & R R
BEHREBERE AHEEKEHREE

BEOREAIEN  AREREREN -

EhHEeEQAARKEATRAFNBERER

REER2018H KR FEEIEEERQRFIBLY
254,000 7T © mM20178F B 6 [ Bl 4% 15 Bk
BRENI40BERT EBELAANKNIEZH
TEAREEILLRZ AT (ER2017F3 ARE
HEFHELNETEREESE) NLEEER

9\0

FE(REE S N E A ER201 7 BFEEN1.68 8
I IN37.5%%2018F M FEE 22588
T FTEHRBEEBE AT CRARA UK
REBR2017F5AHMRBEBNEN—H
BREZEPUMERTREMTRZER -

2018 R R R E BB 2017 F R
LR BB

Revenue by operating segment REEDHE D BN
Year ended 30 June
BZ6H30RLEE Increase/
2018 2017 (decrease)
20184 20174 i,/ CR )
HK$'000  HK$'000
FExT FHET
Provision of corporate healthcare RHCEEERE
solution services 3R T = IR 346,506 310,520 11.6%
Medical B 329,520 295,567 11.5%
Dental ZF & 16,986 14,953 13.6%
Provision of clinical healthcare REERKEERERE
services 239,124 203,503 17.5%
Medical 82 182,974 151,636 20.7%
Dental TR 56,150 51,867 8.3%
TOTAL EEr 585,630 514,023 13.9%
20185 % BHeBBEBERAR 17



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEFWE DM

Number of visits by operating segment

BEEIHBETNRDRE

Year ended 30 June Increase/
B Z6HA30BHILLEE (decrease)
2018 2017 141
20185 20174 OBt 2)
Provision of corporate healthcare EHOEBBEREMRR
solution services T RERK 1,295,697 1,253,674 3.4%
Medical B 1,272,803 1,232,373 3.3%
Dental TR 22,894 21,301 7.5%
Provision of clinical healthcare REERERRERL
services 192,343 171,884 11.9%
Medical B 152,159 134,825 12.9%
Dental 7 e 40,184 37,059 8.4%
TOTAL Elali 1,488,040 1,425,558 4.4%
KEY FINANCIAL POSITION ITEMS FTEMHMRRER

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment comprise leasehold improvements,
furniture, fixtures and office equipment, medical equipment,
computer equipment and software, and motor vehicle in relation to
the Group’s premises and operations. Property, plant and equipment
are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses.

As at 30 June 2018 and 30 June 2017, the Group’s property, plant
and equipment amounted to HK$103.8 million and HK$43.9
million, respectively. The increase was primarily due to the
acquisition of a property in Sheung Wan and the acquisition of
businesses during FY2018.

Held-to-maturity Investments

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity which the Group
has the intention and ability to hold to maturity. Held-to-maturity
investments are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

As at 30 June 2018, the Group’s held-to-maturity investments of
approximately HK$69.5 million (2017: approximately HK$61.0
million). The Group’s held-to-maturity investments primarily
represents the marketable corporate bonds issued by listed
corporations with fixed interest rates from 4.25% to 8.5% per
annum. The marketable debt securities which will mature within
one year and more than one year are classified as current assets
and non-current assets, respectively. The Group receives related
interest payments semi-annually and annually. According to the
investment policy of the Group, the net assets of the issuer(s), on
the date of investment, of such corporate bonds shall be HK$10
billion or above. The Board will closely monitor the performance of
its investment portfolio from time to time. The interest income from
the held-to-maturity investments held by the Group as at 30 June
2018 is approximately HK$1.7 million (2017: approximately HK$1.9
million).

Based on the current circumstances, the Group expects that it will
be able to receive the principal and the related interest payments
upon maturity of such held-to-maturity investments in accordance
with their respective terms.

Below table sets out the details and performance of the Group’s
held-to-maturity investments. For presentation purposes, the
amounts of the investment portfolio are shown in Hong Kong

dollars.

As at 30 June 2018

Interest income

BEEFWE DM

MR2018F6HA30H  REBMIFAF =R HE
B A69588BT(2017F  #161.08 88
TL) cAEEMBEEERIHREFEE LT
TEMBITHNEELERES  WEBREEF
KA25%E8.5% R—FAR—FEIEH
EEBEEESS NP EARBEERIERD
BE -AEES¥FRSFWRABF B
Ko BBEAEBNRERR  ZSEEBH
METARKEEBNEEFEARI0ES
THENE - EEEBETEZEEHEESR
AHRIE - KREER2018F6A3 0B FFH
BEZIPRENFNERANBI7TEES T
(20175 : #N9IEEBTT) °

3t

EREABR  AKREEH R&ERFE
A E B B - K EREE B IR
AR S RAEEAN SR -

=

TREJAKEFEEZIHRENFBLRE
B-mENBEMME  REMAANESRENE
TEFR e

M2018F6H30H

Market value of Carrying amount of Percentage to

Principal business for the year ended Investment  investments as at  investments as at the Group's
Description of investments of the issuer 30 June 2018 cost 30 June 2018 30 June 2018 total asset
Bz
2018564308 Lt M201856A308  M2018%F6A30R HEEE
REFE BOANTEER FEFRSBWA RERA RETHER REGEE HEENEIH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 %
TAR TAR TAR TEL BAL
BL Capital Holdings Ltd 4.5% Diversified Investments 484 10,936 11,007 10,927 1.5%
17-Aug-2018
BL Capital Holdings Ltd Sl RE
2018F8H17B84.5%
43/8% Notes Bluestar Finance Manufacturing of 301 7,968 7,904 7,887 1.1%
Holdings Ltd 2015-11.06.2020 chemical products
senior
Bluestar Finance Holdings Ltd &t Em
20155 22020667118
43/8% BAFE
20184 =} HaBKEBAR AR 19
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Interest income

Market value of Carrying amount of

Percentage to

Principal business for the year ended Investment  investments as at  investments as at the Group's
Description of investments  of the issuer 30 June 2018 cost 30 June 2018 30 June 2018 total asset
S
2018F6A30R Lt M2018%6A308  R201856A30R hAEE
REFE BUANTEEE EEREWA RERK REMEEE RERHEE LEENEIL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 %
TEL FEL THL THL BAtk
47/8% PT Pertamina (Persero) Engaging in the oil, gas, 298 7,972 7,987 7,919 1.1%
2012-03.05.2022 SrReg S and new and renewable
Notes energy businesses
PT Pertamina (Persero) RERH - RAER
2012220225730 A EEMRERER
47/8% SR REE
5.375% Fortune Star BVI Ltd  Diversified Investments 167 6,340 6,229 6,340 0.9%
2017-05.12.2020
Fortune Star BVI Ltd LR
20178 £2020%12 A58
5.375%
4.25% Hongkong Intl Real Estates business 99 6,274 5,762 6,247 0.9%
(Qingdao) Co., Ltd.
2017-04.12.2022 RegS
Qingdao City Construction Inv
EBER(58) BHESH
BRATE
2017822022512 84R
425% SIEFI BB MR ER
8.5% Gemstones Real Estates business 47 6,315 6,054 6,286 0.9%
International Ltd
2017-15.08.2020 guaranteed
Gemstones EMEER
International Ltd
20178 £2020F8 5158
8.5%%F EfR
7% Easy Tactic Ltd Real Estates business 67 6,158 6,104 6,163 0.8%
2018-25.04.2021
Guaranteed Guangzhou
R&F Properties
Easy Tactic Ltd FREXH
20185 E20215482587%
BERENE MHE
7.90% Yuzhou Real Estates business 69 6,224 6,323 6,226 0.8%
Properties Co. Ltd
2018-11.05.2021
BE EHEER
RHBRARE

20185 2202185 A11H7.90%
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Interest income

Market value of Carrying amount of

Percentage to

Principal business for the year ended Investment  investments as at  investments as at the Group's
Description of investments  of the issuer 30 June 2018 cost 30 June 2018 30 June 2018 total asset
Bz
2018F6A30R Lt #2018F6A308 120186 A30R hREE
REFE BTANTEER FEFRBWA REBA REMGEE RERAE SEENEIL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 %
FEL FEL FEL THL BAlk
Country Garden Holdings Real Estates business 68 6,028 5,683 6,036 0.8%
4.75% 28.9.2023
EERER023F9A28 EHEEE
4.75%
4.5% Regd. Notes ICBC (Asia) Bank 35 3,923 3,929 3,923 0.5%
2013-10.10.2023
Variable Rate
subord.series 89
THRTM Eiish
20135 £2023%10A108 251
89 45% L R RELARE
7.45% Notes China Real Estates business 16 1,542 1,534 1,543 0.2%
SCE Property Holdings Ltd
2018-17.04.2021
Reg S
mEEEERERAT EHEES
2018FZ2021F4 1787.45%
SKDIRE
Total Bt 1,651 69,680 68,516 69,497 9.5%
20184 R HaBKEBAR AR
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As at 30 June 2017

Interest income

A2017F6H30H

Market value of Carrying amount of

Percentage to

Principal business for the year ended Investment  investments as at  investments as at the Group’s
Description of investments  of the issuer 30 June 2017 cost 30 June 2017 30 June 2017 total asset
B2
201768308 i R2017F6A308 1201756308 EAEE
REHR BTANIEEH EENERA REMK REMERE REBKAE HAEENEIM
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 %
THEL THEL THEL TAL B
4.8750% Petrobras Glob-notes Engaging in the oil, gas 628 19,149 19,944 19,210 2.8%
2014-17.3.2020 Gtd Sr and coal business
Petrobras Glob 20145 % HtEaM  RARAR
20203 A17B4.8750% RREH
REREARRR
1.33% Bank Of China Bank 118 15,015 15,125 15,005 2.1%
8.11.2017 CD
R RIT2017%11 A8H R/
133% 7 BHESR
BL Capital Holdings Ltd Diversified investments 484 10,936 10,948 10,935 1.6%
4.5% 17-Aug-2018
BL Capital Holdings Ltd STiLRE
201858 A1784.5%
47/8% PT Pertamina (Persero) Engaging in the oil, gas 353 7,972 8,346 7,945 1.1%
2012-03.05.2022 SrReg S and new and renewable
Notes energy businesses
PT Pertamina (Persero) 2012 #HA)H - AARR
E20220F5 4384 7/8% ABEMBERRS
MAIEHES
43/8% Notes Bluestar Manufacturing of 302 7,968 8,084 7,927 1.1%
Finance Holdings Ltd chemical products
2015-11.06.2020
senior
Bluestar Finance Holdings Ltd (L2
20155 £2020F6 4118
4 38%RAEE
Total &3t 1,885 61,040 62,447 61,022 8.7%
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Goodwill

Goodwill primarily represents the excess of the aggregate of the
consideration over the fair value of the identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities assumed. After initial recognition, goodwill is
measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.

As at 30 June 2018 and 30 June 2017, the Group’s goodwill
amounted to HK$62.6 million and HK$41.4 million, respectively.
The increase in goodwill was primarily due to the acquisitions of
a dental clinic and medical imaging centres in Hong Kong during
FY2018.

Trade Receivables

Trade receivables primarily comprise receivables due from Contract
Customers under fee for service plans and capitation plans. Most
Self-paid Patients of medical and dental practices settle in cash,
although payments made by credit card will be classified as trade
receivables until they are settled (typically within two to three days).
Contract Customers typically settle payments within one to two
months of the provision of services to their members. The Group
allows an average credit period of 30 to 60 days to its Contract
Customers. The Group does not hold any collateral or other credit
enhancements over its trade receivable balances. Trade receivables
are non-interest-bearing.

As at 30 June 2018 and 30 June 2017, the Group's trade receivables
amounted to HK$78.8 million and HK$56.8 million, respectively.
The annual receivable turnover was 42 days and 36 days
respectively in FY2018 and FY2017. The Group maintained a stable
collection period over the years.

Trade Payables

Trade payables primarily comprise professional fees accrued
and owing to Affiliated Doctors and amounts owing to suppliers
of medical equipment and consumables. Trade payables are
non-interest-bearing and are normally settled within one to three
months.

The Group’s trade payables amounted to HK$39.2 million
and HK$53.7 million, as at 30 June 2018 and 30 June 2017,
respectively. The decrease was due to the shorten of credit period
by quicker settlement schedules to the Doctors, Dentists and
Auxiliary Services Providers for Medical Services, Dental Services
and Auxiliary Services rendered within the UMP Network, aiming
at further strengthening the relationship with the Group’s service
providers.

Net Change in Financial Position

The Group’s net assets amounted to HK$631.1 million and
HK$595.6 million as at 30 June 2018 and 30 June 2017,
respectively. The increase was primarily due to the exercise of
Pre-IPO Share Options by an executive director and the net profit for
FY2018 amounted to HK$37.6 million attributable to the owners of
the Company, partly offset by the distribution of dividends and the
purchase of shares under the Share Award Scheme.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEFWE DM

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group has historically funded its operations primarily by cash
generated from operating activities. Upon the listing of the shares of
the Company on the Stock Exchange, the Group intended to satisfy
its liquidity requirements using a combination of cash generated
from operating activities, net proceeds from the Global Offering and
the net considerations received from the series of transactions as
described in the announcement of the Company dated 15 December
2016 and the circular of the Company dated 8 February 2017 in
relation to, among other things, the disposal of UMP Management
and UMP Management Il to HAML, the subscription of new shares
in UMP Healthcare China by NWS Subsidiary and the subscription
of new shares in UMP Healthcare (Beijing) by UMP Healthcare
China. The Group may also seek to borrow to satisfy liquidity
requirements. As of 30 June 2018, the Group had cash and cash
equivalents of HK$294.0 million.

As of the date of this report, the Group did not have any bank
borrowings or outstanding bank loans and did not enter into any
bank loan facilities.

GEARING RATIO
As at 30 June 2018, the Group had no net debt. The Group’s gearing
ratio was not applicable as at 30 June 2018.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

There has been no change in the capital structure of the Company
during the year ended 30 June 2018. The capital of the Company
comprises ordinary shares and other reserves.

MATERIAL ACQUISITION OR DISPOSAL OF
SUBSIDIARIES

During FY2018, the Group’s material acquisitions primarily were
the acquisitions of two medical imaging centres from respective
independent third parties for a consideration of HK$21 million and
HK$2.8 million in connection to the Group’s horizontal medical
services expansion plan. Detailed disclosure is stated in Note 35 of
the Notes to the Financial Statements under the heading of “Business
Combinations” on pages 236 to 242.

Save as aforesaid, there was no material acquisition or disposal of
subsidiaries undertaken by the Group during FY2018.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS
OR CAPITAL ASSETS

Apart from strengthening the Group’s current business and the future
plans as disclosed in the Prospectus, the Group did not have any
specific future plan for material investments or capital assets as of 30
June 2018.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

The capital expenditure during the year was primarily related
to deposits paid for and expenditures on additions of property,
plant and equipment for the Group’s medical, dental and
auxiliary services centres. For FY2018, the Group incurred capital
expenditure in an aggregate amount of approximately HK$129.4
million (FY2017: HK$37.0 million).

INDEBTEDNESS

Contingent Liabilities

As at 30 June 2018, the Group did not have any material off-balance
sheet arrangements.

Capital Commitment

As at 30 June 2018, the Group had a material capital commitment
of approximately HK$22.5 million in relation to the acquisition of
subsidiaries from an independent third party with details as set out
in the section headed “Events After Reporting Period”.

RISK MANAGEMENT

Foreign Currency Risk

During the reporting period, the Group undertook certain
transactions in foreign currencies, which exposed the Group to
foreign currency risk, primarily relating to the Renminbi against
Hong Kong dollars.

The Group did not use any derivative contracts to hedge against its
exposure to currency risk. The management manages the currency
risk by closely monitoring the movement of the foreign currency
rates and will consider hedging against significant foreign exchange
exposure when the need arises.

Credit Risk

The credit risk of the Group’s financial assets arises from default of
the counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal to the carrying
amounts of these instruments.

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third
parties. It is the Group’s policy that all customers who wish to
trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification procedures.
In addition, receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing
basis and concentrations of credit risk are managed by customer/
counterparty.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 30 June 2018, the Group has pledged certain deposits with
an aggregate carrying amount of HK$1.4 million (30 June 2017:
HK$0.8 million) in connection with surety bonds issued by a bank in
favour of respective independent third parties for potential damages
of dental equipment and potential disruption of medical services,
and a bank guarantee issued by a bank in favour of a landlord for
leasing of a medical centre of the Group.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEFWE DM

EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 30 June 2018, the Group had a total of 461 full-time
employees (FY2017: 407 full-time employees). For FY2018, the
staff cost (including Directors’ remuneration in the form of salaries
and other benefits) was approximately HK$121.4 million (FY2017:
HK$100.3 million).

The Group ensures that the pay levels of its employees are
competitive and employees are rewarded on a performance
related basis, together with reference to the profitability of the
Group, prevailing remuneration benchmarks in the industry, and
market conditions within the general framework of the Group's
remuneration system.

The Company adopted the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme and the
Post-IPO Share Option Scheme, where eligible participants are
entitled to subscribe for the ordinary shares in the Company for
their past and potential contribution to the growth of the Group.
As at 30 June 2018, 30,208,000 options under the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme remained outstanding and 14,700,000 share options
under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme have been exercised
during FY2018. As at 30 June 2018, 2,213,000 options remained
outstanding under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme and 1,213,000
share options under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme have been
exercised during the FY2018.

In addition, the Company has also adopted the Share Award Scheme
on 30 June 2016 to provide an incentive and reward to selected
participants for their contribution or potential contribution to the
Group. No awarded shares have been granted under the Share
Award Scheme during FY2018.

The remuneration of the Directors are reviewed by the
Remuneration Committee and approved by the Board, according
to the relevant Director’s experience, responsibility, workload and
the time devoted to the Group, the Company’s operating results and
comparable market statistics.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The directors proposed the payment of a final dividend of HK2.35
cents per Share for FY2018 (FY2017: HK2.2 cents). The proposed
final dividend will be subject to approval of shareholders of the
Company at the 2018 AGM to be held on Thursday, 15 November
2018 and is payable to shareholders of the Company whose names
appear on the register of members of the Company on Friday, 7
December 2018. It is expected that the final dividend will be paid
on or about Friday, 21 December 2018.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Dr. SUN Yiu Kwong (##8I), aged 75, is a founding member of
the Group and the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the
Company. He was appointed as a Director on 23 April 2015 and
re-designated as an executive Director on 29 August 2015. He is
primarily responsible for the overall formulation, supervision and
guidance of business strategies, planning and development of the
Group. He is the Chairman of the Nomination Committee of the
Company. Dr. Sun is also a director of various members of the

Group.

With over 43 years of experience in family medicine practice,
Dr. Sun is a Founder Fellow of the Hong Kong College of Family
Physicians. He is a Clinical Associate Professor (honorary) in Family
Medicine at the Chinese University of Hong Kong and a Honorary
Clinical Assistant Professor in Family Medicine at the University of
Hong Kong. Dr. Sun is one of the pioneer Hong Kong doctors to
participate in the healthcare development and training of medical
professionals in the PRC. With his wealth of experience in the
PRC, in particular his involvement and exposure in the training
programmes of various institutions, he plays a leading role in the
strategic planning and development of the Group’s healthcare
business in the PRC.

Dr. Sun is the father of Dr. Michael Sun and the father-in-law of
Mr. Patrick Tsang, both of whom are executive Directors. He is the
sole shareholder and a director of East Majestic Group Limited. He is
also the sole shareholder and director of EM Team Limited.

He obtained a Bachelor of Medicine, Bachelor of Surgery from the
University of Hong Kong in November 1967 and became a Fellow
of the Hong Kong College of General Practitioners in September
1987 and a Fellow of the Hong Kong Academy of Medicine in
the specialty of Family Medicine in December 1993. He was also
registered as a specialist in Family Medicine in March 1998.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EEREREEERE

Ms. KWOK Cheuk Kwan, Jacquen (382 &), aged 50, is the
Managing Director of the Company. She was appointed as a Director
on 5 November 2014 and re-designated as an executive Director
on 29 August 2015. She is responsible for the overall management
and business development of the Group and initiating and
leading business projects in collaboration with medical insurance
companies and corporate customers. Ms. Kwok is also responsible
for developing the management team with a view to enhancing
operational efficiency and expanding the Group’s business
activities. Ms. Kwok is one of the key members in establishing
the administration arm of the Group. She has over 23 vyears of
experience in health schemes management and providers network
administration to support the healthcare plan’s implementation in
the Group’s network. She is actively involved in developing the
infrastructure of the Group such as information technology platforms
and medical network facilities. Ms. Kwok is also a director of
various companies of the Group.

Ms. Kwok obtained a Bachelor of Arts in International Business
Studies (Hons) from the City University of Hong Kong in November
1991 and obtained a Bachelor of Laws from Peking University in
July 1996. She also obtained a Master of Science in Management
(Health Services Management) from the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University in November 2003.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. TSANG On Yip, Patrick (&% 3), aged 47, was appointed as
a Director on 18 August 2015 and re-designated as an executive
Director on 29 August 2015. He is a member of the Remuneration
Committee of the Company. Mr. Tsang is primarily responsible
for providing strategic directions on co-operations with different
business stakeholders in China and globally. He is the Chief
Executive Officer and a director of Chow Tai Fook Enterprises
Limited. He is also a director of Healthcare Ventures Holdings
Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of CTFE and a substantial
shareholder of the Company. Mr. Tsang has over 23 years of
international capital markets experience, and was previously
managing director, head of Asia Fixed Income Capital Markets at
Deutsche Bank AG, Hong Kong Branch, where he worked from
2003 to 2012.

Mr. Tsang is an executive director of Melbourne Enterprises
Limited (stock code: 158), a non-executive director of Integrated
Waste Solutions Group Holdings Limited (stock code: 923) and a
nonexecutive director of Greenheart Group Limited (stock code:
94) and non-executive director of i-Cable Communications Limited
(stock code: 1097), all being companies listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Tsang is the son-in-law of Dr. Sun Yiu Kwong, the Chairman,
Chief Executive Officer of the Company and an executive Director

and the brother-in-law of Dr. Michael Sun, an executive Director.

Mr. Tsang obtained a Bachelor of Arts in Economics from Columbia
College of Columbia University in New York, USA in May 1994.
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Dr. SUN Man Kin, Michael (23 2), aged 40, was appointed as
a Director on 18 August 2015 and re-designated as an executive
Director on 29 August 2015. He is a specialist in Radiology and
is responsible for expanding the global imaging business of the
Company as well as building the physician networks. Dr. Michael
Sun has over 13 years of experience in medicine and has been the
Chief Radiologist of the Group since July 2012. He is currently a
radiologist, a director and a shareholder of ProCare Medical Imaging
and Laboratory Centre Limited, a non-wholly owned subsidiary of
the Company. He is also a consultant radiologist at Causeway Bay
MRI Centre. Dr. Sun is also a director of various members of the
Group.

Dr. Michael Sun is the son of Dr. Sun Yiu Kwong, the Chairman,
Chief Executive Officer of the Company and executive Director
and the brother-in-law of Mr. Tsang On Yip, Patrick, an executive
Director. He is also a director of East Majestic Group Limited.

Dr. Michael Sun obtained a Bachelor of Medicine, Bachelor of
Surgery from the University of Hong Kong in December 2002. He
became a Fellow of the Royal College of Radiologist in October
2007 and a Fellow of the Hong Kong College of Radiologists in
October 2010. He also became a Fellow of the Hong Kong Academy
of Medicine in the specialty of Radiology in June 2010.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. LEE Kar Chung, Felix (ZXRH), aged 37, was appointed as
a Director on 18 August 2015 and re-designated as an executive
Director on 29 August 2015. He is responsible for corporate
development, international operations and merger and acquisitions
for the Group. Mr. Lee joined the Group as director, corporate
development and strategy of the Group in September 2014. He is
currently a Senior Vice President of CTFE with responsibilities in
making investments in the healthcare sector in Asia and globally
and a director of Healthcare Ventures Holdings Limited, a wholly
owned subsidiary of CTFE, a substantial shareholder of the
Company. Mr. Lee is also an independent non-executive director
of China Resources Phoenix Healthcare Holdings Company Limited
(formerly known as Phoenix Healthcare Group Co., Ltd) (stock code:
1515), a substantial shareholder of the Company. Mr. Lee is also
a director of various members of the Group. He has over 13 years
of experience in law and finance. He was an associate with the
law firm Freshfields Bruckhaus Deringer before he left in February
2008 to join UBS AG, Hong Kong branch as an analyst in the
investment banking department until January 2009. He then joined
the investment banking department of Deutsche Bank AG, Hong
Kong branch and last held the position of director in the Corporate
Advisory Group, where he worked from January 2009 to August
2014.

Mr. Lee obtained a Bachelor of Laws from the London School of
Economics and Political Sciences and a Postgraduate Certificate in
Laws from the University of Hong Kong in July 2003 and June 2004,
respectively. He is a solicitor of the High Court of Hong Kong since
September 2007 and a solicitor (non-practising) in the Senior Courts
of England and Wales since February 2013.
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Dr. LEE Pak Cheung, Patrick (Z=4%), aged 53, was appointed as
an executive director on 28 February 2018. He joined the Group
in 2003. He was appointed as the Dental Director for the Group
since 2014, primarily responsible for supervising the dental practice
of the Group and advising on the continuing training of dental
professionals and development of clinical and professional services.
Dr. Patrick Lee is one of the major contributors in the Group’s dental
centre chain, he keeps an active practice to nurture and inspire
his dental colleagues. Dr. Patrick Lee also performs a key role in
business development and quality assurance in the Group’s dental
centre chain. Dr. Patrick Lee obtained a Bachelor of Dental Surgery
from the University of Hong Kong in 1988. He became a member of
the faculty of general dental practitioners (UK) of the Royal College
of Surgeons of England in 1995 and a member in general dental
surgery of the Royal College of Surgeons of Edinburgh in 1997.
In 1999, he became a Fellow of the Royal Australasian College of
Dental Surgeons. In 2007, he was granted a Diploma of Membership
in General Dentistry by the College of Dental Surgeons of Hong
Kong. Dr. Patrick Lee currently also serves as dental consultant for
the Group.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. LEE Luen-Wai, John 8ss jp (ZHt{Z), aged 69, was appointed
as an independent non-executive Director on 6 November 2015.
He is the chairman of Audit Committee and a member of the
Nomination Committee of the Company. Mr. Lee is an independent
non-executive director of New World Development Company
Limited (stock code: 17), an associate of CTFE. Mr. Lee is also the
managing director and chief executive officer of Lippo Limited
(stock code: 226), an executive director and the chief executive
officer of both Lippo China Resources Limited (stock code: 156)
and Hongkong Chinese Limited (stock code: 655), all being
companies listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. He was
also appointed as a non-executive non-independent chairman of
Healthway Medical Corporation Limited, a company listed on the
Catalist Board of the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited
and an investee company of Lippo China Resources Limited, on 2
August 2017. He resigned as an independent non-executive director
of New World China Land Limited (former stock code: 917), an
associate of CTFE, with effect from 1 September 2016 after the
listing of its shares on the Stock Exchange had been withdrawn on 4
August 2016 following its privatisation.

Mr. Lee is a Fellow of The Institute of Chartered Accountants in
England and Wales, the Association of Certified Accountants and the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accounts. He was a partner
of Pricewaterhouse (now known as PricewaterhouseCoopers) in
Hong Kong and has extensive experience in corporate finance and
capital markets. Mr. Lee is an Honorary Fellow of the City University
of Hong Kong and a Justice of Peace in Hong Kong and an awardee
of the Bronze Bauhinia Star by the Government of the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region.

Mr. Lee is active in public service. Over the years, he has served
as a member or chairman of different government boards and
committees in Hong Kong, including a member of the Hong Kong
Hospital Authority and the chairman of the Hospital Governing
Committee of the Queen Elizabeth Hospital. Currently, he serves as
the Chairman of the Hospital Governing Committee of Hong Kong
Children’s Hospital, a member of the Public Service Commission
and the Chairman of the Investment Committee of the Hospital
Authority Provident Fund Scheme.
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Dr. LI Kwok Tung, Donald sss/p (ZEEI$R), aged 64, was appointed
as an independent non-executive Director on 6 November 2015.
He is the chairman of the Remuneration Committee and a member
of the Audit Committee and the Nomination Committee of the
Company. He is also an independent non-executive director of
C-MER Eye Care Holdings Limited (stock code: 3309). Dr. Li is a
specialist in Family Medicine in private practice in Hong Kong.
He is the past President of the Hong Kong Academy of Medicine,
the President Elect of the World Organisation of Family Doctors
(WONCA) and Censor of the Hong Kong College of Family
Physicians. Dr Li is also the Chairman of the Governing Board
of Hong Kong Jockey Club Disaster Preparedness and Response

Institute.

Dr. Li obtained a Bachelor of Arts from Cornell University, USA,
and a Bachelor of Medicine and a Bachelor of Surgery from the
University of Hong Kong in June 1975 and November 1980,
respectively. He became a Fellow of the Hong Kong College of
General Practitioners in September 1987, Fellow of the Hong Kong
Academy of Medicine in December 1993, Honorary Fellow of the
Hong Kong College of Dental Surgeons in August 2004, Honorary
Fellow of the Royal Australian College of General Practitioners
in September 2005, Honorary Fellow of the Hong Kong College
of Family Physicians in May 2007, Fellow of the Faculty of
Public Health of the Royal Colleges of Physicians of the United
Kingdom in February 2010, Honorary Fellow of the Academy of
Family Physicians of Malaysia in April 2011, Registered Mainland
China Medical Practitioner in April 2013, Honorary Fellow of the
American College of Physicians in November 2012, Honorary
Fellow of the Royal College of Physicians of Thailand in April 2013,
Fellow of the Academy of Medicine, Singapore, in August 2013,
Honorary Fellow of the Royal College of Physicians of Ireland in
October 2014 and Honorary Fellow of the Royal College of General
Practitioners in November 2014.

He served as Member of Council of Cornell University. He is a
Clinical Associate Professor (honorary) in Family Medicine at the
Chinese University of Hong Kong, Honorary Professor of the Li
Ka Shing Faculty of Medicine of the University of Hong Kong and
Adjunct Associate Professor of the Faculty of Health Science of
Macau University of Science and Technology.
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Dr. Li is the Director of the Hong Kong St. John Ambulance
Association. He is the chairman of Bauhinia Foundation Research
Centre and also the chairman of the board of directors of the
Hong Kong Sheng Kung Hui Welfare Council Limited, d. Honorary
Steward of the Hong Kong Jockey Club. He is the Honorary Adviser
of The Hong Kong Award for Young People. He is the Chairman of
Professional Committee on Medical Health of Belt and Road General
Chamber of Commerce, member of the Chief Executive’s Council
of Advisers on Innovation and Strategic Development, and also the
Steering Committee on Primary Healthcare Development of Food &

Health Bureau.

Mr. YEUNG Wing Sun, Mike (#5%), aged 65, was appointed
as an independent non-executive Director on 6 November 2015.
He is a member of the Audit Committee and the Remuneration
Committee of the Company. Mr. Yeung is an independent
non-executive director and a member of the audit committee and
nomination committee of Hong Kong Shanghai Alliance Holdings
Limited (stock code: 1001), a company listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange. He has over 40 years’ working experience in
banking industry. Mr. Yeung began his career with the HSBC Group
in 1972 and advanced himself in the organisation by taking up
different positions under various business streams including personal
banking, sales and marketing, branch operation and trade service. In
2001, Mr. Yeung was relocated to Shanghai and took up the role of
branch manager of HSBC Shanghai. In June 2006, he was seconded
to Hang Seng Bank (China) Limited and appointed as the Head of
Personal Financial Services and Wealth Management. He assumed
the role of Deputy Chief Executive and Head of Retail Banking and
Wealth Management in May 2007. Mr. Yeung retired from HSBC
Group in January 2014. Mr. Yeung is the Honorary President of
Hong Kong Chamber of Commerce in Shanghai. He was awarded
the “Magnolia Gold Award” presented by the Shanghai Municipal
government. Mr. Yeung was also awarded a Professional Diploma
in Company Direction by The Hong Kong Institute of Directors
in 2017. Mr. Yeung was a member of the 11th and 12th Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference Committee in Shanghai.
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Company Secretary

Ms. MA Hoi Wan (F 8l E), aged 43, is the Finance Director
and Company Secretary of the Company. She is responsible for
a full spectrum of internal functions within the Group, including
accounting and finance, business and operation analysis,
information technology, human resources and administration. She
has over 17 years of experience in accounting, auditing and finance.
Ms. Ma first joined the Group as a consultant in November 2000
to June 2001 and subsequently became a full-time Accounting
Manager from July 2001 to June 2005. She was promoted to
Assistant Financial Controller in July 2005 until she left the Group
in May 2007. Ms. Ma re-joined the Group as Financial Controller
in April 2010. She is also a member of the Management Committee
and a director and the Honorary Treasurer of the Hong Kong
Museum of Medical Sciences since 2012 and 2013 respectively.

Ms. Ma obtained a Bachelor of Business Administration in
Accounting from the Hong Kong University of Science and
Technology in November 1997 and obtained a Master of Corporate
Finance from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University in November
2003. She has been a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants since January 2001.
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The Company is committed to maintaining high standards of
corporate governance and transparency. The Company believes that
high standards of corporate governance provide a solid foundation
for the Group to manage business risks, enhance transparency and
maintain high standards of accountability. The corporate governance
principles of the Company emphasise sound internal control and

aim to protect Shareholders’ interests in general.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company has complied with the code provisions of the
Corporate Governance Code during FY2018, except for the
deviation as disclosed in this annual report.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Board Composition

The Board currently comprises nine Directors, consisting of six
executive Directors and three independent non-executive Directors,
namely Dr. Sun Yiu Kwong as Chairman, Chief Executive Officer
and executive Director, Ms. Kwok Cheuk Kwan, Jacquen, as
Managing Director and executive Director, Mr. Tsang On Yip,
Patrick, Dr. Sun Man Kin, Michael, Mr. Lee Kar Chung, Felix and
Dr. Lee Pak Cheung, Patrick as executive Directors, and Mr. Lee Luen Wai,
John BBS JP, Dr. Li Kwok Tung, Donald SBS JP and Mr. Yeung Wing Sun,
Mike as independent non-executive Directors.

Biographical details of the Directors and their relationships, where
applicable, are contained in the section headed “Biographical

Details of Directors and Senior Management” of this annual report.

The Company has maintained on its website and on the website
of the Stock Exchange an updated list of its Directors identifying
their roles and functions, and whether they are independent non-
executive Directors. Independent non-executive Directors are
identified as such in all corporate communications that disclose the
names of Directors.
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Board Diversity Policy

The Board adopted a board diversity policy setting out the approach
to achieve diversity on the Board. The Company considered diversity
of Board members can be achieved through consideration of a
number of aspects, including but not limited to the gender, age,
cultural, educational background and professional experience of the
Board members. The appointment of Directors will be based on the
Group’s own business model and specific needs, having due regard
to the benefits of diversity of the Board.

The Company believes that the current Board composition is well-
balanced and of a diverse mix appropriate for the business of the
Company. The Board will review and monitor the implementation of
board diversity policy on a regular basis to ensure its effectiveness
on determining the optimal composition of the Board.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

According to code provision A.2.1 of the Corporate Governance
Code, the roles of the chairman and chief executive should be
separate and should not be performed by the same individual. Dr.
Sun Yiu Kwong, the Chairman, is also the Chief Executive Officer.
The Board believes that vesting the roles of both chairman and
chief executive officer in an experienced and qualified person
such as Dr. Sun Yiu Kwong provides the Company with strong and
consistent leadership while allowing effective and efficient planning
and implementation of business decisions and strategies. The Board
considers that this structure will not impair the balance of power

and authority between the Board and the management of the Group.

The Board will review the corporate governance structure and
practices from time to time and shall make necessary arrangement

when the Board considers appropriate.

Independent non-executive Directors

During FY2018, the Board at all times met the requirements of
the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three
independent non-executive Directors representing one third of
the Board with one of whom possessing appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management
expertise. The Company has received written annual confirmation
from each of the independent non-executive Directors in respect of
his independence in accordance with the independence guidelines
set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company is of the view
that all independent non-executive Directors are independent.
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Roles of the Board and Management

The Board oversees the management, business, strategic directions
and performance of the Group. It is collectively responsible for
the management and operation of the Company. The Board is the
ultimate decision making body of the Company except for matters
requiring the approval of the Shareholders in accordance with the

Articles, the Listing Rules or other applicable laws and regulations.

The Board delegates day-to-day operations of the Group to the
management of the Company. The Board and the management have
clearly defined authorities and responsibilities under various internal
control and check and balance mechanisms. The Board does not
delegate matters to the Board committee(s), executive Directors or
management to an extent that would significantly hinder or reduce
the ability of the Board as a whole to perform its functions.

Corporate Governance Functions

The Board plays a major role in the supervision of corporate
governance to ensure that the Company maintains a sound
governance framework and the long-term sustainable Shareholders’
value by way of, among others:

(@) to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance;

(b) to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of the Directors and senior management;

(c) to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices in
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(d) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and the

Directors; and
(e) to review the Company’s compliance with Appendix 14 of

the Listing Rules (Corporate Governance Code and Corporate

Governance Report).
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Board Meetings and Supply of and Access to Information

Under code provision A.1.1 of the Corporate Governance Code, the
Board should meet regularly and Board meetings should be held
at least four times a year at approximately quarterly intervals and
under code provision A.2.7 of the Corporate Governance Code, the
Chairman of the Board should at least annually hold meetings with
the non-executive Directors (including independent non-executive
Directors) without the executive Directors present. During FY2018,
the Board held four meetings and Directors’ attendance records are

set out below:

EESEBNENRMUREA
RIBOFERTANTARXEAIIG &
FERTHHE EFCEREEFAHE
PR RNEBFE-R MRBEEEERT
AW TR FA27G EEETREED
BFEFATES(BRBUIFLTES) B
T—RATEFTRFENEE - N2018HREF
EAR EFQCRTHAEHE SEFHNWL
RS

Meeting(s)
Attended/Held
HE BT
Directors B BRRHY™
Executive Directors HITESE
Dr. Sun Yiu Kwong BRIBTIBE (FEFITHAAZ)

(Chairman and Chief Executive Officer) 4/4
Ms. Kwok Cheuk Kwan, Jacquen SBEE LI (BEFAAIIE)

(Managing Director) 4/4
Mr. Tsang On Yip, Patrick B ERE 4/4
Dr. Sun Man Kin, Michael R BB & 4/4
Mr. Lee Kar Chung, Felix TRPEE 4/4
Dr. Lee Pak Cheung Patrick B A (R201852 A28 EZ ()

(appointed on 28 February 2018) 2/2
Independent Non-executive Directors BUHHTESE
Mr. Lee Luen Wai, John BBS JP PHBRE(WNEFAEE X FHL) 4/4
Dr. Li Kwok Tung, Donald SBS JP FERBE (REFHEE X FHL) 4/4
Mr. Yeung Wing Sun, Mike BRI E 4/4
In addition, the Chairman held a meeting with the independent Jtb4) + EfE L HBIIEANITEZRIT— X

non-executive Directors without the presence of executive Directors.
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Notice incorporating the agenda for each regular Board meeting is
given to all Directors at least 14 days in advance. For other Board
meetings and Board committee meetings, reasonable notice will
be given. All Directors or Board committee members are given the
opportunity to include matters for discussion in the agenda. Meeting
agenda and accompanying meeting papers are sent to all relevant
Directors at least 3 days in advance of every regular Board meeting

or committee meeting.

The Company Secretary assists the Chairman of the Board and
the chairmen of Board committees in preparing meeting agendas
and ensures that the Corporate Governance Code as well as all
applicable laws and regulations are duly complied with. Minutes
of Board meetings and Board committee meetings are recorded in
sufficient details of the matters considered and decisions reached
at the relevant meetings. Draft and final versions of the minutes
in respect of Board meetings and Board committee meetings are
sent to all Directors or Board committee members respectively for
comment and records within a reasonable time after the relevant
meetings. All minutes are properly kept by the Company Secretary
and are available for the Directors’ and Board committee members’

inspection.

All Directors are entitled to have access to timely information in
relation to the Company’s business and make further enquiries
or retain independent professional advisors where necessary. The
management provides all relevant explanation and information
to the Board so as to give the Board the information it needs to
discharge its responsibilities. During FY2018, the management
has provided all members of the Board with adequate information
giving a balanced and understandable assessment of the Company’s

performance, position and prospects.
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GENERAL MEETINGS

During FY2018, the Company has convened and held one annual
general meeting (“AGM”) and one extraordinary general meeting
(“EGM”). Attendance records of the Directors at the general

meetings are set out as follows:

BRERRE

REMHFELEHINMT

R2018 B FERN » KRABIEBRKEBIT—
KEREBFRE ((RRAEFAKE]) R—XE
HEAe(([REEFIRE]) - EFHKE

Number of
meetings
attended/held
HES
BITRERY
AGM
Name of Directors EEgR BRRBEXRS
Executive Directors HITEE
Dr. Sun Yiu Kwong FEIE
(Chairman and Chief Executive Officer) (EEFTEABE) 1/1
Ms. Kwok Cheuk Kwan, Jacquen MEEZL
(Managing Director) (BEFHAHE) 171
Mr. Tsang On Yip, Patrick BRERE 11
Dr. Sun Man Kin, Michael RN EBREE 11
Mr. Lee Kar Chung, Felix FREXLE 171
Dr. Lee Pak Cheung, Patrick TAFEE
(appointed on 28 February 2018) (7201852 A28 B EZ ) 0/0
Independent Non-executive Directors BUHBITEE
Mr. Lee Luen Wai, John BBS /P FHELAE
(HEFEE X FHL) 171
Dr. Li Kwok Tung, Donald SBS JP FEfREE
(REFIEE - X-F#L) 1/1
Mr. Yeung Wing Sun, Mike R T, 171
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Directors’ Appointment, Re-election and Removal

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract
with the Company for a term of three years subject to the provision
of retirement and rotation of Directors under the Articles and the

provision under the service contract.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has entered into
a letter of appointment with the Company for a term of three years
commencing on the date of his appointment subject to the provision
of retirement and rotation of Directors under the Articles and the

provision under the letter of appointment.

The Articles provide that each Director is subject to retirement
from office by rotation and re-election once every three years and
that one-third (or the number nearest to but not less than one-third)
of the Directors shall retire from office every year at the annual
general meeting. Any Director appointed by the Board to fill a
casual vacancy shall hold office until the first general meeting after
his appointment and be subject to re-election at such meeting while
any Director appointed by the Board as additional Director shall be
subject to re-election at the next following annual general meeting.

Directors’ training and Professional Development

Every Director keeps abreast of responsibilities as a Director and of
the conduct, business activities and development of the Company.
Every newly appointed Director receives a comprehensive, formal
and tailored induction package covering the statutory and regulatory
obligations of Directors, organizational structure, policies,
procedures and codes of the Company, terms of reference of board
committees and charter of responsibilities of internal audit. The
Directors are encouraged to attend seminars and conferences to
enrich their knowledge in discharging their duties as a director. The
Company Secretary from time to time updates and provides written
training materials to the Directors, and organizes seminars on the
latest development of the Listing Rules, applicable laws, rules and
regulations relating to Directors’ duties and responsibilities.
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The Company Secretary maintains records of trainings received by
the Directors. The trainings received by the current Directors during

FY2018 are as follows:

NEAWMEBFESEIBIOLE - R2018
PRFE BEEEEXEINBERAT

Training

Mattershoe

Name of Directors EENA $ Y| g
Executive Directors HITEE

Dr. Sun Yiu Kwong
(Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)

Ms. Kwok Cheuk Kwan, Jacquen
(Managing Director)

Mr. Tsang On Yip, Patrick

Dr. Sun Man Kin, Michael

Mr. Lee Kar Chung, Felix

Dr. Lee Pak Cheung, Partick

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Lee Luen Wai, John BBS JP

Dr. Li Kwok Tung, Donald SBS JP

Mr. Yeung Wing Sun, Mike

Note: A. Corporate governance

B. Regulatory updates
C. Directors’ Duties
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Directors’ and officers’ Liabilities Insurance
The Company has arranged appropriate directors’ and officers’
liabilities insurance coverage for the Directors and officers of the

Company.

CODES FOR DEALING IN THE COMPANY’S

SECURITIES
The Company has adopted the Model Code as its own code for

dealings in the Company’s securities by the Directors.

Having made specific enquiry with all Directors, the Company
confirmed that the Directors have complied with the Model Code
during FY2018.

Relevant employees who are likely to be in possession of inside
information of the Group are also subject to compliance with the
Code of Conduct for Securities Transactions by Employees on terms
that are no less exacting than those set out in the Model Code.
To the best knowledge of the Company, there was no incident of
non-compliance of the Code of Conduct for Securities Transactions
by Employees during FY2018.

BOARD COMMITTEES

Remuneration Committee

The Company has established its Remuneration Committee with
written terms of reference, which is available at the Company’s
website at www.ump.com.hk and the Stock Exchange’s website at

www.hkexnews.hk.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and
structure for all Directors’ and senior management’s remuneration
and on the establishment of a formal and transparent procedure
for developing such remuneration policies. In arriving at its
recommendations to the Board, the Remuneration Committee
will consider salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities and employment conditions
elsewhere in the Group. The Committee either determines or makes
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration package of
individual executive Directors and senior management, and it also
makes recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of non-
executive Directors. The Remuneration Committee meets at least
twice a year and is provided with sufficient resources enabling it to

discharge its duties.
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The Remuneration Committee currently comprises three members,
including two independent non-executive Directors, namely
Dr. Li Kwok Tung, Donald SBS /P and Mr. Yeung Wing Sun, Mike,
and an executive Director, namely Mr. Tsang On Yip, Patrick.
Dr. Li Kwok Tung, Donald SBS /P serves as the chairman of the
Remuneration Committee. The composition of the Remuneration
Committee meets the requirements of chairmanship and

independence of the Listing Rules.

During FY2018, the Remuneration Committee had performed the

following works:

. determined and reviewed the remuneration policy of the

executive Directors;
. assessed the performance of executive Directors;
. made recommendations to the Board on the remuneration

packages of individual executive Directors and senior

management.

FHZESRMm=2KEAK  BEMEE
VINTESFTERELE (REFEE  LF
ML) RIGRETRERATESTERESRE -
FTERBE (REHFEE X FHL)EEH
MWEEETRF -FMZBEEMARTA LD
MBI EFEMIBULIERRTE ©

R2018BEFE  HFNEESERBITUTE
ﬁ%:

o FIEAUBBHTEFAFBIEEK

o FHERITEFHRR:

o BENRTEERSREZEABNTH
TFENEFSRIES -

The attendance records of the committee members to committee ZEEKEHNFLZEESHMNLEIIIWOT
meeting(s) are set out below:

Meeting(s)

Attended/Held

HE BT

Remuneration Committee Members FHMESENE SERE
Dr. Li Kwok Tung, Donald SBS JP (Chairman) FERE

(REAEE X F#HL) (L) 2/2

Mr. Yeung Wing Sun, Mike BT E 2/2

Mr. Tsang On Yip, Patrick BRESRE 2/2

Details of Directors’ emoluments for the year are disclosed in note 7
to the consolidated financial statements.
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Nomination Committee

The Company has established its Nomination Committee with
written terms of reference, which is available at the Company’s
website at www.ump.com.hk and the Stock Exchange’s website at

www.hkexnews.hk.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for regularly reviewing
the structure, size and diversity of the Board and making
recommendations to the Board on any proposed changes to
complement the Company’s corporate strategy. Its duties include
making recommendations to the Board on the selection of
individuals nominated for directorships, the appointment or re-
appointment of Directors and succession planning for Directors,
reviewing the leadership needs of the Company to ensure the
continued ability of the Company to compete effectively. The
Committee is also responsible for assessing the independence of
independent non-executive Directors and reviewing their annual
confirmations on independence. The Nomination Committee meets
at least once a year and is provided with sufficient resources to
perform its duties.

The Nomination Committee currently comprises three members,
including two independent non-executive Directors, namely
Mr. Lee Luen Wai, John BBS JP and Dr. Li Kwok Tung, Donald
SBS JP, and an executive Director, namely Dr. Sun Yiu Kwong.
Dr. Sun Yiu Kwong serves as the chairman of the Nomination
Committee. The composition of the Nomination Committee meets
the requirements of chairmanship and independence of the Listing
Rules.

During FY2018, the Nomination Committee had performed the
following works:

. reviewed the current structure, size and composition of the
Board;

e assessed the independence of independent non-executive
Directors;

3 reviewed the time commitment of the Directors; and

e  consider and recommend to the Board on the appointments of

new executive Director.
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The attendance records of the committee members to committee ZEE&KEHFEE€SANLHEIHIWNT
meeting(s) are set out below:
Meeting(s)
Attended/Held
HE BT
Nomination Committee Members REZEEHRE SERE
Dr. Sun Yiu Kwong (Chairman) FRRIBE (FE) 2/2
Mr. Lee Luen Wai, John BBS JP THELEE (WEAEE L F#HT) 2/2
Dr. Li Kwok Tung, Donald SBS JP FTERBE (REHEE  XF#HL) 2/2
Audit Committee EREES

The Company has established its Audit Committee with written
terms of reference, which is available at the Company’s website
at www.ump.com.hk and the Stock Exchange’s website at

www.hkexnews.hk.

The Audit Committee reports to the Board and holds regular
meetings to assist the Board in discharging its responsibilities
for effective financial reporting controls, internal controls and
risk management. The Committee monitors the integrity of the
Company’s financial statements, annual report and accounts
and half-year report and reviews significant financial reporting
judgments contained in them. It reviews, makes recommendations
and reports to the Board on findings relating to the financial
statements, reports and accounts, systems of internal control and
risk management and compliance issues on an annual basis. The
Audit Committee also oversees the Company’s relationship with
the external auditor, reviews auditor’s letter of engagement and
makes recommendations to the Board on the appointment and re-
appointment of external auditor. It is empowered to review and
monitor the external auditor’s independence and objectivity and
the effectiveness of the audit process in accordance with applicable
standards. It reviews external auditor’s management letter and any
material queries raised by the auditor to the management and the
management’s response. The Committee meets at least twice a year
and is provided with sufficient resources enabling it to discharge its
duties.
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The Audit Committee currently comprises three members, all of
whom are independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Lee
Luen Wai, John BBS JP, Dr. Li Kwok Tung, Donald SBS /P and
Mr.Yeung Wing Sun, Mike. Mr. Lee Luen Wai, John BBS JP serves
as the chairman of the Audit Committee. The composition of the
Audit Committee meets the requirements of chairmanship and

independence of the Listing Rules.

During FY2018, the Audit Committee had performed the following

works:

. reviewed the interim and annual financial statements and

made recommendation to the Board;

J reviewed the usage of annual caps on continuing connected

transactions of the Company;

. reviewed the remuneration, terms of engagement and the
independence of the external auditor and considered the re-

appointment of the external auditor;

J reviewed the arrangements for raising concerns about possible
improprieties in financial reporting, internal control or other

matters;
J reviewed the Group’s financial controls, risk management and
internal control systems and the effectiveness, adequacy of

resources and competency; and

. considered and reviewed the Environmental, Social and
Governance Report.
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The attendance records of the committee members to committee
meeting(s) are set out below:

HEZEEGRNLEFIIMT

]

A

Meeting(s)

Attended/Held

HE BT

Audit Committee Members EREEEHE BRXE
Mr. Lee Luen Wai, John BBS JP (Chairman) R B E (HEHEE A FH+)

(X&) 2/2

Dr. Li Kwok Tung, Donald SBS /P FERBE(REHAEE X FHL) 2/2

Mr. Yeung Wing Sun, Mike CE S 2/2

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Board is responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements which should give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the Group and of the financial performance and cash flows
for such reporting period. In preparing the financial statements,
the Board has adopted generally accepted accounting standards
in Hong Kong and suitable accounting policies and applied them
consistently, made judgments and estimates that are prudent, fair
and reasonable, and prepared the financial statements on a going
concern basis. The Board is responsible for ensuring that the Group
keeps proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable
accuracy at any time the financial position of the Group.

The Board is not aware of any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions which may cast significant doubt over the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. Accordingly, the
Board has continued to adopt the going concern basis in preparing

the financial statements.

The auditor is responsible for auditing and reporting its opinion on
the financial statements of the Group and the independent auditor’s
report for FY2018 is set out in the section headed “Independent

Auditor’s Report” of this annual report.
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INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board acknowledged its responsibility for the risk management
and internal control systems and overseeing their effectiveness.
Such systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate the
risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can only provide
reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement

or loss.

The Company has developed and adopted various risk management
procedures and guidelines with defined authority for implementation
by key business processes and office functions, including clinic
chain operations, business development, financial reporting, human
resources, information technology and handling and dissemination

of inside information.

All departments conducted internal control assessment regularly to
identify risks that potentially impact the business of the Group and
various aspects including key operational and financial processes,

regulatory compliance and information security.

The management, in coordination with department heads, assessed
the likelihood of risk occurrence, provide treatment plans, and
monitor the risk management progress, and reported to the Audit
Committee and the Board on all findings and the effectiveness of the
systems.

The Internal Audit Department, with assistance of external
professional firm engaged by the Company, is responsible for
providing the internal audit function and performing independent
review of the adequacy and effectiveness of the risk management

and internal control systems.

The Company also established a procedure to facilitate employees
of the Company to raise, in confidence, concerns about possible
improprieties in financial reporting, internal control or other matters
of the Company.
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During FY2018, the Board, in conjunction with the Audit
Committee, conducted a review of the effectiveness of the internal
control system of the Company and its subsidiaries, including the
adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience, training
programmes and budget of the Company’s accounting, internal audit
and financial reporting function. The Board considered that the
Group’s risk management and internal control systems for FY2018
was effective and adequate and no significant areas of concern has
been identified.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The fees in respect of audit and non-audit services provided to
the Company and its subsidiaries by the external auditor of the
Company for FY2018 are set out below:

M08 BFE - EZEHRAERZEE
BARRBAREMBARANNEZERGRS
M BRARBEEG  ARBEZRMBE
BBETEHNER BIEERER UK
BETIMEINBIREREBAEENRS
R-EFERARNEEN2018MBFEHE
REERANERVEBENTE LEE
REIMERHIFE -

B

BB

R2018MRFE - AR BIMNEZBEEN AR
A Ko E B 8 1 AR A% BV FEAX BUR 75 1O B
TEHWAT

HK$’000

T

Audit service % BR S 2,200
Non-audit services* FERZ B R 361
2,561

3 Non-audit services include environmental, social and governance  * FERERBEERR HEREAEMRE

advisory services and an agreed-upon procedure.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Convening an extraordinary General Meeting

Article 58 of the Articles of the Company provides that any one or
more members of the Company holding at the date of deposit of
the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company shall at all times have the right, by written requisition to
the Board or the Company Secretary, to require an extraordinary
general meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of
any business specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall
be held within 2 months after the deposit of such requisition. If
within 21 days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene
such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do
so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by
the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Putting Forward Proposals at General Meetings

A Shareholder may lodge a notice of his intention to propose
any person (other than himself/herself) for election as a Director
together with a notice signed by the person to be proposed of his/
her willingness to be elected to the head office of the Company
or at the registration office where the branch register of members
of the Company is kept provided that the minimum length of the
period, during which such notice(s) are given shall be at least 7
days and that (if the notices are submitted after the despatch of
the notice of the general meeting appointed for such election) the
period for lodgment of such notice(s) shall commence on the day
after the despatch of the notice of the general meeting appointed for
such election and end no later than 7 days prior to the date of such

general meeting.

Other than the above concerning a proposal of a person for election
as a Director, there are no provisions in the Articles of Association
or the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands for putting forward
proposals of new resolutions by Shareholders at general meetings.
Shareholders may follow the procedures set out above to convene
an extraordinary general meeting for any business specified in such
written requisition.
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Putting Forward enquiries to the Board
For putting forward any enquiries to the Board, Shareholders may
send written enquiries to the Company. The Company will not

normally deal with verbal or anonymous enquiries.

Contact Details
Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests as mentioned
above to the following:

Address: Room 1404-1408, 14th Floor
Wing On House
71 Des Voeux Road Central
Hong Kong

Fax: (852) 2511 1152

Email: ir@ump.com.hk

For the avoidance of doubt, Shareholders must deposit and send
the original duly signed written requisition, notice or statement, or
enquiry (as the case may be) to the above address and provide their
full name, contact details and identification in order to give effect
thereto. Shareholders” information may be disclosed as required by

law.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company considers that effective communication with
Shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and
investor understanding of the Group’s business performance
and strategies. The Company endeavours to maintain good
communication with Shareholders and in particular, through its
annual general meeting and other extraordinary general meetings.
At the annual general meeting, Directors (or their delegates as
appropriate) are available to meet Shareholders and answer their
enquiries. The Directors, Company Secretary or appropriate
members of senior management, where appropriate, also respond to
inquiries from Shareholders and investors on a timely basis.

Under the Listing Rules, all resolutions proposed at Shareholders’
meetings must be voted by poll except where the chairman of
a general meeting, in good faith and in compliance with the
Listing Rules, decides to allow resolutions to be voted on by the
Shareholders on a show of hands. Details of the poll procedures
will be explained during the proceedings of Shareholders’ meetings.
The poll voting results will be released and posted on the websites
of the Stock Exchange at www.hkexnews.hk and the Company at

www.ump.com.hk.

To provide effective communication, the Company maintains a
website at www.ump.com.hk. All the financial information and other
disclosures including, inter alia, annual reports, interim reports,
announcements and Articles are available under the section of

“About us — Investor Relations” on the Company’s website.

Shareholders can direct their questions about their shareholdings
to the Company’s Share Registrars. To the extent the requisite
information of the Company is publicly available, Shareholders
and the investment community may at any time make a request
for such information. Designated contacts, email addresses and
enquiry lines of the Company have been provided in the “Corporate
Information” section of this annual report to enable the Shareholders
and the investment community to make any enquiry in respect of the
Company.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS
During FY2018, the Company has not made any changes to its

memorandum and Articles of Association.
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ABOUT THIS REPORT

Overview

This report is the second Environment, Social, Governance
(hereinafter ‘ESG’) Report (“ESG Report”) published by the Company,
which describes our relationship with key stakeholders, and our
approach in complying with applicable regulations and guidelines
regarding professional ethics, provision of quality healthcare
services and environmental protection. The reporting year of this
ESG Report is aligned with our financial year.

Basis of Compiling the Report

This ESG Report was compiled in accordance with the
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide as set
out in Appendix 27 of the Listing Rules. Through engaging key
stakeholders, we have identified issues substantially important to
them and covered these issues in this report.

Reporting Scope and Boundary
Unless otherwise specified, the contents and metrics reported in this

ESG Report cover our operations in Hong Kong.

Sources of Data and Assurance to Reliability

The data reported in this ESG Report was prepared based on our
internal statistical reports, internal policies and other internal
documents. The Board hereby confirms that no false or misleading

statements were made in this ESG Report.

Board Approval
Upon review of the management team, this ESG Report was
approved by the Board on 27 September 2018.

56 UMP HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED

AR A&

BmE

ABEDARRABTENE_NHRE HLER
BaR(THIRE HeakEn) @E (R
BoHeghkEAHmE])  ERHARME
TBRNEZHNBER UERRMAEETE
MEXER RHEELEERRGLRERE
B8 A AR ) S 38 51 77 E TR EX B9 07 # 0 ARIR
B oHEREARENERSFREARMNY
BFEHERT -

BB ENEE

ARE B RERRE THIZR LR RN
BT EMENERE e RERRERES
MR - BRETERNEN2E  RMDH
AMEHMAMEFREENEELRARSEH
wEEEE -

REHMERFAR

BRRBEREAIN ARE HEREARBSEA
EHRBOANBTREERERERMRBENE
i%o

BRI MR K AT SR

ARE HERERABRSHERNEHTIR
BERMANAGRTRE - ABBEREMBA
MXHMmE - E=ZSZUHER  AERK
BRE #HEkBeREAFELEAERRIR
BERat -

EEgHtE

KEEEKRENR  ARE e hERRK
ER2018F9A27BEE =S -

2018 ANNUAL REPORT



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

ESG and our Company

UMP is one of the leading private clinic groups in Hong Kong
and offering wide range of healthcare services through our clinic
chain and panel network. We partner with corporations and
insurance companies in the design and administration of corporate
healthcare benefits plans for, and provides healthcare services to,
such members, employees and policyholders. We are operating
over 60 self-branded clinics and medical centres and providing
clinical healthcare services to our individual clients and medical
services, dental services and other auxiliary services. Together with
our strategic partners, our PRC clinic network now covers Beijing,
Shanghai, Guangzhou and Shenzhen.

Since the Group’s inception in 1990, we have dedicated ourselves
to promoting a healthier community by providing convenient,
accessible, affordable and coordinated healthcare services to
the public. As the Group continues to define the standards of
excellence in our healthcare services, we ensure that we act with
integrity and comply with applicable laws and regulations. We
maintain constructive relationships with other stakeholders including
investors, suppliers and the wider community, as well as minimise
adverse environmental impacts.

Robust ESG management enhances our competitiveness as it
facilitates understanding of stakeholders’ needs and meeting
their expectations. Through maintaining various communication
channels and strengthening our relationship with customers and
patients, the Group is able to obtain contract customers and meet
demand from patients in a timely manner, and anticipate their
needs as well as requirements for efficient and reliable healthcare
solutions. This is helpful for the Group in allocation of resources for
developing robust systems and various infrastructure to increase our
competitiveness. It also strengthens our ability to work with a large
network of doctors and specialists and administer healthcare benefit

plans.

20185 3R

RE - HERERBE

BRI -HEREREALAQT
BEBBREBARNLEZHERZ —
BRBMANEHD AR T ERKIRTREDE
e BB R ARG RS o TPIER X MR A A
EERGERERELXBRRBBEMNE
W%ﬁﬁ%&%ﬁﬁjmﬁa~ﬁﬁﬁﬁ$
A AREERRERS - RFRELEE60
MERmELHREHT L - LM ﬁ1
AB PR ERR SR RZRY - ARE
BRTS ~ TF R IRF R H AL 8 B AR A - $Hﬁﬁ
MR PEZAEBRKRESIL R
£~ BINEGRY -

BAEEMNI990F K AR  BFFEB/A A
FRIREESN - FE HERAFANEERE
R7 - BMAORAERER - AEETH L
BEBHEREREHOZE  ABEREMIAH
BITEWETHEARERERAN - RAEE
B HERRFEREATREHEMBOES
BAZRUENBER  UREREHREHR

F| 52 2

BErIRE e RERAEEAHEMTH
FNENTEREIFNENRE - KM
FEMOBEFS - RAEZBEFTRNER
RERE lﬁ%ﬁ&%%%@%’ﬁﬁ%ﬁ
ERMENEFPLBER HEBENFTR

It fIs R SEM B %%KMﬁﬁk
NBEERFR AP AKE D KRE RN
REE2NAGRZRERRE  EMEAFR
MEE S ASMERfMERRBERE
R A ER ERBERREENTEIMEE

BHeBBEBERAR 57



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RE - HEREREBE

Compliance with regulations

The Group’s business operation is subject to extensive laws and
regulations relating to, among others, registration and licensing of
clinics and processing of radioactive substance and apparatuses,
treatment of clinic wastes, marketing and promotion of products and
services, drugs possession and distribution, as well as protection of
confidentiality and personal data privacy.

All medical practitioners engaged by the Group shall have valid
and subsisting practising certificate(s) and qualification(s) to
provide the healthcare and medical services and to manage and
handle the drugs and pharmacy related issues. All doctors, dentists
and certain auxiliary services providers have to comply with the
code of professional conduct or discipline as applicable to them.
Such requirements help to promote and safeguard the quality of
healthcare services. We also comply with environmental protection
laws and exercise special caution in the handling and management
of clinical waste so as to minimize any danger to public health and
risk of pollution to the environment. In addition, we also maintain a
system to protect all personal data, medical and health records of all
our patients in accordance with the privacy laws and regulations.

The internal policies and systems are in place to ensure the
compliance with the laws and regulations applicable to our
business. Written procedures and guidelines are formulated and
distributed to our staff and medical practitioners. We also offer to
the staff several training and development programmes to refresh
and enhance their sense of compliance and to provide the useful
information about recent development in the laws and regulations.
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Our management of ESG Aspects

We consider managing ESG risks as an important driver to the
sustainable growth of our business. The Board is responsible for
evaluating and determining our ESG-related risks, and ensuring the
appropriate and effective ESG risk management and internal control
systems are in place.

Our corporate social responsibility policy (“CSR Policy”) outlines
our commitment to protect the environment, contribute to
the community, implement decent labour practices, maintain
occupational health and safety, protect patients’ rights and purchase
responsibly. The CSR Policy applies to all our staff. We also take
certain measures to monitor the quality of services delivered to the
customer by our affiliated practitioners.

The Group has set up a Quality Assurance & Safety Committee,
which consists of medical practitioners and senior management of
the Group, which is responsible for providing advice to the Group
on professional standards, clinical governance, clinical risk and
continuous professional development of clinical and professional
services. The Quality Assurance & Safety Committee also formulates
and adopts policies and procedures concerning the healthcare and
medical services of the Group.

Corporate Governance

The Group has complied with the Code Provisions in the Corporate
Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules.
Three board committees, namely Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee, have been established for
overseeing different functions in accordance with their respective
terms of reference. All existing policies and practices in relation to
management and corporate matters are reviewed by the Board on
a regular basis. More information on governance and the Board is
available in the Corporate Governance section of the annual report.
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STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT AND
MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

We seek to involve our stakeholders in our ESG management so as
to align business practices with public needs and expectations and
to achieve sustainable development of the Group. Key stakeholders
have been involved in certain engagement sessions to discuss and
review the areas of attention in relation to this ESG report.

OUR SERVICES

UMP serves large number of patients and visitors who come from
the healthcare benefits plans as well as self-paid patients who
are not covered by healthcare benefit plan. We understand our
important role in the healthcare industry and community health.
We pay great attention to the safety and quality of patient care
as well as customer satisfaction. The Group has implemented a
set of management policies and procedures and complied with
the relevant laws and regulations. During the reporting year, no
accusation is found in our Group regarding medical matters.

Service quality assurance

Our Quality Assurance & Safety Committee keeps monitoring the
performance of our clinics and providing advice on the quality
assurance on clinical services and patient care.

Safeguarding Patients’ rights

All patients and visitors of UMP are treated with equality in a
welcoming and non-discriminatory manner. All our patients and
visitors are free from discrimination based on age, race, sex, marital
status, pregnancy, disability or any other characteristic protected by
the anti-discrimination laws.
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UMP respects, protects and promotes patient rights. We make
efforts to establish and maintain a positive and open relationship
with our customers with a view to enhancing the effectiveness of
the health care process. We sustain a good culture to protect the
patients’ rights that include the right to receive medical advice and
treatment which meets the accepted standards of care and quality,
right to access information about the health services available and
their associated charges, right to be given a clear description of the
medical condition, which diagnosis, prognosis and of the treatment
proposed including common risks and appropriate alternatives, right
to know the potential side-effects of the medication, right of access
to medical information, right to accept or refuse any medication,
investigation or treatment, right to have privacy, dignity and
religious and cultural beliefs respected, right to have information
relating to the medical condition kept confidential, right to make
complaint and to have complaint dealt with promptly and fairly.

Protection of Patients’ privacy

Collection and documentation of patients’ personal information,
especially their medical history, is essential for provision of
appropriate treatment. The Group complies with the Personal Data
(Privacy) Ordinance relating to the collection, retention, handling,
disclosure and use of personal data, including medical history. To
avoid information leakage to unauthorised third parties, we maintain
an effective data storage system and regularly monitor and evaluate
the risk of improper use of information. Procedures have been set up
to guide employees on handling printed and electronic documents
with personal data.

Patient Relationship Management

Professional and quality service starts with listening to our patients’
needs and concerns. Through establishing communication platforms,
we hope to engage and build stronger bonds with our patients.
We maintain a mobile app, named “UMPRRTEE”, to access our
latest information about the availability of our doctors, the range of
healthcare services offered, and the location and opening hours of
our medical centres.

In addition, we offer several channels, including our company’s
website, customer hotline and customer satisfaction survey, to
facilitate the customers to give their feedback and opinions on
our services. We keep track of the customers’ complaints. If the
complaint is related to medical and dental practice, investigation
will be conducted in a just and fair manner.
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Clinic Environment and Infection Control

Environmental hygiene at our medical centres is given the top
priority at UMP. Through the introduction of appropriate pathogen
control, the Group believes that safe delivery of our services can be
achieved.

UMP maintains good ventilation and illumination system in
all its medical centres which deliver health and cosy clinic
environment. Sufficient water supply facilities, sanitary facilities
and hand-washing facilities are available to our patients and staff.
We also take measures to prevent the transmission of disease within
clinics, include patient triage and placement, strict sterilization
procedures of reusable medical equipment, displaying posters of
cough etiquette and steps of hand hygiene in prominent position
in the clinics. We also offer training on clinical infection control to
clinical staff with the aim of reducing transmissible disease at our
clinics and improving staff knowledge on epidemic diseases.

Proper handling of waste generated is also a means of controlling
infection. For our approach to treating clinical and general waste,
please refer to “Our environment — Treatment of waste”.

Professional Practitioners

The professionalism of our doctors, dentists, auxiliary service
providers and other medical professionals in the UMP Network
defines who we are. Our reputation as a leading healthcare solutions
provider is built on the skills, competence and integrity of our
network of practitioners. It is, therefore, crucial for the Group to
carefully select our practitioners and regularly review their service
quality.

We adhere to a deliberated process to identify and attract qualified
and suitable practitioners to join our network, and also ensure all
our practitioners are competent to deliver quality healthcare services
to our customers. The Group also provides necessary resources to
support the practitioners to enhance their skills and knowledge.
Policies on selection, remuneration and training are regularly
reviewed by senior management to deliver clinical care that up to
industrial standards and promote sustainable growth of the Group’s
business.
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Our relationship with practitioners

All medical practitioners practising in UMP medical centres are
duly qualified and competent to deliver services to our customers
and patients and subject to professional code of conducts. Affiliated
practitioners registered in our panel network are considered as
suppliers of the Group and do not exclusively serve the Group. The
affiliated practitioners are selected and engaged by a dedicated team
through regular clinic visits.

It is crucial for us to maintain a network of practitioners covering a
vast geographical area. We consider this as one of our competitive
advantages in the corporate healthcare solution market.

Reliable Suppliers

Apart from our affiliated practitioners, we procure medicine and
medical equipment from pharmaceutical companies and suppliers of
medical consumables. The Group adopts a centralised procurement
system where the Group purchases and stocks up on drug items and
medical consumables centrally in bulk and distributes to individual
medical centres as and when required. The medical centres are
responsible for maintaining their own drug items and medical
consumables inventory. This mechanism enables effective control on
the quality and costs of procurement as well as the risks associated
with corruption and bribery.

The qualifications of suppliers as required by applicable laws, and
whether the products or services fit our purpose are our top priorities
in making purchasing decisions. While the environmental and social
risks of our supply chain, such as pollution and infringement of
labour rights, are considered low in general, the environmental and
social factors are not determining as we select our suppliers.

OUR EMPLOYEES
As at 30 June 2018, the Group had a total of 461 full-time

employees which comprises corporate staff and clinical staff. They
provide tremendous contribution in the operation of our business
and development of the Group. Talent attraction, retention and
development create sustained competitive advantage for our
business.

We have introduced family-friendly employment policies and
practices at work to foster a pro-family culture. The Group was
awarded as a Family-friendly Employer in 2016 by the Family
Council as a recognition of our efforts’.

L Family-friendly employers are awarded bi-annually.
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B HBREARE

As at 30 June 2018, the employee compositions (in numbers of #2018F6H308 LR - T - Fhe 4
employees) by gender, employment category, age group and RFIRii@E|DHESHEK (BEAS) LT :

geographical region were as follows:

Composition by gender
R4 B & 2 B AR

15%

85%

Female Male
u i E:lkd

Composition by age group
RERAERE D AR

22%

48%

30%

W 31-49 <30 M >50

Composition by employment category

RIBEIDHAERK
30%
70%
Clinical staff Corporate staff
PHBE REHE

Composition by geographical region
Rt B 8D WAERK
2%

22% ‘

76%

Hong Kong PRC Macau
n B il L

The overall employee turnover rate of the Group during the FY2018  M2018M I EFE - AEEMNEEEE R KX
was 41%. The turnover rate of clinic staff was higher than corporate  541% * ZFIBENRAES R A AIKE
staff, with the ratio being 46% and 29% respectively. In terms of 73 Bl R46%5&29% ° 2 5 & 4 Rl 51 » 305% 3k
the age profile, the employees aged 30 or below had the highest N TH{EERAKER®E * /566% ; M505% 5K
turnover rate of 66% while the group aged 50 or above had the LA _EEVZEBIRKEAIRKIE © H13% o

lowest turnover rate of 13%.
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Our Employment Policy
Together with our employees, we embrace a disciplined and
collaborative working environment.

The Group has implemented a set of human resources management
policies and procedures and complies with the relevant laws and
regulations, including but not limited to the Employment Ordinance,
the Sex Discrimination Ordinance, the Disability Discrimination
Ordinance and the Labour Law of the PRC and the Labour Contract
Law of the PRC. During the reporting period, the Group did not
aware of any non-compliance with laws and regulations relating to
compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working
hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, anti-discrimination, and other
benefits and welfare.

Detailed rules and guidelines in the Staff Handbook lay out our
expectations for employee conduct as well as the employees’
rights and responsibilities in the workplace are set out in the Staff
Handbook which is accessible to all employees.

The Group offers competitive remuneration and performance
incentives, such as discretionary bonus, share options scheme
and share award scheme, in order to motivate employees in the
continued pursuit of the Group’s goals and objectives.

In addition, the Group provides other benefits including
comprehensive medical insurance, employment compensation
insurance, directors and officers liability insurance and mandatory
provident fund to employees. Employees are also entitled to
various leaves, including annual leave, maternity leave, paternity
leave, marriage leave and examination leave. The Group also
offers allowance for regular departmental gathering and organised
recreational activities such as Christmas party and annual dinner for
the staff to relax and to enhance the harmonious spirt throughout the
Group.
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Employee Development

Promoting employee development is the Group’s long-term
initiative. In addition to mandatory orientation training, we arrange
for and sponsor our clinical staff to receive appropriate external
training relevant to their duties, for example training on injection,
practice blood taking and pharmaceutical dispensing and other skill
and knowledge related to their duties. Professional support also
ensures our employees to effectively manage and administer the
Group’s operations. We are also extending the training programme
to enhance the clinical support and customer services.

All our employees are subject to the appraisal system which
regularly review their job performance and potential development.
While appraisals encourage employees to continuously improve,
this process helps align employees’ personal goals with the Group’s
expectations and objectives. Therefore, the results obtained provide
a valuable reference for management to reassess our staffing policy,
formulate future training plans and identify promotion opportunities.

Health and Safety at Work

We are devoted to safeguarding the health and safety of each
employee and aim to incorporate occupational health and safety
into our business strategy, operations and activities to minimise
the safety hazards. During the year, the Group strictly complied
with all relevant laws and regulations on occupational health and
safety, including but not limited to Occupational Safety and Health
Ordinance and the laws of the PRC on prevention and control of
occupational diseases.

The Group places strong emphasis on infection control. Infection
precautions apply to all clinics operated by the Group. We take
proactive steps to convey safety instructions to the clinic staff and
promote their awareness of infection control. Our clinic setting
also equipped with infection prevention facilities, which include
hand-washing facilities, adequate surgical masks, respirators and
personal protective equipment, sputum collection isolator as well as
sharps handling and clinical waste disposal measures.
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Safety procedures and good housekeeping practices are
implemented at our clinics in accordance with applicable
regulations and guidelines. Further, we take a proactive approach
to improve the health and safety at work by requesting our staff to
report all identified safety hazards and unsafe medical procedures
to the clinic-in-charge and the Human Resources & Administration
Department.

We also set out the General Office Safety and Housekeeping Rules
which applies to our employees. Special medical equipment, such
as irradiating apparatuses, can only be operated by certified staff.
Further, regular training concerning the safe and proper use of
medical equipment is provided to clinical staff.

In FY2018, five working days have been lost due to occupational
injury.

Anti-corruption and Business ethics

As a professional healthcare service provider, we strive to maintain
high ethical standards. As the Group continues to grow, we will
work with our employees to maintain our strong ethical values.

There is no tolerance to any form of corruption at UMP and
we strictly complied with the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance.
Guidelines in the Staff Handbook has formally established our
expectations for our employees when receiving gifts by staff from
suppliers and clients. The staff shall report the gift to their supervisor
and Human Resources & Administration Department in accordance
with the guidelines. The guidelines also offer several alternative
ways to deal with the gifts, which include returning the gift with
a letter explaining the Group’s policy and making donation to the
charity.

The Group encourages openness, accountability and transparency.
Compliant handling policy is in place in case of any inappropriate
behaviour or violations of the Group’s Code of Conduct. During the
reporting year, no legal cases regarding corruption were brought
against the Group or our employees.
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OUR ENVIRONMENT

The Group is aware of the environmental impact of and risks
resulting from our operations, from the generation of waste to the
consumption of energy and other resources. We take responsibility
for our operations by incorporating a commitment to environmental
protection and conservation of resources into our CSR policy.
While maintaining the reliability of services and highest standard of
hygiene is an overriding priority, it is our policy to:

J strictly comply with the requirements of applicable
environmental laws and standards.

J give due consideration to environmental sustainability in our
corporate decision-making process and consider environmental
impacts of our services throughout the whole life cycle.

. actively minimize the impact of our operations on the
environment through energy saving, waste reduction and
recycling.

. raise employees’ awareness on environmental issues and enlist
their support in improving our environmental performance.

Treatment of Waste

The operations of the Group are subject to environmental
regulations, including those relating to medical waste disposal.
This include Hong Kong’s Code of Practice for the Management of
Clinical Waste and the PRC’s Regulations on the Administration
of Medical Wastes. We recognise the potential risk to both the
environment and human health if medical waste is not properly
disposed. It is our duty to handle waste in a legal, safe and
professional manner.
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Written procedures in relation to handling medical waste have been
effectively implemented at UMP medical centres to ensure that
waste is properly managed and safely disposed of. We dispose of
all medical waste generated at our medical centres in Sharps Boxes,
which are further sealed and labelled. Medical wastes are stored at
a designated area inside our centres until they are collected by a
licensed waste collector once a month for further treatment. Record
of the medical waste are kept with traceable information such as
date and address of delivery, quantity, and the name of licensed
collector. Training is provided to all our clinical staff to make sure
they are well aware of the procedures. During the reporting vyear,
approximately 4.4 tonnes of medical waste were handled at our
medical centres, including but not limited to used tweezers, used
syringes, contaminated pads and cotton balls, used suction tubes for
computer tomography, human tissue specimens after examination,
dental amalgams and expired medicine.

In addition to medical waste, our medical centres generate a
significant amount of general, non-hazardous waste, which includes
paper, face masks, plastic gloves, drug packaging, disposable gowns
and bedding, and other uncontaminated containers. These types
of waste are handled separately from medical waste, but also with
care.

Non-hazardous waste disposed totalled approximately 1,344,390
litre. To maintain hygiene at our clinics and protect our patients
from infection, we consider using disposable items necessary and
room for reducing non-hazardous waste is limited. It is our policy to
educate our staff to avoid unnecessary consumption and disposal of
materials. We are anticipating the Municipal Solid Waste Charging
Scheme but the financial impact to the Group is immaterial based on
the waste charging details announced by the Environment Bureau,
HKSAR.

Resource Consumption

The provision of healthcare services at UMP involves the
consumption of paper. The consumption of paper in our medical
centres is mainly used for patient registration forms, medical records
and prescription labels. We reduced our impact by recycling the
used paper. The Group has been exploring opportunities to upgrade
and enhance our clinical management and administrative IT systems
in order to achieve optimal use of resources. For instance, the
Group is planning to upgrade the Group’s E-Claims system and
electronic medical records software, which is expected to reduce the
consumption of paper.
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Electricity consumption is the most significant source of energy
consumption at UMP. Electricity consumption at medical centres
is mainly due to the use of medical equipment, for example
sterilisation with high temperature and x-ray imaging apparatuses,
and general lighting. The use of medical equipment at medical
centres is, however, inevitable for diagnosis and treatment. The
technical competence of equipment is our top priority in making
purchasing decisions and energy rating is a secondary priority.
Nevertheless, we continuously explore energy conservation
initiatives to reduce energy consumption from other energy sources.
We have installed LED lighting in some of our medical centres.
In FY2018, the Group purchased 1,772.3 MWh of electricity with
intensity 0.00516 MWAh/visiting patient, translating to 1,062.6
tonnes CO, equivalent of greenhouse gases.

Packaging is distributed along with drugs and are dispensed
to patients. Such packaging is essential for keeping medicine
appropriate for consumption. As such, we see limited potential in
significant reduction of the consumption of packaging materials. In
FY2018, 4,240 kg of packaging materials have been distributed.

OUR COMMUNITY

It is our mission to promote public health in the communities we
serve. Besides providing excellent healthcare service to our patients,
we make an effort to care for the health and well-being of the wider
public. Our continual commitment in taking the responsibility
to care for the community has gained us recognition as a Caring
Company, awarded by the Hong Kong Council of Social Services.

During the year, we focused our resources in raising awareness
on public health. By leveraging our knowledge and resources,
the Group has published health education leaflets, and organised
healthcare seminars and exhibitions. UMP is a corporate partner
of Darkness to Go Campaign of Orbits to show our commitment
to fighting blindness and vision impairment around the world. The
Group also participate in Carol Singing Festival organised by Child
Development Matching Fund, a poverty relief initiative introduced
by the Hong Kong Government. We also donated the used
computers and equipment to Caritas Hong Kong while we consider
it would be a good way to reduce the electronic waste and also
support the needy.
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Aspect B7: Anticorruption
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General Disclosure
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Information on:
(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant
laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on
the issuer relating to bribery,
extortion, fraud and money
laundering.
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The Directors are pleased to present their report together with the
audited consolidated financial statements for FY2018.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Details
of the principal activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in
note 1 to the consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group during the year and a
discussion on the Group’s future business development are set out
in “Chairman Statement” on pages 4 to 8 of this annual report and
in “Management Discussion and Analysis“on pages 9 to 26 of this
annual report, which forms part of this report of Directors. The
financial risk management objectives and policies of the Group are
set out in note 45 to the consolidated financial statements. Besides,
the potential risks and uncertainties faced by the Group, key
relationship between the Group and its employees, customers and
suppliers, the environmental policies of the Group and compliance
with the relevant laws and regulations which have significant impact
are set out below.

KEY RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Groups’ results and operations are subject to various factors
with the key risks summarised below:

Strategy Risk
As part of business strategy, the Group has recently begun to expand
its operations to certain major cities in the PRC. As the Group
has very limited experience in the PRC market, such expansion
strategies are subject to uncertainties and risks such as strain on
managerial, operational and financial resources, competition with
existing healthcare services providers in the PRC, differences in
the business, regulatory and political environment, difficulties
in obtaining the requisite permits, licences, certificates or other
government approvals in connection with the Group’s operation
in the PRC, difficulties in establishing a brand,

new customer base, difficulties in recruiting skilled and qualified

reputation and

healthcare professionals and management personnel, and difficulties
in securing suitable premises for the medical centres. In addition,
the private healthcare market in the PRC is still developing.
Medical expenses of corporate employees are currently covered
by mandatory government insurance programmes. There is no
assurance that corporations in the PRC will be willing to top up
healthcare benefits payment for their employees and offer additional

healthcare services by private providers, such as the Group.
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Reputation Risk

The Group’s success in Hong Kong depends significantly on the
recognition of its brand and reputation as a leading corporate
healthcare solutions provider. However, Doctors, Dentists and
Auxiliary Services Providers working in the Group may from time
to time be subject to complaints, allegations or legal actions
regarding the adequacy of patient care, treatment outcome and
medical services provided, which may harm the business, results of
operations, financial condition, brand and reputation of the Group.

Compliance Risk

The Group’s business operations, Doctors, Dentists and Auxiliary
Services Providers in the Group’s network working in Hong Kong,
Macau and the PRC are subject to extensive laws, regulations
and licensing requirements, any failure to comply with such laws,
regulations or licensing requirement could harm the Group’s
business, results of operations, financial condition, brand and
reputation.

KEY RELATIONSHIPS BETWEEN THE GROUP
AND ITS EMPLOYEES, CUSTOMERS AND
SUPPLIERS

The Group fully understands that employees, customers and
suppliers are the key to our sustainable and stable development.
We are committed to establishing a close relationship with our
employees, enhancing cooperation with our suppliers and providing
high-quality services to our customers so as to ensure the Group’s

sustainable development.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES

As a responsible corporation, the Group recognises the importance
of good environmental stewardship. In this connection, the Group
strictly adopted and implemented policies and procedures to ensure
environmental protection. To the best knowledge of the Directors,
the Group has complied with all the relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the Group in relation to its business
including health and safety, workplace conditions, employment
and the environment. During FY2018, no environmental claims,
lawsuits, penalties or administrative sanctions were reported to our

management.
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COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group’s operations are mainly carried out by the Company’s
subsidiaries in Hong Kong, Macau and the PRC while the Company
is a holding company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with
its Shares listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. Our
establishments and operations accordingly shall comply with
relevant laws and regulations in the Cayman Islands, Hong Kong,
Macau and the PRC. During FY2018, our businesses were in
compliance with all the relevant laws and regulations in Cayman
Islands, Hong Kong, Macau and the PRC in all material aspects.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS
The profit of the Group for FY2018 and the Group’s financial

position as at 30 June 2018 are set out in the consolidated financial
statements on pages 120 to 123 of this annual report.

The Board proposed the payment of a final dividend of HK2.35 cents
per Share for FY2018 (FY2017: HK2.2 cents). The proposed final
dividend will be subject to approval of shareholders of the Company
at the 2018 AGM to be held on Thursday, 15 November 2018 and is
payable to shareholders of the Company whose names appear on the
register of members of the Company on Friday, 7 December 2018. It
is expected that the final dividend will be paid on or about Friday,
21 December 2018.

Together with the interim dividend of HK0.55 cent per Share paid
in April 2018, the total distribution of dividend by the Company for
FY2018 will be HK2.9 cents per Share (FY2017: HK2.7 cents per
Share).

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For determining the entitlement to attend and vote at the 2018
AGM, the register of members of the Company will be closed from
Monday, 12 November 2018 to Thursday, 15 November 2018,
both days inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares will
be registered. In order to qualify as members entitled to attend and
vote at the meeting, investors should lodge all transfers of shares
accompanied by the relevant share certificates and transfer forms
with the Company’s branch share registrar, Tricor Investor Services
Limited, at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East,
Hong Kong for registration no later than 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 9
November 2018.
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For determining the entitlement to the proposed final dividend, the
register of members of the Company will be closed on Friday, 7
December 2018, during which period no transfer of shares will be
registered. In order to qualify for the entitlement to the proposed
final dividend, all transfers of shares accompanied by the relevant
share certificates and transfer forms must be lodged with the
Company’s branch share registrar, Tricor Investor Services Limited,
at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong
for registration no later than 4:30 p.m. on Thursday, 6 December
2018.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
On 24 July 2018, the Group has completed an acquisition of 70%

equity interest in a group of companies which is engaged in the
provision of medical physiotherapy service in Hong Kong from an
independent third party for a consideration of HK$28,470,000, out
of which a deposit of HK$6,000,000 was paid by the Group during
the reporting year and the remaining balance of consideration was
fully settled on 23 July 2018.

As per the announcements of the Company dated 27 July 2018
and 30 August 2018, the Company entered into a legally binding
memorandum of understanding with Zheng He pursuant to which
the Company agreed to issue the unlisted warrants conferring Zheng
He (or any company or trust under the control of Mr. Law Siu Wabh,
Eddie nominated by Zheng He) to subscribe for 110,411,000 shares
(representing (i) approximately 14.61% of the total issued shares as
at 27 July 2018; (ii) approximately 12.75% of the Company’s issued
shares capital as enlarged by the issue of the warrant shares), at the
exercise price of HK$2.06 per warrant share. The issue of warrants
is subject to the entry of a formal agreement and fulfilment of the
condition(s) therein, among others, the obtaining of the approval of
Shareholders at an extraordinary general meeting. Please refer to the
announcements of the Company dated 27 July 2018 and 30 August
2018 for details.

As per the announcement of the Company dated 6 September
2018, the Company entered into three agreements for a term
up to 30 June 2021 to renew its Existing Continuing Connected
Transaction Agreements as disclosed in the Prospectus, namely, the
Existing Consultancy Agreement with Dr. Patrick Lee, the Existing
Medical Services Framework Agreement and the Existing Property
Leasing Framework Agreement. Relevant details of the agreements
and the transactions contemplated thereunder are set out in the
announcement dated 6 September 2018.
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Save as aforesaid, there were no material subsequent events
undertaken by the Company or by the Group after 30 June 2018 and
up to the date of this report.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results and assets, liabilities and non-
controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial years,
as extracted from the audited financial statements, is set out on
page 263. This summary does not form part of the audited financial

statements.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Details of the movements in the share capital and share options
of the Company for FY2018 are set out in notes 30 and 31 to the
consolidated financial statements in this annual report.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold
or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during FY2018.

RESERVES AND DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group for FY2018
are set out in the section headed “Consolidated Statement of
Changes in Equity” of this annual report.

As at 30 June 2018, the Company’s reserves available
for distribution amounted to HK$404,081,000, of which
HK$17,752,000 has been proposed as final dividend for FY2018.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements during the year in the Group’s property,
plant and equipment are set out in note 12 to the consolidated
financial statements in this annual report.

BORROWINGS
During FY2018, the Group did not have any bank borrowings

or entering into any bank loan facility and as at 30 June 2018,
the Group had no outstanding bank loans, other borrowings or
indebtedness.
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PLEDGE OF ASSETS

Details of pledge of assets during the year are set out in section
headed “Pledge of Assets” in the “Management Discussion and

Analysis” of this annual report.

CHARITABLE CONTRIBUTIONS
Charitable contributions made by the Group during FY2018

amounted to approximately HK$30,000 (FY2017: HK$20,050).

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During FY2018, the revenue attributable to the five largest customers
accounted for approximately 31.11% of the Group’s revenue for
the year and the largest customer included therein accounted for
11.69%. Purchases from the Group’s five largest suppliers accounted
for less than 30% of the total purchases for the year.

To the best knowledge of the Directors, none of the Directors or
any of their close associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) or
shareholders of the Company that owned more than 5% of the
issued Shares had any direct or indirect interest in the five largest
customers or the five largest suppliers of the Group during FY2018.

DIRECTORS
The Directors of the Company during FY2018 and up to the date of

this annual report were:

Executive Directors
Dr. Sun Yiu Kwong
(Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Kwok Cheuk Kwan, Jacquen (Managing Director)
Mr. Tsang On Yip, Patrick
Dr. Sun Man Kin, Michael
Mr. Lee Kar Chung, Felix
Dr. Lee Pak Cheung, Patrick™

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Lee Luen Wai, John BBs jp

Dr. Li Kwok Tung, Donald s8s jp

Mr. Yeung Wing Sun, Mike

Notes:
(1) As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 27 February

2018, Dr. Lee Pak Cheung, Patrick appointed as director of the Company
with effect from 28 February 2018.
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RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, any Director appointed by
the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office until the first
general meeting of the Company after his appointment and be
subject to re-election at such meeting and any Director appointed by
the Board as an addition to the existing Board shall hold office only
until the next following annual general meeting of the Company
and shall then be eligible for re-election. At each annual general
meeting, one-third of the Directors for the time being (or, if their
number is not a multiple of three (3), the number nearest to but not
less than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation provided that
every Director shall be subject to retirement at an annual general
meeting at least once every three years. The details of Directors (as
required by the Listing Rules) who will retire and being eligible,
offer themselves for re-election at the AGM, will be provided in
the accompanying circular. The re-election of each Director will
be subject to vote of shareholders of the Company by separate

resolutions.

Accordingly, Mr. Lee Kar Chung, Felix, Mr. Lee Luen Wai, John 88s /P
and Dr. Li Kwok Tung, Donald s8s jp shall retire by rotation at the
2018 AGM and being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

Dr. Lee Pak Cheung, Patrick, in accordance with the Article 83(3)
of the Articles of Association, will also retire at the 2018 AGM and,
being eligible, offer himself for re-election.

Each Director has disclosed to the Company the names and the titles
and nature of office held in the public companies or organisations
prior to the acceptance of the appointment and promised to inform
the Company timely of any relevant change. The Company will also
require Directors to submit written confirmation twice a year, and
update their biographical details, if any.

THE BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF THE
DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The biographical details of the Directors and the senior management
of the Company are set out in pages 27 to 36 of this annual report.
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INDEPENDENCE CONFIRMATIONS FROM
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received written annual confirmation from
each of the independent non-executive Directors in respect of his
independence in accordance with the independence guidelines set
out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company is of the view

that all independent non-executive Directors are independent.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a three-year service
contract with the Company, subject to termination before expiry by
either party giving not less than three months’ notice in writing to
the other.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has entered into a
letter of appointment with the Company for an initial term of three
years which commenced from the date of his appointment and shall
be terminable by either party giving not less than three months’

notice in writing to the other.

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming 2018 AGM
has an unexpired service contract which is not determinable by the
Company or any of its subsidiaries within one year without payment
of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

REMUNERATION OF THE DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Details of the Directors’ remuneration and the five highest paid
employees in the Group are set out in notes 7 and 8 to the
consolidated financial statements in this annual report.

Details of the remuneration payable to the senior management in the
Group are as follows:
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REMUNERATION POLICY

The Group’s remuneration policies are based on the merit,
qualifications and competence of individual employees and are
reviewed by the Remuneration Committee periodically. The
emoluments of the Directors are recommended by the Remuneration
Committee and are decided by the Board, having regard to the
Group’s operating results, individual performance and comparable

market statistics.

The Company has adopted two share option schemes and a share
award scheme to motivate and reward its Directors and eligible
participants. Details of the schemes are set out in pages 92 to 98 of

this annual report.

None of the Directors waived any emoluments during FY2018.

NON-COMPETE UNDERTAKINGS

As disclosed in the Prospectus, Dr. Sun Yiu Kwong, East Majestic
Group Limited and EM Team Limited, our controlling Shareholders,
have undertaken to the Company in a deed of non-compete
undertaking that, subject to and except as mentioned in the
Prospectus, they would not carry on, engage, invest, participate
or otherwise be interested in any business which competes or is
likely to compete with any of the existing and/or future businesses
carried on by any member of the Group in relation to the provision
of corporate healthcare solutions and consultancy services in non-
UMP medical centres in Hong Kong, Macau and the PRC.

Each of them has confirmed in writing to the Company of
their compliance with the deed of non-compete undertaking
for disclosure in this annual report during FY2018. No new
business opportunity was informed by them as at 30 June 2018.
The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the
implementation of the deed of non-compete undertaking and are of
the view that the non-competition undertakings have been complied
with by Dr. Sun Yiu Kwong, East Majestic Group Limited and EM
Team Limited for FY2018.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESSES

None of the Directors is or was interested in any business apart from
the Group’s business, that competes or competed or is or was likely
to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the Group’s business
at any time during FY2018 and up to and including the date of this

annual report.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

OF THE COMPANY OR ITS ASSOCIATED
CORPORATIONS

As at 30 June 2018, the interests and short positions of the Directors
and chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares
and/or debentures (as the case may be) of the Company or any of
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO) which were required to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests and short positions which they were taken or
deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO) or which were
required to be entered into the register required to be kept by the
Company under Section 352 of the SFO or which were otherwise
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange

pursuant to the Model Code were set out below:
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EENBFRBNES

R2018M MFEAEARERBEAFRA
HERER L BEEENAEEEHIN
SNERAREBEEBEEREEBARE B
AREBA G AR F N TR+ %
Bigs -

EERTETHRAERAQTR
HEBEZENRG HEKROK
BEENESERAR

M2018F6H30R ' EERARAEEITIK
ABRARAISHEEMEEEE (TRREBS
MHAEGEHIEXVED) M5 - HERHD &
FEHFRTBRME)F HERBELFR
HERPIEXVBETREsD I MAMNE AR
AIREBRRER AR (BIEREREZS
BHREEROE X MERIERE R
BERRE)  HARERARFREFES K
HERAIEIEEFENECMARNEZ R
#KE - HIRBRETFRAIMANE AR F R
RETMERKABIT

(i) The Company i)y A&2F
Number of Approximate
Long/short Shares/ percentage of
Name of Director position Capacity underlying shares ~ Note  shareholding (%)
Kt/ 18
EBfs #E/ %R gt ROBE MWE  BROEREH%)
Dr. Sun Yiu Kwong Long position Beneficial owner 15,513,000
FEIEE iR EGBAA
Long position Beneficial owner 1,213,000 1

R EGBAA

Long position
e REmARREERA

Interest held by his controlled corporations

243,756,343 2

20185 3R

260,482,343 34.57

HaBBEEERAA 89



REPORT OF DIRECTORS

ESEHRE

90

Number of Approximate
Long/short Shares/ percentage of
Name of Director position Capacity underlying shares ~ Note  shareholding (%)
Rt/ 8
£33 BR/ %R gt RO®E MWE  BOBRLH%)
Ms. Kwok Cheuk Kwan, Jacquen Long position Beneficial owner 11,380,000 3
BEELLE e 532U
Long position Beneficial owner 17,748,657
fF8 BaBAA
29,128,657 3.87
Mr. Tsang On Yip, Patrick Long position Beneficial owner 600,000 3 0.08
BRERL R ESBAA
Dr. Sun Man Kin, Michael Long position Beneficial owner 600,000 3
BX2EE R 532U
Long position Beneficial owner 11,990,000
7R BaBAA
12,590,000 1.67
Mr. Lee Kar Chung, Felix Long position Beneficial owner 10,242,000 3
ZRREE iR EGBAA
Long position Beneficial owner 1,238,000
R BEAAA
11,480,000 1.52
Dr. Lee Pak Cheung, Patrick Long position Beneficial owner 17,565,000
ShEBE 5y ESfAA
Beneficial owner 2,000,000 3
ERBAA
19,565,000 2.60
Mr. Lee Luen Wai, John sss jp Long position Beneficial owner 200,000 0.03
SRERE@enEE £ THL) e BEREA
Dr. Li Kwok Tung, Donald sss jp Long position Beneficial owner 308,000 0.04

TERBE wgheE A 74L)

FR

i

afBA

P
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Notes:

These Shares represented the underlying Shares under the options
granted by the Company on 30 June 2016 pursuant to the Post-IPO
Share Option Scheme.

Dr. Sun Yiu Kwong is deemed to be interested in the 199,601,343
Shares held by East Majestic Group Limited, being his controlled
corporation, and is also deemed to be interested in 44,155,000
Shares held by EM Team Limited, also being his controlled
corporation.

These Shares represented the underlying Shares under the options
granted by the Company on 18 August 2015 pursuant to the Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme.
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ZERMIEARTR2016F6 A30ARIE
BRAAFARERBRETIRLOBR
BIETHREBERD -

RRBRIBEHSGEAREZEEE
East Majestic Group Limited$ & &)
199,601,343 AR A e - TR
BRERAEZIEAEEM Team Limited
5B 844,155,000/ R0 P A i o

ZERMIEARAN20156F8 188 RIE
BRARBEMBREEFELMER
REIE T RS -

(i) Associated Corporations (within the meaning of the (i) HEZE(EXREFRBEHEH)
SFO)
Procare Medical Imaging & Laboratory Centre Limited® ZRBEFERLELBPFLBRATD
Approximate
percentage of
Number of shareholding
Name of Director Long/short position Capacity shares (%)
B 5 R B )
BEEnA BR/ RE g7 igvig 4= (%)
Dr. Sun Man Kin, Michael ~ Long position Beneficial owner 625 6.25
BRNRE e E=nEA A
Causeway Bay MRI Centre Limited® iR HIRP O BR QT
Approximate
percentage of
Number of shareholding
Name of Director Long/short position Capacity shares (%)
BE A #5 MR B )
Exgs HE/RE 40 R4 8B (%)
Dr. Sun Man Kin, Michael  Long position Beneficial owner 95 7.60
BRXRE e EREA A
Notes: i
(1) UMP Medical Centre Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the (1) ARANZENBRRBMSEBBETLEAE
Company, holds 62.5% of the entire issued share capital of Procare BRARKAERBEXRRRBLE
Medical Imaging & Laboratory Centre Limited. PRA R 2 HE BITRA62.5% °
(2)  UMP Medical Centre Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the 2) ARFANEEWNBRARBMEEBROE
Company, holds 20% of the entire issued share capital of Causeway BN AFS A A ) IRP OBRA
Bay MRI Centre Limited. AN A E BITIRAE20% °
20184 BeBBEEERAR 91
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Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2018, none of the Directors
or chief executive of the Company had any interests or short
positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company and its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the SFO) which were required to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV
of the SFO (including interests or short positions which they were
taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or were
required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the
register referred to therein, or as otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

The Company has adopted two share option schemes, namely
the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme and the Post-IPO Share Option

Scheme.

Pre-IPO Share option Scheme
The Company adopted the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme on 18
August 2015. Details of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme are as

follows:

(@) Purpose
The purpose of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme is to
provide incentive or reward to eligible participants for their
contribution to, and continuing efforts to promote the interests
of, the Company and to enable the Group to recruit and
retain high-calibre employees. In determining the basis of
eligibility of each eligible participants, the Board would take
into account such factors as the Board may at its discretion

consider appropriate.
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(b) Summary of Key terms

20185 3R

The maximum number of Shares to be issued upon full
exercise of all outstanding share options granted under
the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme is 30,208,000, being
approximately 4.01% of the issued share capital of the
Company as at 30 June 2018.

The subscription price for the Shares under the options
granted pursuant to the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme is
HK$1.2228 per Share.

All holders of options granted under the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme may only exercise their options in the
following manner: (i) 10% of the option shares shall only
be exercisable from the first anniversary of the grant date
up to and including the end of the Option Period; and
(i) 90% of the option shares shall only be exercisable
from the second anniversary of the grant date up to and
including the end of the Option Period.

The “Option Period” means the period from the Listing
Date and end on the date immediately before the seventh
anniversary of the Listing Date.

The Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme was only in force
during the period from 18 August 2015 to 9 November
2015, and no further options are to be granted thereunder
but in all other respects the provisions of the Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme shall remain in full force and effect
to the exercise of any options granted.
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(b) FERHIRBE

ERE & X AR ERERERE
ERERFARTEEREERSR
TEMBTEITHNRMDEE LR A
30,208,0000% Bl A A & 522018
F6HA30B B EHITRALL4.01% °

BRIEBEB X FAEERERETS
HEMNEREETROREES
FAX1.22287 T ©

REBEE RN E S BRES
ERBRENAEREAERNR
T AITE M IR R AR - ()8
PRAERZ A7 B9 10%E AT AR H A Bl —
FAFEREZBEREYRGER (2%
B H) ETTE - R)BBRERD S
0% EAREL AHMAFRES
BRESAREAR(BEEH) LT
f& -

(EBREHRIELMAREER
&M EMCE S A B8 -

BRAMBEABERESTEER
20158 H18H E2015F11 H9H
BN - A T EBE—F
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(c) Outstanding options granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option (c) REBXAMBEHBREFZCESY
Scheme 9 1 R AT R BB R A
Details of movements of the share options granted under the BHE2018F6H30B EFEREEFERA
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme for the year ended 30 June 2018 (A 2% 6 B BB M AT 81 3R H eV I A i
are as follows: ESFENNE
As at Granted Exercised  Cancelled/ As at
Exercise price  Exercise 1]July during during  Lapsed during 30 June
Grantee Position Date of grant per Share  period 2017 theperiod the period  the period 2018
i i or7E i Bm o R20ie%
ERA Bft RiLpH EROEE R TAIE BARE  BARE B8R 68308
(ddimmiyy) (HKS)  (dd/mmiyy)
(B/B/%) (#1) (B/R/%)
Directors
£
Dr. Sun Yiu Kwong Chairman, Chief 18/08/2015 12228 18/08/2016-26/11/2022 1,430,000 - 1,430,000 - -
Executive Officer and 18/08/2017-26/11/2022 12,870,000 - 12,870,000 - -
i  Executive Director o
FRIEY IR THEIRNTES
Ms. Kwok Cheuk Kwan, Jacquen Managing Director and 18/08/2015 12228 18/08/2016-26/11/2022 1,138,000 = = = 1,138,000
. ‘Executive Dlrecjo[ 18/08/2017-26/11/2022 10,242,000 - - - 10,242,000
BEY: e, EIRAERNAES
Mr. Tsang On Yip, Patrick Executive Director 18/06/2015 12228 18/08/2016-26/11/2022 60,000 - - - 60,000
he 3 BE% 18/08/2017-26/11/2022 540,000 - - - 540,000
Dr. Sun Man Kin, Michael Executive Director 18/08/2015 12228 18/08/2016-26/11/2022 60,000 - - - 60,000
yes L3 HiEs 18/08/2017-26/11/2022 540,000 - - - 540,000
Mr. Lee Kar Chung, Felix Executive Director 18/08/2015 12228 18/08/2017-26/11/2022 10,242,000 - - - 10,242,000
FFRBEE EEE £
Dr. Lge Pak Cheung, Patrick Exegugive Director 18/08/2015 12228 18/08/2016-26/11/2022 200,000 - - - 200,000
FHEELE HirEs 18108/2017-26/11/2022 1,800,000 - - - 1,800,000
(Note 1)
(K1)
Sub-total: 39,122,000 14,300,000 24,822,000
g
Employees
I/Eiafgregate - 18/08/2015 12228 18/08/2017-26/11/2022 3,186,000 - - - 3,186,000
[SIVAY
Su?-tota[: 3,186,000 - - - 3,186,000
NG
Other eligible grantees
HRERARA
In aggregate - 18/08/2015 12228 18/08/2016-26/11/2022 260,000 - 40,000 - 220,000
Aft 18/08/2017-26/11/2022 2,340,000 - 360,000 - 1,980,000
Sub-total: 2,600,000 400,000 2,200,000
gt (Note 1)
(Hz)
TAo%a.h 44,908,000 14,700,000 30,208,000
=HIE

Note 1: The figure as shown has been adjusted because the share options held by

Dr. Lee Pak Cheung, Patrick which has been previously classified in the
category of the “Other eligible grantees” is now shown separately under
the category of “Directors” as a result of his appointment as an executive
Director on 28 February 2018.
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Post-IPO Share Option Scheme
The Company adopted the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme on 2
November 2015. Details of the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme are

as follows:

(@)

(b)

(o)

(d)

Purpose

The purpose of the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme is to
incentivise and reward the Eligible Persons (as defined in
sub- paragraph (b) below) for their contribution to the Group
and to align their interests with that of the Company so as to
encourage them to work towards enhancing the value of the
Company.

Participants

The Board (including any committee or delegate of the
Board appointed by the Board to perform any of its functions
pursuant to the rules of the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme)
may, at its absolute discretion, offer to grant an option
to subscribe for such number of Shares as the Board may
determine to an employee (whether full-time or part-time) or a
director of a member of the Group or associated companies of
the Company (the “Eligible Persons”).

Total number of securities available for issue

The total number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all options to be granted under the Post-IPO Share Option
Scheme and any other share option schemes (including but not
limited to the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme) of the Company
must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the total number of
Shares in issue as at the Listing Date.

Maximum entitlement of each participant

No options shall be granted to any Eligible Person under the
Post-IPO Share Option Scheme and any other Share option
schemes of the Company which, if exercised, would result in
such Eligible Person becoming entitled to subscribe for such
number of Shares as, when aggregated with the total number of
Shares already issued or to be issued to him under all options
granted to him (including exercised, cancelled and outstanding
options) in the 12-month period up to and including the date
of offer of such options, exceeds 1% of the Shares in issue at

such date.
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28E
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(e)

)

(g

96

Period within which the shares must be taken up under an
option

Any vested option which has not lapsed and which conditions
have been satisfied or waived by the Board in its sole
discretion may, unless the Board determines otherwise in its
absolute discretion, be exercised at any time from the next
business day after the offer of options has been accepted. Any
option which remain unexercised shall lapse upon the expiry
of the option period, which period shall be determined by the
Board and shall not exceed ten years from the offer date of the

option.

Minimum period for which an option must be held before it
can be exercised

The Board may in its absolute discretion set a minimum period
for which an option must be held and performance targets that

must be achieved before an option can be exercised.

Time of acceptance and the amount payable on acceptance of
the option

An offer of options shall be open for acceptance in writing
or by telex or facsimile transmission or (if the Board agree)
by electronic communication received by the Chairman (or a
person designated by him with the approval of the Board) for
such period (not exceeding 30 days inclusive of, and from,
the date of offer) as the Board may determine and notify to
the Eligible Person concerned provided that no such offer
shall be open for acceptance after the expiry of the duration
of the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme. An offer of options not
accepted within this period shall lapse.

An amount of HK$1.00 is payable upon acceptance of the
grant of an option and such payment shall not be refundable
and shall not be deemed to be a part payment of the exercise
price.
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(h) Basis of determining the exercise price (hy BETEENEE
The exercise price shall be such price as determined by the THRERRESFSETL BMERE
Board and notified to an option-holder and which shall not BAEANERE  RIASERUTHRS
be less than the higher of: (i) the closing price of the Shares as EORMDNBREZL R BB AT
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets on the FBRMERMINBKHE (VRPN E
date of offer of the option; (ii) the average of the closing price EEREZOBHMNOERSARER
of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation P B MERMSIFHRTE  Kii)
sheets for the five trading days immediately preceding the date IRAD EE -
of offer of the option; and (iii) the nominal value of the Shares.

(i) Life of the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme () BRAHBEABRESINFH
The Post-IPO Share Option Scheme will expire automatically BREBEERAFEERBRESINREA
on the day immediately preceding the tenth anniversary of BRILRF - BRARBEERBRETS
the Listing Date, subject to early termination provisions in the REER EmEPTEFI—XBBE
Post-IPO Share Option Scheme. e
The summary below sets out the details of the movement AT EHIRBEERAFESEER
during the year ended 30 June 2018 of all the options granted BB E A BRER B E20185F
pursuant to the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme: 6 H30R IEFEMEBFIS

Number of Shares issuable under the share options
BRERTATRORGYE
Cancelled/
lapsed As at
Exercise As at Granted Exercised during 30 June
Date of price  Exercise 1]July 2017 during during the period 2018
Name grant per Share period R0178  theperiod the period B 20185
4] RiLEH ERTEE HEE 7B1R BRRH BAfE EE/AR 64308
(dd/mmiyyyy) (HKS)  (dd/mmpyyyy)
(B/R/%) (%71) (B/R/%)

Dr. Sun Yiu Kwong (Chairman,  30/06/2016 1.27 30/06/2017-29/06/2021 1,213,000 - 1,213,000 - -
Chief Executive Officer and 30/06/2018-29/06/2021 1,213,000 - - - 1,213,000
Executive Director)

RRIBE (IR THA#%

#ng%)

Substotal: 2,426,000 - 113,000 C 123,000

I

Employees

&

In aggregate 23/03/2017 2.06 30/06/2017-30/06/2022 340,000 - - - 340,000

A

30/06/2018-30/06/2022 330,000 - - - 330,000
30/06/2019-30/06/2022 330,000 - - - 330,000

Sub-otal 1,000,000 - ] -~ 1000000

Nt

Total 3,426,000 - 1,213,000 - 2,213,000

At
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No share option was expired, cancelled or lapsed under the
Post-IPO Share Option Scheme during the year ended 30 June
2018.

The maximum number of Shares to be issued upon full
exercise of all the share options granted under the Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme and the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme
is 73,600,000, being 10% of the issued share capital of the
Company as at the Listing Date.

The total number of Shares currently available for issue under
the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme is 2,213,000 Shares,
representing approximately 0.29% of the issued share capital

of the Company as at 30 June 2018.

SHARE AWARD SCHEME
The Company has adopted the Share Award Scheme on 30 June

2016, to recognise the contributions of and provide incentives
for the key management personnel including Directors and senior
management, employed experts and employees of the Group.
Subject to any early termination as may be determined by the Board,
pursuant to the trust deed, the Share Award Scheme shall be valid
and effective for a term of 10 years commencing on the adoption
date. The maximum number of Shares which may be awarded to a
selected participant under the Share Award Scheme shall not exceed
one per cent (1%) of the issued share capital of the Company in
each year. The Board shall not make any further award of awarded
shares which will result in the nominal value of the Shares awarded
by the Board under the Share Award Scheme exceeding two per cent
(2%) of the issued share capital of the Company from time to time.

As at 30 June 2018, the Company has not granted and vested any
Shares pursuant to the Share Award Scheme.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed under the sections headed “Share Option
Schemes” and “Share Award Scheme” in this report, at no time
during FY2018 was the Company or any of its subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries a party to any arrangement that would enable the
Directors to acquire benefits by means of acquisition of shares in or
debentures of the Company or any other body corporate.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in this annual report, no transactions,
arrangements or contracts of significance subsisted in which a
Director or an entity connected with a Director was materially
interested, whether directly or indirectly, during or at the end of
FY2018.

DIRECTORS’ PERMITTED INDEMNITY
PROVISION

Under the Articles, every Director and officer of the Company acting
in relation to any of the affairs of the Company shall be indemnified
and secured harmless out of the assets and profits of the Company
from and against all actions, costs and damages and expenses which
they or any of them shall or may incur or sustain by or omitted in
or about the execution of their duties in their respective office or
otherwise in relation thereto.

The Company has arranged appropriate Directors’ and officers’

liability insurance coverage for the Directors and officers of the
Group.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY

As at 30 June 2018, so far as was known to the Directors of the
Company, the following persons/entities (other than the Directors
or chief executive of the Company) had, or were deemed to have,
interests or short positions in the Shares or underlying shares of the
Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company and the
Stock Exchange under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV
of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO:

K2018%F6 A30H

FERRRAEXFARG REEK
DR RE

T BARBESZHAA A
TAL /BB (BT ARAETEZTBRAER
SN IR ] RO R A7 AR BA AR A0 P R B SRR
RERAREE %&Hﬂfﬂlﬂﬁﬂ%xv%%2&3
=103 QLIRAN/N

B ‘XaEﬁ‘EA$

6 52 AT 3% R B0 #E 2R SOK

/JEHJ% 55 K ERE 1K)
FI36EEFEMNELMANERS AR

Approximate

Name of substantial Long/short Number of Shares/ percentage of
shareholder position Capacity underlying shares  Notes shareholding
IRRRER R/ KR 5 Bt/ HBROEE W& BARR LA
(%)
East Majestic Group Limited Long position Beneficial owner 199,601,343 1 26.49
e EREAA
EM Team Limited Long position Beneficial owner 44,155,000 1 5.86
e EREAA
Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings 11) Long position Interest held by its 110,411,000 2 14.65
Limited He controlled corporations
BEmETEERE
Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings) Long position Interest held by its 110,411,000 2 14.65
Limited He controlled corporations
BEmETEERE
Chow Tai Fook Capital Limited Long position Interest held by its 110,411,000 2 14.65
He controlled corporations
BEmETEERE
Chow Tai Fook (Holding) Limited Long position Interest held by its 110,411,000 2 14.65
BAR(BR)BRAF He controlled corporations
BEmETEEERE
Chow Tai Fook Enterprises Limited Long position Interest held by its 110,411,000 2 14.65
BAABERBRAA HeE controlled corporation
REmETEERE
Healthcare Ventures Long position Beneficial owner 110,411,000 2 14.65
Ha EREAA
China Resources National Corporation ~ Long position Interest held by its 97,311,000 3 12.92
hEZERANF HeE controlled corporations
REmETEERE
CR Phoenix Long position Interest held by its 97,311,000 3 12.92
FEREER HE controlled corporations

BRmERTEERE
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Notes:

Dr. Sun Yiu Kwong was deemed to be interested in the 199,601,343 Shares
held by East Majestic Group Limited, being his controlled corporation, and
was also deemed to be interested in the 44,155,000 Shares held by EM
Team Limited, also being his controlled corporation. Dr. Sun’s interests in
Shares are disclosed in this annual report in the section headed “Directors’
and Chief Executive’s Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying
Shares and Debentures of the Company or its associated Corporations”.

Healthcare Ventures was wholly-owned by CTFE, which was wholly-owned
by Chow Tai Fook (Holding) Limited (“CTFH”). CTFH was held as to
81.03% by Chow Tai Fook Capital Limited (“CTFC”), which was in
turn held as to 48.98% by Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings) Limited
(“CYTF”) and as to 46.65% by Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings Il) Limited
(“CYTFII”). By virtue of the SFO, CTFE, CTFH, CTFC, CYTF and CYTFIIl were
deemed to be interested in the same parcel of Shares in which Healthcare
Ventures was interested.

Pinyu Limited was the beneficial owner of the Shares. Pinyu Limited was
wholly owned by Unison Champ Limited, which was wholly owned by CR
Phoenix. CR Phoenix was held as to 35.7% by CRH (Phoenix Healthcare)
Limited and as to 0.82% by Commotra Company Limited. CRH (Phoenix
Healthcare) Limited was wholly owned by China Resources Healthcare
Group Limited, which was wholly owned by CRH (Healthcare) Limited.
Both CRH (Healthcare) Limited and Commotra Company Limited were
wholly owned by China Resources (Holdings) Company Limited, which
was wholly owned by CRC Bluesky Limited. CRC Bluesky Limited was
wholly owned by China Resources Co., Limited, which was wholly owned
by China Resources National Corporation. By virtue of the SFO, Unison
Champ Limited, CR Phoenix, CRH (Phoenix Healthcare) Limited, China
Resources Healthcare Group Limited, CRH (Healthcare) Limited, China
Resources Co., Limited, China Resources (Holdings) Company Limited, CRC
Bluesky Limited and China Resources National Corporation were deemed to
be interested in the same parcel of shares of the Company in which Pinyu
Limited was interested.
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According to disclosure of interest filings available on the Stock
Exchange website, Snow Lake China Master Fund, Ltd. (“SLCMF")
and Snow Lake China Master Long Fund, Ltd. (“SLCMLF”")
beneficially owned 97,750,000 and 20,382,000 Shares respectively.
SLCMF was held as to 80.93% by Snow Lake China Offshore
Fund, Ltd. (“SLCOFL”) and accordingly SLCOFL was deemed to be
interested in the 97,750,000 Shares held by SLCMF pursuant to the
SFO. Snow Lake Capital Limited (“SLCL”) and Snow Lake Capital
(HK) Limited (“SLCHKL"), which were wholly controlled by Mr. Ma
Sean, were the investment manager and the investment adviser to
both SLCMF and SLCMLF respectively. Accordingly, Mr. Ma Sean,
SLCL and SLCHKL were deemed to be interested in the aggregate
holding of 118,132,000 Shares owned by SLCMF and SLCMLF
pursuant to the SFO, representing, for illustrative purpose, 15.68%
of the total issued share capital of the Company as at 30 June 2018.
Out of these 118,132,000 Shares, 84,476,000 Shares (representing,
for illustrative purpose, 11.21% of the total issued share capital of
the Company as at 30 June 2018) are interests in cash-settled equity
derivatives.

Other than as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2018, the Directors
have not been notified by any person (other than the Directors or
chief executive of the Company) who had interests or short positions
in the Shares or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in
the register required to be kept pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Save for the transactions mentioned below, none of such related
party transactions constituted a non-exempt connected transaction
or a continuing connected transaction of the Company pursuant to
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The Company has complied with
the disclosure requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules
as and where applicable and relevant.
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Non-exempt Continuing Connected transactions

The Company has entered into certain non-exempt continuing
connected transactions, the annual caps and the actual transaction
amounts of which for FY2018 are set out as follows:

REPORT OF DIRECTORS
EEEHRE

IRRBFERERS
RRRBEIZETHHBAFERERS &
R2018BFEENFE LR REBRR L5
AWM

Annual cap for
the year ended
30 June 2018

Actual transaction

Amount for
the year ended
30 June 2018

Connected transaction Connected Person (HK$'000) (HK$'000)

BZ2018%F BZ22018%
6A30ALFE 6A30ALFE

MEELR NERRZEE

BERXS BEAL (F#x) (FERr)

Property Leasing Framework Agreement Rich Point Group 4,100 3,918

NEHEERNZ ZESE

Consultancy Agreement with Dr. Sun Man Kin Michael Dr. Sun Man Kin, Michael 6,000 1,283*

AN BB A MRS BXBRE

Consultancy Agreement with Dr. Lee Pak Cheung, Patrick  Dr. Lee Pak Cheung, Patrick 5,500 4,429

HENEBENERGE FRERE

Medical Services Framework Agreement CTFE 23,000 13,987

BERERGERDZ BARBRE

Medical Services and Administration Agreement HAML 14,000 3,777

BERBERERHE REEEER

3 This transaction amount includes the fees paid or payable by Causeway  * b2 5 & 58 B 15 AR 1 A A Bk 1 A8 SR 7
Bay MRI Centre Limited, an associate of the Company, to Dr. Sun Man Kin,

Michael.

The above non-exempt continuing connected transactions are
subject to reporting, announcement and, in respect to items (D) and

(E) above, independent shareholders’ approval requirements.

In respect of item (D) above, upon the listing of the Company’s
Shares on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, the Stock
Exchange approved the annual caps of this continuing connected
transaction and granted a waiver to the Company from compliance
with independent shareholders’ approval requirements.

In respect of item (E) above, the Company obtained approval from

its independent shareholders at the extraordinary general meeting of
the Company held on 8 February 2017.
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Property Leasing Framework Agreement

On 13 November 2015, the Company and Rich Point Group
entered into a property leasing framework agreement (the
“Property Leasing Framework Agreement”), pursuant to which
the Group leased properties from Rich Point Group for the
purposes of operating medical centres and warehouses. The

major terms of the agreement are set out as follows:

e with respect to the relevant leased properties, the
Company and/or its subsidiaries and the relevant
Rich Point Group member shall enter into individual
agreements which prescribe specific terms and conditions
of the leasing arrangements, including rental amount,
payment method and other relevant terms;

J the terms of the individual agreements shall be on normal
commercial terms or, from the Group’s perspective, more
favourable to the Group;

e the rental amounts payable under the lease agreements
shall reflect the then prevailing market rates and no less
favourable than the terms and conditions offered by
independent landlords or lessors of comparable premises;

and

e the Property Lease Framework Agreement shall
commence from the Listing Date until 30 June 2018 and
may be renewed by mutual consent of the parties.

The management has made reference to the historical rentals
paid for such properties to ensure that the rents payable
under the Property Leasing Framework Agreement are fair
and reasonable to the Group. Dr. Sun Yiu Kwong, the
Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and executive Director of
the Company, holds more than 30% interests in Rich Point.
Accordingly, Rich Point is an associate of Dr. Sun Yiu Kwong
and a connected person under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules. The transactions contemplated under the Property
Leasing Framework Agreement constitute continuing connected
transactions of the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

UMP HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED

MEREELRGR
RRABR2015F11TAIBHEEEEE
I —MEMEERG R ([MEEE
EEBZE]D Bl AEEXEESE
HEMERARNKCERBRLRERE - 13
ENEEZERFAT

o BEMEEMEMES  ARFRS
sk H Y 8 2 7] E2AE BE = E AR B K
BRARIERIER e - FIAEE
RN ARGR RGNS - BFEE
S RO R E AR R

o ERIH A FRREE - RE XK
AT > HRAKREME @ ZF K
REUNAEEERRN

e MHEWMBETENNEHSEHE
RREFNRTHEETERA
BLHESMBLETIREETIR
HRRR MR - R

. YEHEEEHZS LT HEEE
£2018F6HA308 I - AI&EE A

EEEC2ENBRYMEINNBE
He  AERVEZHEERGZR NE
NHEHAEBBATAE - ARAE
B THRAHLRATESTRBIELERN
BEFAEE30%ES - Ht - BER
FRIBENBBEAR EMRRE M
ABEBETHBEAL RELMHRAE
THAE  MEBEERBHER T HE
TR ZBRARBNHERERS -

2018 ANNUAL REPORT



The annual cap for the total rent paid by the Company to
Rich Point Group for FY2018 was HK$4,100,000 and the
actual amount paid or payable to Rich Point Group was
HK$3,917,508.

Consultancy Agreement with Dr. Sun Man Kin Michael

On 13 November 2015, the Company and Dr. Sun Man
Kin, Michael entered into a consultancy agreement (the
“Consultancy Agreement with Dr. Sun Man Kin Michael”),
pursuant to which the Group appointed Dr. Sun Man Kin,
Michael as a consultant to provide medical services, in
particular radiologist services, to the Group. The major terms
of the agreement are set out as follows:

J Dr. Sun Man Kin, Michael shall provide consultancy
services to the Group, including the provision of medical
services, in particular radiologist services;

. the annual fees charged by Dr. Sun Man Kin, Michael to
the Group will be negotiated on an arm’s length basis,
and shall be on normal commercial terms which, from
the Group’s perspective, are no less favourable than
those which the relevant members of the Group could
obtain from independent consultants of similar expertise,
experience and reputation for a similar role, scope of
services and responsibilities under similar circumstances;

and

e the agreement shall commence from the Listing Date
until 30 June 2018 and may be renewed by mutual
consent of the parties.

The management has made reference to historical aggregate
fees paid by the Group for medical services provided by
Dr. Sun Man Kin Michael of similar scope of services to ensure
that the consultancy fees payable are fair and reasonable
to the Company. Dr. Sun Man Kin, Michael is an executive
Director, and accordingly, a connected person of the Company
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The transactions
contemplated under the Consultancy Agreement with Dr. Sun
Man Kin Michael constitute continuing connected transactions
of the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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The annual cap for the consultancy fees paid by the Company
to Dr. Sun Man Kin, Michael for FY2018 was HK$6,000,000
and the actual amount paid or payable to Dr. Sun Man Kin,
Michael was HK$1,283,372*.

* This transaction amount includes the fees paid or payable by
Causeway Bay MRI Centre Limited, an associate of the Company, to
Dr. Sun Man Kin, Michael.

Consultancy Agreement with Dr. Lee Pak Cheung Patrick

On 13 November 2015, the Company and Dr. Lee Pak
Cheung, Patrick entered into a consultancy agreement (the
“Consultancy Agreement with Dr. Lee Pak Cheung, Patrick”),
pursuant to which the Group appointed Dr. Lee Pak Cheung,
Patrick, as a consultant to provide Medical Services, in
particular Dental Services, to the Group. The major terms of

the agreement are set out as follows:

J Dr. Lee Pak Cheung, Patrick shall provide Dental Services
to the Group;

e the annual fees charged by Dr. Lee Pak Cheung, Patrick
to the Group shall be negotiated on an arm’s length
basis, and shall be on normal commercial terms which,
from the Group’s perspective, are expected to be no less
favourable than those which the relevant members of
the Group could obtain from independent consultants of
similar expertise, experience and reputation for similar

role, scope of services and responsibilities; and

J the Consultancy Agreement with Dr. Lee Pak Cheung,
Patrick shall commence from the Listing Date until 30
June 2018 and may be renewed by mutual consent of the
parties.

The Company has made reference to historical aggregate fees
paid by the Group for medical services provided by Dr. Lee
Pak Cheung Patrick of similar scope of services to ensure that
the consultancy fees payable are fair and reasonable to the
Company.
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Dr. Lee Pak Cheung, Patrick is a director of the subsidiaries
of the Company, and accordingly, a connected person of
the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The
transactions contemplated under the Consultancy Agreement
with Dr. Lee Pak Cheung, Patrick constitute continuing
connected transactions of the Company under Chapter 14A of

the Listing Rules.

The annual cap for the consultancy fees paid by the Company
to Dr. Lee Pak Cheung, Patrick for FY2018 was HK$5,500,000
and the actual amount paid or payable to Dr. Lee Pak Cheung,
Patrick was HK$4,429,360.

Medical Services Framework Agreement

On 13 November 2015, the Company and CTFE has entered
into a medical services framework agreement (the “Medical
Services Framework Agreement”), pursuant to which the Group
shall provide Medical, Dental and Auxiliary Services to the
employees of CTFE and/or its associates. The major terms of
the agreement are set out as follows:

e the Group shall provide Medical, Dental and Auxiliary
Services to the employees of CTFE and its associates;

¢ the relevant members of the Group shall enter into
individual agreements which prescribe specific terms and
conditions, including scope of medical services, service
amount, payment method and other terms;

o the terms of, and the service amounts payable under,
each individual agreement will be negotiated on a case-
by-case and on an arm’s length basis, and shall be on
normal commercial terms which, from the Group’s
perspective, are no less favourable than those which
the relevant members of the Group could offer to
independent third parties, with a comparable scope of

services; and

e the Medical Services Framework Agreement shall
commence from the Listing Date for a term of three years

and may be renewed by mutual consent of the parties.
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The management has made reference to the prevailing price of
medical services offered by the Group to other customers and
the historical service fees the Company received for medical
services with a similar scope to ensure that the service amounts
payable during the service period are fair and reasonable to the
Company.

CTFE is a substantial shareholder of the Company and,
accordingly, a connected person of the Company under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The transactions
contemplated under the Medical Services Framework
Agreement constitute continuing connected transactions of the
Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The annual cap for the aggregate fees to be received by the
Company from CTFE for FY2018 was HK$23,000,000 and the
actual amount received or receivable by the Company was
HK$13,987,455.

Medical Services and Administration Agreement with HAML

On 15 December 2016, the Company and HAML entered into
a medical services and administration agreement (the “Medical
Services and Administration Agreement”) to govern certain
transactions between the Group and HAML and its subsidiaries
(the “HAML Group”). The major terms of the agreement are set

out as follows:

o the Company shall, or procure the members of the Group
and their respective associates to, on a non- exclusive
basis, make available the medical centre network of the
members of the Group and their respective associates in
the PRC and Hong Kong and provide Medical, Dental
and Auxiliary Services to members or customers of the
HAML Group;

. HAML shall, or procure its subsidiaries to, on a non-
exclusive basis, make available the medical centre
network of the HAML Group in the PRC and Hong Kong
and provide Medical, Dental and Auxiliary Services to
members or customers of the Group and their respective
associates;
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e the Company and HAML shall enter into, or procure
their subsidiaries or associates to enter into, separate
contracts for the Medical, Dental and Auxiliary Services
in accordance with the principle of the Medical Services
and Administration Agreement to set out the specific
terms and conditions of the services, including but not
limited to the scope of services, service amount, payment
method and other relevant terms;

e the service fees shall be determined by the relevant
parties through arm’s length negotiation and on normal
commercial terms and with reference to the historical
service fees paid for the Medical, Dental and Auxiliary
Services and the prevailing fees charged by the Group or
the HAML Group offered to independent customers with
similar scope of services;

o the effective term of the Medical Services and
Administration Agreement shall commence from 23
March 2017 (being the date on which all conditions of
the Medical Services and Administration Agreement have
been fulfilled) until 31 December 2026.

HAML is a joint venture company formed by a subsidiary
of New World Development Company Limited (stock code:
17), NWS Subsidiary and Healthcare Ventures, a substantial
shareholder of the Company. Accordingly, HAML is a
connected person of the Company under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules. The transactions contemplated under the Medical
Services and Administration Agreement constitute continuing
connected transactions of the Company under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules.

The annual cap for the aggregate fees payable by the Company
to HAML for FY2018 was HK$14,000,000 and the actual
amount paid or payable by the Company was HK$3,776,791.
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The Company’s independent non-executive Directors have reviewed
the above non-exempt continuing connected transactions for the
year ended 30 June 2018 and confirmed that:

(@) the transactions have been entered into by the Group in the
ordinary and usual course of its business;

(b) the transactions have been entered into either (i) on normal
commercial terms or (ii) (where there are not sufficient
comparable transactions to judge whether they are on normal
commercial terms) on terms no less favourable to the Group
than terms available to or from (as appropriate) independent
third parties; and

(c) the transactions have been entered into in accordance with the
relevant agreement governing them on terms that are fair and
reasonable and in the interests of the Shareholders as a whole.

Ernst & Young, the Company’s auditors, were engaged to report on
the Group’s continuing connected transactions in accordance with
Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information and with reference to Practice Note 740 Auditor’s
Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong
Kong Listing Rules issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Ernst & Young have issued their unqualified
letter containing their findings and conclusions in respect of the
continuing connected transactions disclosed above by the Group
in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the
auditors’ letter has been provided by the Company to the Stock
Exchange.

The Company’s auditors have reported to the Directors that
(i) nothing has come to their attention that causes them to believe
that the disclosed continuing connected transactions have not been
approved by the Board; (ii) nothing has come to their attention
that causes them to believe that the transactions were not, in all
material respects, in accordance with the pricing policies of the
Group; (iii) nothing has come to their attention that causes them to
believe that the transactions were not entered into, in all material
respects, in accordance with the relevant agreements governing
such transactions; and (iv) with respect to the aggregate amount of
each of the above continuing connected transactions, nothing has
come to their attention that causes them to believe that the disclosed
continuing connected transactions have exceeded the annual cap as

set by the Company.
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The Company and all Directors had reviewed all connected
transactions and confirmed that the Company was in compliance
with the disclosure requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing

Rules.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

The Company has not entered into any contract with any individual,
firm or body corporate to manage or administer the whole or any
substantial part of any business of the Group during FY2018.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the Share Option Schemes and Share Award Scheme as
disclosed on pages 92 to 98 of this annual report, no equity-linked
agreements were entered into by the Company, or existed during
FY2018.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association or the relevant laws of the Cayman Islands where the
Company is incorporated which would oblige the Company to offer
new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing Shareholders.

SUFFICIENCY OF THE PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information publicly available to the Company and
provided by the Snow Lake Group, and to the best knowledge,
information and belief of the Directors, the Directors confirm that
the Company had maintained a sufficient public float as required
under the Listing Rules during FY2018.

AUDITOR

Ernst & Young retire and a resolution for their reappointment as
auditor of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming 2018
AGM.

On behalf of the Board
Dr. Sun Yiu Kwong

Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 September 2018
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BN 2B S

EY::

To the shareholders of UMP Healthcare Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of UMP
Healthcare Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(the “Group”) set out on pages 120 to 262, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 30 June 2018,
and the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as
at 30 June 2018, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Group in
accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these
matters. For each matter below, our description of how our audit
addressed the matters is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report, including in relation to these matters.
Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures
designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. The results of
our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to address
the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the

accompanying consolidated financial statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BN 2B S

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

FERETTEE )

Key audit matter

BREBEITER

How our audit addressed the key audit
matter

BMWESFOMNEEERESEER

Impairment assessment of goodwill

R E R

As at 30 June 2018, the carrying amount of goodwill was HK$43.1
million (excluding provisional goodwill of HK$19.5 million), which
represented 6.8% of the Group’s net assets.
R2018%6A30R @ BEREEAR43.1HEBT(
BEAT)  HER BEXEEEFEMNG68%-

TEEEEEE19.5

Impairment assessment is performed by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit or group of cash-generating
units to which the goodwill relates. The recoverable amounts of the
cash-generating units have been determined based on a value in use
calculation using cash flow projections based on financial budgets.
BEMGEDEATEREEBCReELEURREELE AN
ZAWEeEMEL - ReELBUz M NESBENREERER
AR RUBBREABEZRASREBRUIEE -

The impairment assessment is significant to our audit due to (i)
the magnitude of the carrying amount involved; and (ii) significant
estimates involved in the estimation of the value in use of the
cash-generating units to which the goodwill is allocated, including,
amongst others, expected future cash flows and discount rates.
MEMFEHERMcEAMEBERN  REAROASLEEEER &
(AT ENPEBENRSELEN 2 EREESREXMGT B85
(B EE) EARRBEeRERTEE -
The Group’s accounting policies, disclosures of estimation
uncertainty and impairment assessment of goodwill are included
in notes 2.4, 3 and 13 to the consolidated financial statements,
respectively.
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We assessed the key assumptions used
in management’s cash flow projections
for impairment assessment of goodwill,
budgeted

revenue, growth rate and discount rate,

including, amongst others,

taking into consideration the historical
results, market conditions and trends and
reliability of previous projections.
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In addition, we involved our valuation
experts to assist us in evaluating the
discount rate adopted in the value in use
calculation using cash flow projections. We
also assessed the adequacy of disclosures in
connection with the impairment assessment
of goodwill.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

B BETHRE

ERETEE )

Key audit matter

BRBEITER

How our audit addressed the key audit
matter

BMWESTNMEEERETEER

Impairment assessment of trade receivables

8 5 BYRRER G

As at 30 June 2018, the carrying amount of trade receivables
was HK$78.8 million and represented 12.5% of the Group’s net
assets. Impairment assessment of trade receivables is performed
by management when there are indicators of impairment
by considering factors such as the probability of insolvency
or significant financial difficulties of debtors and default or
significant delay in payments.

R2018F6A30R * BHRKFIENREER78.88 88T HE
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The impairment assessment is significant to our audit due to
(i) the magnitude of the carrying amount involved; and (ii)
significant estimates involved in determining the future cash flows
from such receivables based on, among others, aging of these
receivable balances, customers’ and debtors’ creditworthiness,
past repayment history and historical write-off experience.
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The Group’s accounting policies and disclosures of accounting
estimates on impairment assessment of loans and receivables and
impairment of trade receivables are included in notes 2.4, 3 and
20 to the consolidated financial statements, respectively.
ERERERMBEFBEREFEARE S ERUKRARE LSS
BEREHEFRED RSN GAMBRERMEE2.4 - 320

We assessed management’s impairment
assessment by (i) sample checking the aging
of the receivable balances, past repayment
history and historical write-off experience;
and assessing customers’ and debtors’
creditworthiness by reference to their
financial information, where appropriate;
(ii) considering whether any debtor or group
of debtors was experiencing significant
financial difficulty, default or delinquency
in payments; and (iii) reviewing subsequent
settlements of the trade receivables.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BN 2B S

OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE
ANNUAL REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual Report, other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance

conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to

report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
of the Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors of the Company either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations or have no realistic

alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely
to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the

contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the

consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or

the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

J Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used

and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BN 2B S

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other

matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant

audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal

control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we

have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding

independence and to communicate with them all relationships

and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our

independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such

communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Wu Ka Lai, Cary.

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants

22/F, CITIC Tower
1 Tim Mei Avenue

Central, Hong Kong

27 September 2018
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

mEBRER

For the year ended 30 June 2018

BZE2018F6A30RIEFE
2018 2017
20184 20174
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 7 THET FHET
REVENUE A 5 585,630 514,023
Other income and gains H A WA R s 5 11,591 53,626
Professional services expenses EERKER (309,264) (287,603)
Employee benefit expense ETRERMNMMAX (121,428) (100,291)
Property rental and related expenses %M ¢ M iEREH S (42,673) (40,979)
Cost of inventories consumed BERFERA (23,730) (20,500)
Depreciation and amortisation WE REH (19,997) (17,561)
Other expenses, net H 32 HF %R (34,116) (31,241)
Share of profits and losses of: FEAG F)E R EE -
Joint ventures SN -WNG 254 (14,002)
Associates RN 2,238 1,622
PROFIT BEFORE TAX BR %1 AT R H 6 48,505 57,094
Income tax expense ey =g==! 9 (11,003) (8,850)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FRFE 37,502 48,244
Attributable to: AT & F G
Owners of the Company RARERA 37,555 44,085
Non-controlling interests FEE AR (53) 4,159
37,502 48,244
EARNINGS PER SHARE KA ERERBAA 11
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY EiEgR2F
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
COMPANY
Basic HIR HK5.04 centsi#&fl HK6.01 centsi& 1l
Diluted e HK4.95 centsi#&fll HK5.94 cents/& 1l
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
SEZEBRAR

For the year ended 30 June 2018

BE2018F6HA30RLLFE
2018 2017
20185 20174
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B & THET THET
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FERFE 37,502 48,244
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME ~ H fh 2 E U A
Other comprehensive income/(loss) REZHBMEFS>ESE
to be reclassified to profit or loss BamHEMm2m
in subsequent periods: WA/ (E18)
Changes in fair value of AHEERELR
available-for-sale investments BEZY 18 (213) 418
Exchange differences on translation ¥ & /SN E R RIIE 3
of foreign operations ZH 181 (919)
Reclassification adjustment for R—ERFALERN
a foreign operation disposed BHONEBELEN
of during the year DIHEFE - 596
Reclassification adjustment for REGERREI
a foreign operation upon Eam (AR FERNKS
subscription of additional interest  [K{ /B2 &) Mzt —I1&
in joint ventures, which became EXIE 3 (o
subsidiaries during the year Egsia SRR = 979
Share of other comprehensive JE(H —fEEEE 2RI
income of an associate Hfh 2 E WA 11 -
Share of other comprehensive EIEEE RRIBEAD
income/(loss) of joint ventures 2EKA(EE) 21 (750)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME  FRHEM2EKA -
FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX M BRBLIR - 324
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE FREEBABE
INCOME FOR THE YEAR 37,502 48,568
Attributable to: PATR & 75 A
Owners of the Company ZAN/NEIEZ ZSDN 37,555 44,424
Non-controlling interests IEVE IR M = (53) 4,144
37,502 48,568
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

r MR R

As at 30 June 2018

720186 A30H
2018 2017
20184 20174
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Bt & FHET FET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BERRE 12 103,809 43,934
Goodwill BmE 13 62,637 41,357
Other intangible asset HAih\ & E 14 111 222
Investments in joint ventures REBERANKRE 15 1,196 920
Investments in associates R ERRIMNIEE 16 5,485 3,116
Held-to-maturity investments FAEZIHKRE 17 58,570 46,017
Available-for-sale investments AHBEERE 18 9,848 9,425
Deferred tax assets BEEHIEEE 28 1,016 1,375
Deposits RED 21 15,696 15,263
Total non-current assets FRBEELTE 258,368 161,629
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Inventories BE 19 8,244 6,685
Trade receivables 2 5 MW kI8 20 78,800 56,791
Prepayments, deposits and ERFIE - RES
other receivables H At i KR 21 12,262 8,849
Financial assets at fair value BRARBEFABREDY
through profit or loss TRAE 22 2,427 2,356
Held-to-maturity investments KEE Jiﬁ&é{ 17 10,927 15,005
Due from associates JE L BS & 2 B 5RIA 23 5,640 6,193
Due from related companies JRE W B Bt 1 ) /T/\I,E\ 24 2,735 5,284
Due from a joint venture JEUR—R& & AR FIE 15 415 .
Tax recoverable BEER 977 753
Pledged deposits ERER 25 1,352 821
Cash and cash equivalents ReMEeFEY 25 293,970 434,073
417,749 536,810
Assets of a disposal group classified SDEABELEN—EALE
as held for sale SEMEE 37 56,671 =
Total current assets MBI EERRE 474,420 536,810
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
B MR R 3R

As at 30 June 2018

M2018%6H30H
2018 2017
20185 20174
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 7E FET THT
CURRENT LIABILITIES G R=R
Trade payables 8 5 RN R 26 39,152 53,747
Other payables, accruals and HitpEMA A BFER R
deferred income BT A 27 48,486 37,155
Due to associates JEASTBSE & R R FNIE 23 207 213
Due to related companies FET R A jny\IE\ 24 452 423
Tax payable & 18 9,523 9,244
97,820 100,782
Liabilities directly associated with the HoMEARIELENEERE
assets classified as held for sale BEMARE 37 43 -
Total current liabilities mEaER 97,863 100,782
NET CURRENT ASSETS »wEJﬁE;‘%%E 376,557 436,028
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT BREERRBAE
LIABILITIES 634,925 597,657
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES RBEE
Deferred tax liabilities EEFIAA G 28 1,606 969
Provision B 15 29 2,222 1,074
Total non-current liabilities RSB EEZE 3,828 2,043
Net assets EEFRE 631,097 595,614
EQUITY R
Equity attributable to owners of the ARREEAEGESR
Company
Issued capital B BT 30 753 737
Reserves k1 33 566,383 531,882
567,136 532,619
Non-controlling interests JE 2 IS HE 25 63,961 62,995
Total equity R 631,097 595,614
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
mEEREFHR

Year ended 30 June 2018

BIE2018F6A30RILFE
Attributable to owners of the Company
LNGE TN
Shares held Available-
under the Share- ~ for-sale
Share  Capital share hased ~ investment Exchange Non-
Issued premium contrbution ~ award  payment  revauation Legal  fluctuation  Retained controlling Total
apitl  account  reseve  scheme  reserve  reseve  reserve  reserve profits Total  interests equity
kxR ARB
HHET  AER Tt
B&f Rt HE  REH  HAR  HERE Eing i #ER it
LUS | i Bt B EEEE  LEGE (1 il ait 2 4%
Notes  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS$'000
We B TEn TR TAn TR Thr  TEr Thr T TEr TEn TEn
(note 30) (note33)  (note32)  (note33) (note 33)
(HiE30) (3 (M) (Han) ()
AL RaniGF7ATe B D ST S 1% B a8 03 4059
Profit forthe year ERFIR . . . ) ) ) } Ty T R
Other comprehensive income~~ £E(2ENA:
for the year:
Changes in fai value of T EEREALER
available-for-sale investments %8 18 - - - - - 418 - - - 418 - 418
Bxchange differences on translation FTE /50 $EHES 28
of foreign operations - - - - - - = (904) = (904) (13) (919)

Reclassification adjustment fora ~ S—ERERLEMEN2

foreign operaton disposed of  Efet EHAEFR

during the year - - 5 = = S 5 5% - 5% - 2%
Reclassfication adjustment for ~ ERERAEAERAZI

a foreign operation upon 5 (R AhEA7)

subscription of additional interest 13— B2 E F et

in jointventures, which became £

subsidiaries during the year - - - - - - - 979 - 979 - 979
Share of other comprehensive loss EEAERFNERE

of joint ventures BE - - - - - - - (750) - (750) - (750)
Total comprehensive income ~~ FMAEHNBE

for the year - - - - - 418 - (79) 44,085 44424 4144 48,568
Acquisitons of subsidiaries ~~ WEHEAT % - - - - - - - - - -uB us
Capital contrbution by HoREERE

non-controlling nterests 37 - - - - - - 167) 202 90,344 90,379 3,147 123,526
Dividends paidipayable to B/ RfiEERER

non-controlling nterest bt = = = = = = = = = = (621) 621)
Final 2016 dividend WI6ERHRE 10 - - = - - - - - (146760 (14676) - (14676
Interim 2017 dividend WI7ERSRE 10 - = - - - - - - ey 665 - B
Issue of shares upon exercise of  EREEFHE

share options ki 30 1 2331 - = (508) - = - - 1,84 - 1,824
Purchases of shares for the share 5Tk £ B AEE R

award scheme 3 = - - (5,843) = = = = = (5,843) - (5,843)
Equiy-settled share option INEEEERRERS

anangemens bl - - - - 8,066 - - - - 8,060 - 8,006
Transfer to legal reserve ERTETEE = = = = = = 214 = 214 = = =
130 June 2017 H017%63%8 WSS B GRF B M 85 (0 BOMY 69 695 %6l

124 UMP HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED 2018 ANNUAL REPORT



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
mERBEBER

Year ended 30 June 2018

BZE2018F6A30R LFE
Attributable to owners of the Company
ROARAARE
Shares held Available-
under the Share- for-sale
Share  Capital share based  investment Fxchange Non-
Issued premium contrbution ~ award  payment  revaluation Legal  fluctuation  Retained controlling Total
apital  account  reserve  scheme  reserve  reserve  reserve resenve profits Total  interests equity
khgR  ARR
fHEY  AER ks
Baf Rt HE  RBH  BAR  HERE Exxd 8% HER i

OS] E1 Bt Bf  EfBE IEER i HE At i i
Notes  HKSOD0  HKSO0D  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKFOOD  HKSOOD  HKSOOD  HKS000  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKS'000  HKS'O00
W& A TEr  TRm  TRn TR TR Thn e TEm TEm TR TEm

(note 30) (note33)  (note32)  (note 33) (note 33)
(iE30) (s by (M) (H%3)

AT July 2017 #017E7R1A 737 355,560 36,131 (5,643) 15,104 418 035 (1072 130,949 532,619 62,995 595,614
Poftfor the e FAR - - ; ; ; - - - IS 6 30
Other comprehensive income~~ EAE [ 2EHA -

for the year:
Changes in fai value of THEEREMAER

availoble-for-sale investments £ 18 - - - - - (1) - - - (213) - 213
Exchange diferences on tanslation FTEEHERMERZE

of foreign operations - - - - - - - 181 - 181 - 181
Share of other comprehensive (- EBEL N ER

income of an associate 310N - - - - - - - 1 - 1 - 1
Share of other comprehensive  E{E-FAELTEL

income of a joint venture 2ERA - - - - - - - i - i = n
Totel comprehensive income. ~~ ERZEYAEE

for the year = = o = S (13) S 213 37,555 37,555 (53) 37,502
Acapisitons of WE-EHBAT /35

a subsidiary/business 3 - - - - - - - - - - 2,006 2,006
Waiver of other payable to ~ENFBRRRER

 former non-controlling interest ~ Ef4EK 5B = 5 1,163 = = = = = = 1,163 5 1,163
Dividends paidipayable to B/ Bl ERES

non-controlling nterest K& = = = = = = = = = = (987) (987)
Final 2017 dividend WERBRE 10 ° = = = ° ° ° - (16463 (16463 - (1646)
Intrim 2018 dividend MEEDERE 10 - = = ° = = = - WIe (d11e) - e
Issue ofshares upon exercise of BB EETEEES

share options i 30 16 24,901 - - (5,401) - - - - 19,516 - 19,516
Purchases of shares for the share St (7 2B BB E R

award scheme 3 = = = (4,909 = = = = - (4,909) - (4,909
Equity-setled share option exsERRERS

anangements 31 - - - - 1,1 - - - - 1,71 - 1,71
Transfer to legal resenve ERTLERE - - - - - - m - (211) - - -
AL30 e 2018 1010565308 BOOMARE WA (00 A N5 M @9 WM e 6% 63100

3 These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of  * ZERBRS RERGAVBRARANES FH
HK$566,383,000 (2017: HK$531,882,000) in the consolidated statement of 1#566,383,00078 7T (20174 : 531,882,000/

financial position. To) e
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
REHERER

Year ended 30 June 2018

BIE2018F6A30RILFE
2018 2017
20185 20174
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Bt =+ FHERT THET
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING REEZHNRERE
ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax B 54 AT A B 48,505 57,094
Adjustments for: HTINBEFE
Share of profits of associates JEE {5 Bk & 1% ) A (2,238) (1,622)
Share of profits and losses of joint 16 & B R RIMB K EE
ventures (254) 14,002
Bank interest income RITHLE WA 5 (376) (662)
Interest income on held-to-maturity BEZHHIE
investments FEWA 5 (2,870) (1,904)
Interest income on available-for-sale A HERE
investments M B A 5 (1,688) (495)
Dividend income from financial assets BARBETABRREN
at fair value through profit or loss TRIEERBWKA 5 (85) (84)
Fair value gains on financial assets at fair &2 7 BEABEN
value through TREENAAEE
profit or loss Wz (71) (330)
Gain on bargain purchase 5 B B W = - (401)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HE B A R s - (23,397)
Gain on remeasurement of previously BT ERTAE
held interests in joint ventures BE QAR MR 5 - (22,847)
Gain on remeasurement of previously BN EREMFE B4
held interest in an available-for-sale HEREEDHRE
investment 5 (500) -
Gain on disposal of held-to-maturity LEREEIHEEN
investments, net W 5 58 5 (169) =
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale HEAHEERED
investments, net I &5 F B 5 (78) -
Waiver of other payable B o0 H At BRI 5 (152) =
Depreciation and amortisation e gy 6 19,997 17,561
Loss on disposal of items of property, HEWE - BB KRE
plant and equipment BEEMERE 6 = 78
Write-off of items of property, plant and %% - BB L& EHEEB
equipment 54 -
Write-off of trade receivables 38 & 5 FE W kI8 6 116 88
Write-off of receivables due from a I 85 2k B — & B B 5 O FE LUK
related party IR 6 195 -
Impairment/(reversal of impairment) FE W B & R B SRR
of amounts due from associates B CRERE) 6 2,149 (282)
Equity-settled share option expense VARE 53 45 B B0 B IR A A X 6 1,771 8,066
64,306 44,865
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
REBRERER

Year ended 30 June 2018

EZE2018F6H30RILFE
2018 2017
20184 20174
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Bt &% FERT FET
Decrease/(increase) in inventories FERL, (M) (1,557) 111
Increase in trade receivables B 5 W FIA I N (20,657) (9,535)
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, FEMZRE - RES N
deposits and other receivables H b IR OB R A, (3 hn) (2,974) 1,188
Increase in amounts due JE LS Bgk & A ] FRIE G AN
from associates (1,596) (5,318)
Decrease in amounts due from related JiE iz B B R RROE R
companies 2,380 4,648
(Increase)/(decrease) in trade payables B 5 A RIE (1), (15,020) 6,379
Increase/(decrease) in other payables, HiEAZRIE B EAR
accruals and deferred income EIEW AL I, CRL D) 10,612 (1,154)
Decrease in amounts due to associates  J& < B & A B ZUE R A (6) (53)
Increase in amounts due to related JFE {<F B8 BSt - B ZR A 2 00
companies 16 422
Cash generated from operations REEBEENE S 35,504 41,553
Interest received 2B 376 662
Hong Kong profits tax paid EREEMNEH (7,861) (5,142)
Overseas taxes paid B RgsN IR (2,208) (2,230)
Net cash flows from operating activities K& FHE4LBRESHREFH 25,811 34,843
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING REZHNWRERE
ACTIVITIES
Interest income on held-to-maturity BEZIEHEENEWA
investments 2,067 1,904
Interest income on available-for-sale A EERENSRA
investments 1,658 495
Dividends received from financial assets ZWIZ A BEF AEBZH
at fair value through profit or loss THREEMNRE 85 84
Dividends received from associates B UEE A R R AR B 2,250 2,255
Acquisitions of subsidiaries/businesses WM B AR, ¥ 35 (24,043) 83,583
Disposal of subsidiaries k= o) =N 36 = 27,442
Investment in a joint venture R—HaBERRNKRE - (1,151)
Increase in amounts due from FEU & & A AR IEIE AN
joint ventures (415) (41,927)
Increase in an amount due to FERT—fE& & R R FKIBEM
a joint venture - 653
Investments in associates REEE A RNRE (2,370) (1,540)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

AERERER

Year ended 30 June 2018

BIE2018F6A30RILFE
2018 2017
20185 20174
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Bt =+ FHERT THET
Proceeds from disposal of items of HEWE WERZEER
property, plant and equipment PS5 IR = 5
Purchases of items of property, BEWE BWERRERHESR
plant and equipment (121,820) (21,584)
Proceeds from redemption/disposal BO/ HEREZIHRE
of held-to-maturity investments Fr8 58 118,940 68,713
Purchases of held-to-maturity investments fEE#H G EFHIEE (127,529) (72,848)
Proceeds from disposal of HERMHEERE
available-for-sale investments Frissk1E 82,498 19,402
Purchases of available-for-sale BEHEERE
investments (82,998) (19,403)
Deposits paid for purchases of items of  BEEYE - ME MXEHEE
property, plant and equipment X RE® (2,144) (8,377)
Deposit paid for acquisition of WHEH B R R MERE S
subsidiaries (6,000) =
Increase in pledged time deposits R E B E BE AN (531) (38)
Decrease in non-pledged deposits with ~ REVSEREIHA AiE6B
original maturity of more than three = @A EEBEIRD
months when acquired = 50,000
Net cash flows from/(used in) REZBEL (FA)
investing activities BEREFSH (160,352) 87,668
Cash Flows From Financing Activities METHNRERE
Proceeds from issue of shares BT D BTS20 T8 30 19,516 1,824
Purchases of shares for the share award  FLA% {5 2B FHEIEE E 1D 32
Scheme (4,909) (5,843)
Capital contribution by IR SN E
non-controlling interests - 123,526
Dividends paid EfAE (20,579) (18,334)
Dividends paid to non-controlling B FE 2 AR i 25 AR
interests - (621)
Net cash flows from/(used in) financing BEFBHESE (FFH)
activities RERETFHE (5,972) 100,552
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
REBRERER

Year ended 30 June 2018

EZE2018F6H30RILFE
2018 2017
20184 20174
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Bt 3t THET THET
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH HE&RBEEZEY
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ®in/ Ol 28 (140,513) 223,063
Effect of foreign exchange HINGE B < B B B 2 8RR
rate changes, net 410 (289)
Cash and cash equivalents at FUVRERREEFEED
beginning of year 434,073 211,299
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRESKRESEEY
AT END OF YEAR 293,970 434,073
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH RERREEBEWERDIN
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances Be RIRITHE 25 292,785 404,073
Non-pledged deposits with original RERERRIBER/IR
maturity of less than three months =8 AW EEFFR
when acquired 25 1,185 30,000
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year FRRERREFEY 293,970 434,073
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

St 75 3 2= B R

30 June 2018
2018%F 6 A30H
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CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION
UMP Healthcare Holdings Limited is a limited liability

company incorporated in the Cayman Islands. The principal
place of business of the Company is located at Room 1404-
1408, 14/F., Wing On House, 71 Des Voeux Road Central,
Hong Kong.

During the year, the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) were principally engaged in the
provision of healthcare services which include:

. corporate healthcare solution services;

. medical and dental services;

J medical imaging and laboratory services;

J other auxiliary medical services; and

J healthcare management services

The shares of the Company were listed on the Main Board

of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) on 27 November 2015 (the “Listing”).

UMP HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED
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CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(Continued)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Information about subsidiaries

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as

B 755 R 2R B B

30 June 2018
2018F 6 A30H

AAIREEER &)

MEARER

ARREEMBRAZFENT -

follows:
Place of Issued Percentage of
incorporation/ ordinary/ equity interest
registration registered attributable to Principal
Name and business share capital the Company activities
MR/ BRTER/
1 RERHE dfEkAx  FATRERELA  FEXRE
2018 2017
018F  2017F
UMP Healthcare Limited Cayman Island/ US$0.01 100 100 Investment holding
Hong Kong
UMP Healthcare Limited REES/ A 0.01%T Ragk
UMP Medical China Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands/ US$0.01 100 100 Investment holding
Hong Kong
UMP Medical China Holdings Limited AERAEE/BH 0.01%7T REZR
AP Care Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 100 100  Provision of medical and
laboratory services
AP Care Limited BB 10,000/7C REERRICRRS
Dr. Lee Dental Centre Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100 100 Provision of dental services
FEETHBLERAT BR 1T Rt T MR
eClaims (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong HK$100 100 100 Provision of electronic medical
claims submission platform
and information technology
services
eClaims (Hong Kong) Limited Bk 10047 RESFEERERS
FaRiERRMRS
Hong Tai Polyclinic Limited Macau MOP25,000 100 100 Provision of medical services
RRERARLRA 2P 25,000 2% REERRH
ProCare Medical Imaging & Laboratory Hong Kong HK$1 100 100 Provision of medical imaging
Centre (Kowloon) Limited and laboratory services
ERBREVERERTL(NE)ERAA BB 1A RRESYERRRY

20185 3R
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B ISR M A

30 June 2018

2018%F 6 A30H

132

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

PNAIREEER &)
M AT ER ()

Place of Issued Percentage of

incorporation/ ordinary/ equity interest

registration registered attributable to Principal
Name and business share capital the Company activities

ML/ R BRITEE/
28 RExHE AREE  ALFRERELS EREHR

2018 2017
2018%  2017%
UMP Corporate Administration Hong Kong HK$100 100 100 Investment holding and provision
Services Limited of company secretarial services
BREBLERBBRAA R 100% 7T RARRRREHAANERS
UMP Dental Centre Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 100 100 Provision of dental services
BREHTHTLAR] 30 10,000 70 BT MRS
UMP Dental Services Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100 100 Investment holding
BREHTHRBEBRD &R 2T REARK
UMP Health Centre Management Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100 100 Investment holding
BREBRETLERARAA R 2T REARK
UMP Health Plan Management Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100 100 Investment holding
BeEBREAHEEARA R 2T REARK
UMP Holdings (Macau) Limited Macau MOP25,000 100 100  Investment holding
UMP Holdings (Macau) Limited P 25,0002 & REBER
UMP Medical Centre Limited Hong Kong HK$100 100 100 Investment holding and provision
of medical services

BREBTLERAA & 1007 RABRRRHERRY
UMP Medical Centre (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong HK$100 100 100 Provision of medical services
BREBHL (BB BRAA A 10087 RUERRY
UMP Medical Centre Management (Il) Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$10,000 100 100 Provision of medical services
BEERTLER(E2)ARAH B 10,000/ 7 REERRS
UMP Medical Centre (New Territories) Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100 100 Provision of medical services
BAgHHL (R BRLA &E BT RUERRY
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

B 755 R 2R B B

30 June 2018
2018F 6 A30H

AAIREEER &)
MEATEER (#)

Place of Issued Percentage of
incorporation/ ordinary/ equity interest
registration registered attributable to Principal
Name and business share capital the Company activities
EMEYL/ ER BRAEE/
8 RExHH EfEE  ALFEERELRA EREHR
2018 2017
20185  2017F
UMP Professional Management Limited Hong Kong HK$50,000,012 100 100 Investment holding and provision
of corporate healthcare
solution
BoBBEXEERRAA B 50,000,012/ 7 RERRRRECRERRE
BANR
UMP Professional Management Macau MOP10,000 100 100 Investment holding and provision
(Macau) Limited @ of corporate healthcare
solution
UMPEXEE (&) BRAR Y AP 10,000 2FI% RARRRRHERERRERR
ES
UMP Specialist Medical Centre Limited Hong Kong HK$100 100 100 Provision of medical services
BREFEHERTLERA &R 100%7T RRERRS
UMP TCM Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 100 100 Provision of medical services
BoERTERAR, B 10,0007 RHEERRS
UMP Healthcare China Limited Cayman Islands/ Uss1 80 80 Investment holding
(“UMP Healthcare China”) @ Hong Kong
UMP Healthcare China Limited EEELVES: (E3 RERR
(HABEKPE])
United Medical Services (China) Limited British Virgin Islands/ Us$100 100 100 Investment holding
Hong Kong
United Medical Services (China) Limited EBRLEE /B 100%7 REER
TrRRERBRAER AR People’s Republic of US$1,000,000 100 100 Investment holding and provision
China (“PRC") healthcare management

ARBREEBRARAF

20185 3R

mEARLAB ([HE]) 1,000,000 T

RARRRREHERRREEE
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CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

PNAIREEER &)
M AT ER ()

Place of Issued Percentage of
incorporation/ ordinary/ equity interest
registration registered attributable to Principal
Name and business share capital the Company activities
EMAL/ ER BRAEE/
28 RExHE AREE  ALFRERELS EREHR
2018 2017
2018% 20175
LERRRRAARBERAA PRC RMB3,500,000 100 100 Investment holding and provision
(“Shanghai Eaton Consulting”)* healthcare services
LERRREHAARKARAA P AR% RARRRREHERRRRS
([ LBBR &R 3,500,007
IRBRMZHERAR PRC RMB3,500,000 100 100 Provision of healthcare and
(“Beijing Eaton Clinic” )“] medical services
ERBRAZHERA mE AR REBERELIBRRE
(Ht,?\i‘fﬁﬁﬁsﬁam o 3,500,0007C
FERRMZBERAA PRC RMBS3,500,000 100 100 Provision of healthcare and
(“Shanghai Eaton Clinic”) @ medical services
FERRMDEBERAF P ARE RUERRERERRY
([LBRRFAZ ) 3,500,0007C
FERBRFZBERAR PRC RMBS5,000,000 100 100 Provision of healthcare and
(formerly known as £/ BT % medical services
ARAF (“UMP Lujiazui”) @©
FERBRFAZBAERAR hE AR% REBERERBRRE
(R LEBEMDBERAA) 5,000,000
([LigtREIR]) e
UMP Healthcare (Shanghai) Group Limited  British Virgin Islands/ US$0.01 100 100 Investment holding
Hong Kong
UMP Healthcare (Shanghai) Group Limited ~ EBRLEE/E% 0.01%7 REBR
LBHBAEEEERAF 0 PRC RMB15,000,000 100 100 Provision of corporate healthcare
solution
LEBBLFERARAT mE AR RELXBRRRBATR
15,000,0007c¥

UMP HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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201846 A30H
1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION DARKEEER @)
(Continued)
Information about subsidiaries (Continued) MEraER (&)
Place of Issued Percentage of
incorporation/ ordinary/ equity interest
registration registered attributable to Principal
Name and business share capital the Company activities
EMEYL/ ER BRAEE/
8 REZE EfEx  FAATEGRELS  FEXE
2018 2017
20185  2017F
UMP Phoenix Healthcare Limited British Virgin Islands/ US$166.7 70 70 Investment holding
(to be renamed as UMP Healthcare Hong Kong
(Beijing) Group Limited
("UMP Healthcare (Beijing)")) "
UMP Phoenix Healthcare Limited RERLHE/ R 166.75% 70 REER
(# 5% RUMP Healthcare (Beijing)
Group Limited B2 8% (1t ) &8
ARRA(TRABH (LR
UMP Phoenix Management Limited British Virgin Islands/ US$0.01 70 70 Investment holding
Hong Kong
UMP Phoenix Management Limited ABRUHB/EE 0.01%7 REHER
P REHBREREAER AR PRC RMB 70 70 Provision of corporate healthcare
30,000,000" solution
TRBHEREREAERA RO HE ARE RUECRERRRERNR
30,000,0007t"
238 Day Surgery & Endoscopy Hong Kong HK$10,000 68 68 Provision of day surgery and
Centre Limited endoscopy services
238 REFMEAREFLARAT] ER 10,000 70 REARFHRARZRERE
238 Specialist Medical Centre Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 60 60 Provision of medical services
238 ERBERTORRAT BB 10,0007 REER R
Hirayanagi Shika Company Limited Hong Kong HK$500,000 71.76 71.76  Provision of dental services
FHENERAE &R 500,000 70 R MR
Hong Kong ENT Centre Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 50.5 50.5  Provision of medical consultation
and surgical services
ERERBRHLERAA R 10,000 70 R ERA AR T MR
20184 %R HaBBEEERAA 135
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CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

PNAIREEER &)
M AT ER ()

Place of Issued Percentage of
incorporation/ ordinary/ equity interest
registration registered attributable to Principal
Name and business share capital the Company activities
ML/ R BRITEE/
28 REXBE AREE  ALFRERELS EREHR
2018 2017
2018%  2017%
Metro International Clinic Limited Macau MOP100,000 69 69  Provision of medical
AR XEERAARAT R 10,0005 % RHEERRS
ProCare Medical Imaging & Hong Kong HK$10,000 62.5 62.5 Provision of medical imaging
Laboratory Centre Limited laboratory services
ERREYERLBTLERAR B 10,000% 7T REERYERICRRS
UMP Central Dental Centre Limited Hong Kong HK$100 90 90  Provision of dental services
BREHTHTL(FR) AR R 100% 7T BT HRS
UMP Dental Investment Hong Kong Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$2,000,000 82.35 82.35  Investment holding
UMP Dental Investment Hong Kong Limited &% 2,000,0007% 7 REZR
UMP Physiotherapy Centre Limited Hong Kong HK$§100 60 60 Provision of medical and
physiotherapy services
BREBNERETLERAR & 1007870 REEBRNDRRE
UMP Tsim Sha Tsui Dental Centre Hong Kong HK$10,000 87.65 87.65  Provision of dental services
Limited Hong Kong
BEBEHTHAO(RPB)ERAR B 10,0007 7T REC TR
Excellent City Limited (“Excellent City") Hong Kong HK$1 100 - Property holding
Excellent City Limited ([ Excellent City])® Bk BT BENE
Way Spread Limited (“Way Spread”) ™ Hong Kong HK$1 100 - Property holding
Way Spread Limited ([Way Spread )" BB 1B BENR
New Season Development Limited Hong Kong HK$10 60 - Provision of medical imaging and
(“New Season”) laboratory services
VIEZERERAR ([LE])0 R 1087 RUESYERILBRE

UMP HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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30 June 2018

20186 A30H
1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION DARKEEER @)
(Continued)
Information about subsidiaries (Continued) MEIRER (&)
Place of Issued Percentage of
incorporation/ ordinary/ equity interest
registration registered attributable to Principal
Name and business share capital the Company activities
EMEYL/ ER BRTERE/
£ 32 dfRE  ALFEERELS FEXE
2018 2017
20185  2017F

Longway Consultants Limited (“Longway”)® % Hong Kong HK$20 55 10 Provision of medical imaging

services

REERFRAA(TRE]) @0 &k 2087 RUEBEYERY

FREBEERBERART @0 PRC US$1,500,000 ™ 100 100 Provision of corporate healthcare

solution

B (LB EXRBARAF 00 HE 1,500,000% 7T RECXBEEREBATR

(@)  The statutory financial statements of these subsidiaries are not (@) REMBRAZEEUBBRRILIFHSE
audited by Ernst & Young, Hong Kong or another member firm of the BRKEHAMEBAKLKRIRBES
Ernst & Young global network. —KERREZ -

(b)  30% equity interests of these subsidiaries are held on trust by a (b) ZEME R TEB0%REE R — & AT IEE
former non-controlling shareholder on behalf of the Group. In the BRERFRAEEFRAREEEARE -EF
opinion of the directors, through various contractual agreements RA - EBARE B EAT IR R AR R ET 3L
entered into between the Group and the former non-controlling WENEHHE AEEMEZEHE
shareholder, the Group obtains 100% control over these subsidiaries. NARIEIT00%IEHIHE - Bt - ZEWER
Accordingly, these subsidiaries are accounted for as wholly-owned ASIRAAESENEENB AR -
subsidiaries of the Group.

() These subsidiaries are registered as wholly-foreign-owned enterprises () REMBRARAREBHBENEEZIMRING
under PRC law. BEME -

(d)  On 23 March 2017, Dynamic Ally Limited (“Dynamic Ally”), which (d)  M2017%3H238 » Dynamic Ally
is a wholly-owned subsidiary of NWS Holdings Limited, subscribed Limited ([Dynamic Ally] - #alZE %@
for 20 ordinary shares in UMP Healthcare China for a consideration BERARIZZEWBAR) ARBARE
of RMB110 million (equivalent to HK$123,526,000) (the “UMP 1108 &7t (FHE 123,526,000/ 7T) 3
Healthcare China Subscription”). Immediately after the UMP BHaBEhEM0RT K (e
Healthcare China Subscription, UMP Healthcare China is owned as BHEREEE]) - ZEHSBHD
to 80% by the Group and 20% by Dynamic Ally. REFHREZ BMABSTEAREER

Dynamic Ally% Bl # 5 80% 5 20%# 2 -

(e)  On 17 October 2016, the Group acquired 100% equity interest in ()  F20165F10A17H - AEBEUARKS.3
UMP Lujiazui from an independent third party for a consideration of BET(HEERSEERT) IRER
RMB8.3 million (equivalent to HK$9.5 million). Further details of this —RBIUE =TI LERRIR100%M%
acquisition are included in note 35 to the financial statements. e BB EENE - SHBHN

B B R 535
20184 %R HaBBEEERAA 137
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138

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1.

(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

(f) On 23 March 2017, the Group subscribed for additional 6,668
ordinary shares of UMP Healthcare (Beijing) for a consideration
of RMB32.3 million (equivalent to HK$36.3 million) (the “UMP
Healthcare (Beijing) Subscription”). Immediately after the UMP
Healthcare (Beijing) Subscription, the Group’s equity interest in
UMP Healthcare (Beijing) and its subsidiaries (the “UMP Healthcare
(Beijing) Group”) increased from 50% to 70% and the UMP
Healthcare (Beijing) Group became subsidiaries of the Group
thereafter. Further details of this business combination are included
in note 35 to the financial statements.

(g) On 10 August 2017, the Group acquired 100% equity interest in
Excellent City from an independent third party for a consideration
of HK$56.7 million. On 21 June 2018, the Group entered into
a provisional sales and purchase agreement to dispose of the
entire interest in Excellent City to an independent third party for a
consideration of HK$65.9 million. The transaction is expected to be
completed before September 2018.

(h)y ~ On 10 January 2018, the Group acquired 100% equity interest in
Way Spread from an independent third party for a consideration of
HK$57.2 million. The major asset acquired was an owner-occupied
property to be used as the Group’s office premises.

(i) On 29 March 2018, the Group acquired 60% equity interest in New
Season from an independent third party for a consideration of HK$6.

() On 1 June 2018, the Group, through its 60%-owned subsidiary, New
Season, acquired a further 45% equity interest in Longway for a
consideration of HK$2.8 million. Immediately after the acquisition,
the Group’s equity interest in Longway increased from 10% to 55%
and Longway became a subsidiary of the Group thereafter. Further
details of this business combination are included in note 35 to the
financial statements.

(k) As at 30 June 2018, the paid up share capital of this subsidiary was
RMB2,723,780.

0] As at 30 June 2018, the paid up share capital of this subsidiary was
RMB10,150,000.

(m)  As at 30 June 2018, the paid up share capital of this subsidiary was
RMB6,707,248.

Except for UMP Healthcare Limited and UMP Medical China
Holdings Limited, the above subsidiaries are indirectly held by
the Company.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which,
in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results
for the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets
of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in
the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive
length.

UMP HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED

AAREEER @

MEARER (&)
() 201738238 - REEUARY32.3

BET(FHER3GCIEEET) MKRER
M o5 B8 1% (A 30) 58 9h6,6680% X i A%
(HEeEBB (QtR) REEIE]) - B
MEBK (R RBEEEE  AEER
BMABK (R REMBAR ([HaE
BB (L) £E]) MREH50%E MmE
70% - MEAEBEGtR) SEEEKA
REENHBERR - BHAKRBEERKSGH
R — S IBE N AR M35 -

K2017F8R108 « "EELAS6.7EEE
TLHIRE R — BB = 77 Wi Excellent
City®)100% % # - 7201856 H21H -
REBEFTZ—HERFEERZE 4659
BEATHREMN-—ZBUE=FHE
Excellent CityR) 2 &% o FHEHZELR
2 1% 12018F9 A RITEK ©

R2018F1A108  REBIA57.25 &
BEILHRER—EBME = K EwWay
Spread®I100% A 4% < PRI T2 & &
A—EEIAADE  BREALER
R AEWE -

72018F3 A29H » ANEE LA6E TH R
B —&IBLE =7 W IER60%M%
o

R2018F6A1R  AEBEEBEES
60%E MM B ARIIE - A2.88 &%
TR EURERIENEINMS%ARRE - B0
WE%R AEERREMZRERI0%
BNESS%  MEREEEKAREED
MEBAR - BRALLEEBAHNE—®
FEHR M IS ®R M T3S -

K2018F6H308 - LM BA RIME R
KEANRE?2,723,7807T °

12018F 6308 « BB QR M TR
AAEARE10,150,0007T ©

72018F6A308 « BHIBA R TR
KEARYE6,707,2487T °

PRUMP Healthcare Limited RUMP
Medical China Holdings LimitedZ b

LB ARAARAREEES -

EERR LRMIARRZMERR

J5E

BYREAEEFAEEREAREE

FEZEREDE - EFRAA/HINEM
MEBARZFBEEEERBRITE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
(which include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”)
and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”), accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They
have been prepared under the historical cost convention,
except for financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
and certain available-for-sale investments which have been
measured at fair value. Disposal group held for sale is stated at
the lower of their carrying amount and fair value less costs to
sell as further explained in note 2.4. These financial statements
are presented in Hong Kong dollars and all values are rounded
to the nearest thousand except when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2018. A
subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity), directly
or indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is achieved
when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to
affect those returns through its power over the investee (i.e.,
existing rights that give the Group the current ability to direct

the relevant activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a
majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the
Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in

assessing whether it has power over an investee, including:

(a) the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders
of the investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

20185 3R

R M

30 June 2018
2018F 6 A30H

2.1 REEE
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Sh - I FF I BRIAB TR - ME S
BESEONBEERBONT -

mEE%E
BEVBRERBEANAEEBE2018%F6
A30B EFEMIHBRE - WBRARA
EESBERAQRREHNEE (8
HEUHER) WASEBERSHERKE
HREBMZAXARNEGREHRDY
O BBENEHREHRITER
NEEBEER - AANEERHEEZER
Ml (BNERE FASEEEREE
HRAETBMEE ) o
MANAEERHEREREHRIEE
RS R LR D8 - BIFTEAR QR
ERAREFREHRE  KEEGE
BB RBEE RSN BIE:

a) HEZREHREMEREFTEA

(b) REEMABHLBENERN &

(0 AEENRERNREBEREE-

HaBBEEERAA 139



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 7% R Y ot

30 June 2018
2018%F 6 A30H

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued) 2.1 RBEE )

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared
for the same reporting period as the Company, using
consistent accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries
are consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains
control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that

such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the parent of the
Group and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results
in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. All
intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and
cash flows relating to transactions between members of the

Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of the three elements of control described above. A
change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss
of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises
(i) the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the
subsidiary, (ii) the carrying amount of any non-controlling
interest and (iii) the cumulative translation differences
recorded in equity; and recognises (i) the fair value of the
consideration received, (ii) the fair value of any investment
retained and (iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit or
loss. The Group’s share of components previously recognised
in other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss
or retained profits, as appropriate, on the same basis as would
be required if the Group had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities.

UMP HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

DISCLOSURES
The Group has adopted the following new and revised HKFRSs

for the first time for the current year’s financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative

Amendments to HKAS 12 Recognition of Deferred Tax
Assets for Unrealised Losses
Amendments to HKFRS Disclosure of Interests in Other
12 Included in Annual Entities: Clarification of the
Improvements to HKFRSs Scope of HKFRS 12

2014-2016 Cycle

None of the above amendments to HKFRSs has had a
significant financial effect on these financial statements.

20185 3R

B 755 R 2R B B

30 June 2018
2018F 6 A30H

22 B BEREES S

AEBNANFREF B HRKREREA T
e REERT BBV BHRELER -

BB G ER wEE
B7EZEE]
BB G ER BARE B EE
E125% 2185 TERIEL T
HEE
2014F 22016 FHE BHEREME
BHBHREERZF BT
EHAETRBEZEA EEBEEHY
PGS E LR FE125 K HLEL
ZAEE] F12852 %0
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A EHEBH B REEN VBT HEY
HEMBBRREREAYBLE -
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in

these financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 2

Amendments to HKFRS 4

HKFRS 9

Amendments to HKFRS 9

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28 (2011)

HKFRS 15

Amendments to HKFRS 15

HKFRS 16
HKFRS 17
Amendments to HKAS 19
Amendments to HKAS 28
Amendments to HKAS 40

HK(IFRIC)-Int 22

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23

Annual Improvements to
2014-2016 Cycle

Annual Improvements to
2015-2017 Cycle

A w N -

adoption

142

Classification and Measurement
of Share-based Payment
Transactions’

Applying HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments with HKFRS 4
Insurance Contracts’

Financial Instruments’

Prepayment Features with
Negative Compensation’
Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture?

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers’

Clarifications to HKFRS 15
Revenue from Contracts with
Customers'

Leases’

Insurance Contracts’

Plan Amendment, Curtailment
or Settlement?

Long-term Interests in Associates
and Joint Ventures?

Transfers of Investment
Property’

Foreign Currency Transactions
and Advance Consideration’

Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments?

Amendments to HKFRS 1 and
HKAS 28’

Amendments to a number of
HKFRSs?

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021
No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for

UMP HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(Continued)
Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected to

be applicable to the Group is described below:

In September 2014, the HKICPA issued the final version of
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (“HKFRS 9”), bringing together
all phases of the financial instruments project to replace HKAS
39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement and
all previous versions of HKFRS 9. The standard introduces new
requirements for classification and measurement, impairment
and hedge accounting. The Group will adopt HKFRS 9
from 1 July 2018. The Group will not restate comparative
information and will recognise any transition adjustments
against the opening balance of equity at 1 July 2018. During
the year, the Group has performed an assessment of the impact
of the adoption of HKFRS 9. The expected impacts relate
to the classification and measurement and the impairment

requirements and are summarised as follows:

(@) Classification and measurement

The Group does not expect that the adoption of HKFRS
9 will have a significant impact on the classification and
measurement of its financial assets. It expects to continue
measuring at fair value all financial assets currently
held at fair value. Equity investments currently held as
available for sale will be measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income as the investments are
intended to be held for the foreseeable future and the
Group expects to apply the option to present fair value
changes in other comprehensive income. Gains and
losses recorded in other comprehensive income for the
equity investments cannot be recycled to profit or loss
when the investments are derecognised.

20185 3R
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(Continued)

144

(b)

Impairment

HKFRS 9 requires an impairment on debt instruments
recorded at amortised cost or at fair value through
other comprehensive income, lease receivables, loan
commitments and financial guarantee contracts that are
not accounted for at fair value through profit or loss
under HKFRS 9, to be recorded based on an expected
credit loss model either on a twelve-month basis or
a lifetime basis. The Group will apply the simplified
approach and record lifetime expected losses that
are estimated based on the present values of all cash
shortfalls over the remaining life of all of its trade
receivables. Furthermore, the Group will apply the
general approach and record twelve-month expected
credit losses that are estimated based on the possible
default events on its other receivables within the next
twelve months. The Group has determined that, due to
the unsecured nature of its trade and other receivables,
the provision for impairment may increase upon the
initial adoption of the standard.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(Continued)
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers (“HKFRS

15”), issued in July 2014, establishes a new five-step model
to account for revenue arising from contracts with customers.
Under HKFRS 15, revenue is recognised at an amount that
reflects the consideration to which an entity expects to be
entitled in exchange for transferring goods or services to
a customer. The principles in HKFRS 15 provide a more
structured approach for measuring and recognising revenue.
The standard also introduces extensive qualitative and
quantitative disclosure requirements, including disaggregation
of total revenue, information about performance obligations,
changes in contract asset and liability account balances
between periods and key judgements and estimates. The
standard will supersede all current revenue recognition
requirements under HKFRSs. Either a full retrospective
application or a modified retrospective adoption is required
on the initial application of the standard. In June 2016, the
HKICPA issued amendments to HKFRS 15 to address the
implementation issues on identifying performance obligations,
application guidance on principal versus agent and licences
of intellectual property, and transition. The amendments are
also intended to help ensure a more consistent application
when entities adopt HKFRS 15 and decrease the cost and
complexity of applying the standard. The Group plans to
adopt the transitional provisions in HKFRS 15 to recognise
the cumulative effect of initial adoption as an adjustment
to the opening balance of retained profits at 1 July 2018. In
addition, the Group plans to apply the new requirements only
to contracts that are not completed before 1 July 2018. The
Group expects that the transitional adjustment to be made
on 1 July 2018 upon initial adoption of HKFRS 15 may not
be material. However, the expected changes in accounting
policies, as further explained below, may have a material
impact on the Group’s financial statements from 1 July 2018
onwards. During the year, the Group has performed an
assessment on the impact of the adoption of HKFRS 15.
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KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(Continued)

The Group’s principal activity is provision of healthcare
services. The Group does not expect that the adoption of
HKFRS 15 will have a significant impact on the Group's
financial performance and financial position. However, the
presentation and disclosure requirements in HKFRS 15 are
more detailed than those under the current HKAS 18 Revenue.
The presentation and disclosure requirements represent a
significant change from current practice and may significantly
increase the volume of disclosures required in the Group’s
financial statements. Many of the disclosure requirements
in HKFRS 15 are new and the Group has assessed that the
impact of some of these disclosure requirements may be
significant. In particular, the Group expects that the notes
to the financial statements may be expanded because of the
disclosure of significant judgements made on determining
the transaction prices of those contracts that include variable
consideration, how the transaction prices have been allocated
to the performance obligations, and the assumptions made
to estimate the stand-alone selling price of each performance
obligation. In addition, as required by HKFRS 15, the Group
may disaggregate revenue recognised from contracts with
customers into categories that depict how the nature, amount,
timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows are affected
by economic factors. It may also disclose information about
the relationship between the disclosure of disaggregated
revenue and revenue information disclosed for each reportable
segment.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(Continued)
HKFRS 16, issued in May 2016, replaces HKAS 17 Leases,

HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 Determining whether an Arrangement contains
a Lease, HK(SIC)-Int 15 Operating Leases — Incentives and
HK(SIC)-Int 27 Evaluating the Substance of Transactions
Involving the Legal Form of a Lease. The standard sets out the
principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and
disclosure of leases and requires lessees to recognise assets and
liabilities for most leases. The standard includes two elective
recognition exemptions for lessees — leases of low-value assets
and short-term leases. At the commencement date of a lease,
a lessee will recognise a liability to make lease payments (i.e.,
the lease liability) and an asset representing the right to use
the underlying asset during the lease term (i.e., the right-of-use
asset). The right-of-use asset is subsequently measured at cost
less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses
unless the right-of-use asset meets the definition of investment
property in HKAS 40 Investment Property, or relates to a class
of property, plant and equipment to which the revaluation
model is applied. The lease liability is subsequently increased
to reflect the interest on the lease liability and reduced for
the lease payments. Lessees will be required to separately
recognise the interest expense on the lease liability and the
depreciation expense on the right-of-use asset. Lessees will
also be required to remeasure the lease liability upon the
occurrence of certain events, such as change in the lease term
and change in future lease payments resulting from a change
in an index or rate used to determine those payments. Lessees
will generally recognise the amount of the remeasurement of
the lease liability as an adjustment to the right-of-use asset.
Lessor accounting under HKFRS 16 is substantially unchanged
from the accounting under HKAS 17. Lessors will continue to
classify all leases using the same classification principle as in
HKAS 17 and distinguish between operating leases and finance
leases. HKFRS 16 requires lessees and lessors to make more
extensive disclosures than under HKAS 17.
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KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(Continued)
Lessees can choose to apply the standard using either a full

retrospective or a modified retrospective approach. The Group
expects to adopt HKFRS 16 from 1 July 2019. The Group is
currently assessing the impact of HKFRS 16 upon adoption and
is considering whether it will choose to take advantage of the
practical expedients available and which transition approach
and reliefs will be adopted. As disclosed in note 40 to the
financial statements, at 30 June 2018, the Group had future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating
leases in aggregate of approximately HK$40,927,000. Upon
adoption of HKFRS 16, certain amounts included therein
may need to be recognised as new right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities. Further analysis, however, will be needed to
determine the amount of new rights of use assets and lease
liabilities to be recognised, including, but not limited to, any
amounts relating to leases of low-value assets and short term
leases, other practical expedients and reliefs chosen, and new
leases entered into before the date of adoption.

Amendments to HKAS 40, issued in April 2017, clarify when
an entity should transfer property, including property under
construction or development, into or out of investment
property. The amendments state that a change in use occurs
when the property meets, or ceases to meet, the definition of
investment property and there is evidence of the change in
use. A mere change in management’s intentions for the use of
a property does not provide evidence of a change in use. The
amendments should be applied prospectively to the changes in
use that occur on or after the beginning of the annual reporting
period in which the entity first applies the amendments. An
entity should reassess the classification of property held at the
date that it first applies the amendments and, if applicable,
reclassify property to reflect the conditions that exist at
that date. Retrospective application is only permitted if it is
possible without the use of hindsight. The Group expects to
adopt the amendments prospectively from 1 July 2018. The
amendments are not expected to have any significant impact
on the Group’s financial statements.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(Continued)
HK(IFRIC)-Int 22, issued in June 2017, provides guidance on

how to determine the date of the transaction when applying
HKAS 21 to the situation where an entity receives or pays
advance consideration in a foreign currency and recognises
a non-monetary asset or liability. The interpretation clarifies
that the date of the transaction for the purpose of determining
the exchange rate to use on initial recognition of the related
asset, expense or income (or part of it) is the date on which
an entity initially recognises the non-monetary asset (such
as a prepayment) or non-monetary liability (such as deferred
income) arising from the payment or receipt of the advance
consideration. If there are multiple payments or receipts
in advance of recognising the related item, the entity
must determine the transaction date for each payment or
receipt of the advance consideration. Entities may apply the
interpretation on a full retrospective basis or on a prospective
basis, either from the beginning of the reporting period in
which the entity first applies the interpretation or the beginning
of the prior reporting period presented as comparative
information in the financial statements of the reporting period
in which the entity first applies the interpretation. The Group
expects to adopt the interpretation prospectively from 1 July
2018. The interpretation is not expected to have any significant

impact on the Group’s financial statements.

20185 3R

B 755 R 2R B B

30 June 2018
2018F 6 A30H

2.3 EEMEEARERZEBUE

AR ()

2017456 A B A ) & (BB B 15 3
EREZEY)— REFERE  HRE
M&zﬁxiﬁzh‘?\\@%ﬁﬂﬁw RIERIEE
ﬁ%liéf%ﬁkié%ﬁ’al N BERAEEG
FHEERIE2 1SR N B X 5 A B4
155 - ZREBEE  BRETRE AR
HEEEE « A (SEF D)
ANEXMEMNRSBEH  REBIL
EREA NI WBB AR ERAEENIE
EMEEE (FINTENFIE) S
BE (PIEEWA) BB Ef - (4R
HEATE B ¥ kZEBE [ B FIE - Al
ERVAEETERNRESEMNRIWK
WX S5 BE - BEAIE2EBREES
RABREE  AERBBEXERZIERE
MRS AR R B E A EAZIER
BOREHNTBHREPOLRERF
23 E—REBFABE  EAZER
1o AEEBHBM2018F7 A1 HEE
BRMZIERE  EHZRERTEY
REENPBRREKTANERTE -

HaBBEEERAA 149



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

St 75 3 2= B R

30 June 2018
2018%F 6 A30H

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG

150

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(Continued)
HK(IFRIC)-Int 23, issued in July 2017, addresses the

accounting for income taxes (current and deferred) when tax
treatments involve uncertainty that affects the application
of HKAS 12 (often referred to as “uncertain tax positions”).
The interpretation does not apply to taxes or levies outside
the scope of HKAS 12, nor does it specifically include
requirements relating to interest and penalties associated
with uncertain tax treatments. The interpretation specifically
addresses (i) whether an entity considers uncertain tax
treatments separately; (ii) the assumptions an entity makes
about the examination of tax treatments by taxation
authorities; (iii) how an entity determines taxable profits or
tax losses, tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits
and tax rates; and (iv) how an entity considers changes in
facts and circumstances. The interpretation is to be applied
retrospectively, either fully retrospectively without the use
of hindsight or retrospectively with the cumulative effect of
application as an adjustment to the opening equity at the date
of initial application, without the restatement of comparative
information. The Group expects to adopt the interpretation
from 1 July 2019. The interpretation is not expected to have
any significant impact on the Group’s financial statements.

UMP HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED

2.3 CEEMEEARERZEBUE

£ XA ()

201767 ARMHES (BRI BRE
REZES) REFBREREDRS
B R EERAT AR ERE 125
BT REE M CZE T TREERER ) B
ABRBEMEH (BB REE) W% -
ZEZREBTEARBB G ERE 2%
BEAINRIBNAE - TIERFERIE

B35 N A REE RSB NE REIRE
FARMEX - ZEARERERE  VEE
ERBUEERTEENBEE (VBB

HEBHAETEHBESTBORE (i
FRE NI E R AR BRI R IE 18 -
BME - RBAHEEE  REBARIEIE
ERME: RVEBNAUZESERS
AEV L - ZIERBAKEENER -
ETHASERARZELHER -
UERRRGEATEIERYERER
HEAM VIR FAEREPER - @
TEILRER - AEBIEHE20194F
7R1BRBENZIERE - BHZ2RER
TEHAEENT BRI EKTMWER

By 48R
&

2018 ANNUAL REPORT



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES

Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long term
interest of generally not less than 20% of the equity voting
rights and over which it is in a position to exercise significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in
the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee,
but is not control or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the
parties that have joint control of the arrangement have rights
to the net assets of the joint venture. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement,
which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities

require the unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

The Group’s investments in associates and joint ventures are
stated in the consolidated statement of financial position at
the Group’s share of net assets under the equity method of
accounting, less any impairment losses. Adjustments are made
to bring into line any dissimilar accounting policies that may
exist. The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and
other comprehensive income of associates and joint ventures
is included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
consolidated other comprehensive income, respectively. In
addition, when there has been a change recognised directly
in the equity of the associate or joint venture, the Group
recognises its share of any changes, when applicable, in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity. Unrealised gains
and losses resulting from transactions between the Group and
its associates or joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of
the Group’s investments in the associates or joint ventures,
except where unrealised losses provide evidence of an
impairment of the assets transferred. Goodwill arising from the
acquisition of associates or joint ventures is included as part of

the Group’s investments in associates or joint ventures.
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152

POLICIES (Continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures (Continued)

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment
in a joint venture or vice versa, the retained interest is not
remeasured. Instead, the investment continues to be accounted
for under the equity method. In all other cases, upon loss of
significant influence over the associate or joint control over
the joint venture, the Group measures and recognises any
retained investment at its fair value. Any difference between
the carrying amount of the associate or joint venture upon loss
of significant influence or joint control and the fair value of the
retained investment and proceeds from disposal is recognised

in profit or loss.

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred is measured at the
acquisition date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition
date fair values of assets transferred by the Group, liabilities
assumed by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree
and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for
control of the acquiree. For each business combination, the
Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling interests
in the acquiree that are present ownership interests and entitle
their holders to a proportionate share of net assets in the event
of liquidation at fair value or at the proportionate share of
the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other components
of non-controlling interests are measured at fair value.
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial
assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification
and designation in accordance with the contractual terms,
economic circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the
acquisition date. This includes the separation of embedded
derivatives in host contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition
date fair value and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in
profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (Continued)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability is measured at
fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or
loss. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted for within

equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of
the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount
recognised for non-controlling interests and any fair value of
the Group’s previously held equity interests in the acquiree
over the identifiable net assets acquired and liabilities
assumed. If the sum of this consideration and other items
is lower than the fair value of the net assets acquired, the
difference is, after reassessment, recognised in profit or loss as

a gain on bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less
any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for
impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be
impaired. The Group performs its annual impairment test
of goodwill as at 30 June. For the purpose of impairment
testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from
the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group’s cash-
generating units, or groups of cash-generating units, that are
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the Group

are assigned to those units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to
which the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) is less
than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An
impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a

subsequent period.
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POLICIES (Continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (Continued)

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit
(or group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation
within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the
operation disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the
operation when determining the gain or loss on the disposal.
Goodwill disposed of in these circumstances is measured
based on the relative value of the operation disposed of and

the portion of the cash-generating unit retained.

Fair value measurement

The Group measures certain equity investments and debt
investments at fair value at the end of each reporting period.
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction
to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either in the
principal market for the asset or liability, or in the absence of a
principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset
or liability. The principal or the most advantageous market
must be accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset
or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability,
assuming that market participants act in their economic best

interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset
in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable

inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Fair value measurement (Continued)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or
disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the
fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest

level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a

whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or
liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which
the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement is observable,
either directly or indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which

the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that
is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the
end of each reporting period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories, deferred tax assets and financial assets), the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable
amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash- generating unit’s
value in use and its fair value less costs of disposal, and is
determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does
not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of
those from other assets or groups of assets, in which case the
recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit

to which the asset belongs.
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POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued)

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount
of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged to the
statement of profit or loss in the period in which it arises in
those expense categories consistent with the function of the

impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as
to whether there is an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased.
If such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is
estimated. A previously recognised impairment loss of an
asset other than goodwill is reversed only if there has been
a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount of that asset, but not to an amount higher than the
carrying amount that would have been determined (net of
any depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such an
impairment loss is credited to the statement of profit or loss in
the period in which it arises.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a) the party is a person or a close member of that person’s
family and that person
(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i)  has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or of a parent of the Group;

or

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

(i)  the entity and the Group are members of the same

group;

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow
subsidiary of the other entity);

(iii) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party;
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
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POLICIES (Continued)

Related parties (Continued)

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies: (Continued)

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group;

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity); and

=

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it is
a part, provides key management personnel services

to the Group or to the parent of the Group.

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses. When
an item of property, plant and equipment is classified as part of
a disposal group classified as held for sale, it is not depreciated
and is accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 5, as further
explained in the accounting policy for “Disposal group held
for sale”. The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable costs
of bringing the asset to its working condition and location for
its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs and
maintenance, is normally charged to the statement of profit or
loss in the period in which it is incurred. In situations where
the recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a
major inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of the
asset as a replacement. Where significant parts of property,
plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals,
the Group recognises such parts as individual assets with
specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(Continued)

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write
off the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to
its residual value over its estimated useful life. The principal

annual rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Buildings Over the shorter of 50 years or
the remaining lease terms
Leasehold improvements 20%

Furniture, fixtures and office 20%

equipment
Medical equipment 20%
Computer equipment and 33.3%
software
Motor vehicle 33.3%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at
each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or
retirement recognised in the statement of profit or loss in the
year the asset is derecognised is the difference between the net

sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

If a property occupied by the Group as an owner-occupied
property becomes an investment property, the Group accounts
for such property in accordance with the policy stated under
“Property, plant and equipment and depreciation” up to the
date of change in use, and any difference at that date between
the carrying amount and the fair value of the property is
accounted for as a revaluation in accordance with the policy
stated under “Property, plant and equipment and depreciation”
above.
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POLICIES (Continued)

Disposal group held for sale

Disposal group is classified as held for sale if their carrying
amounts will be recovered principally through a sales
transaction rather than through continuing use. For this to be
the case, the disposal group must be available for immediate
sale in its present condition subject only to terms that are
usual and customary for the sale of such disposal group and
its sale must be highly probable. All assets and liabilities of
a subsidiary classified as a disposal group are reclassified
as held for sale regardless of whether the Group retains a

non-controlling interest in its former subsidiary after the sale.

Disposal group (other than investment properties and financial
assets) classified as held for sale is measured at the lower
of their carrying amounts and fair values less costs to sell.
Property, plant and equipment classified as held for sale is not
depreciated.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired
in a business combination is the fair value at the date of
acquisition. The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to
be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives
are subsequently amortised over the useful economic life and
assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that
the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period
and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a
finite useful life are reviewed at least at each financial year

end.

Customer relationship

Customer relationship is stated at cost less any impairment
losses and is amortised on the straight-line basis over its
estimated useful economic life of 3 years.

Operating leases

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets remain with the lessor are accounted for
as operating leases. Where the Group is the lessee, rentals
payable under operating leases net of any incentives received
from the lessor are charged to the statement of profit or loss on
the straight-line basis over the lease terms.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
receivables, held-to-maturity investments or available-for-sale
financial investments, as appropriate. When financial assets
are recognised initially, they are measured at fair value plus
transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the
financial assets, except in the case of financial assets recorded
at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally established by

regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on
their classification as follows:

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include
financial assets held for trading and financial assets designated
upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.
Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they are
acquired for the purpose of sale in the near term. Derivatives,
including separated embedded derivatives, are also classified
as held for trading unless they are designated as effective
hedging instruments as defined by HKAS 39.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried
in the statement of financial position at fair value with net
changes in fair value recognised in the statement of profit
or loss. These net fair value changes do not include any
dividends or interest earned on these financial assets, which
are recognised in accordance with the policies set out for
“Revenue recognition” below.

20185 3R

R M

30 June 2018
2018F 6 A30H

24 EEESTHBEME )

RERHMWERMEE
NmERRTE
TREENVERRESBR/EAAE
B ABBEZEBEE - BERREUR
B BARIMREXAHLESRE
B (WEm) - eREEEV SRR
BUARABENKESREEZRHK
A& (RorRBEAABRENERE
ERRIN) ©

E-—REMEEEERXSA (AKX
SEAFEEZEEER) TARER -
—REBVERR—RMIGHRERED
E—EHEARNEEZERMEEER

= °

BREGTE
TREENREAERN T RET:

N

BRR
BARBEAABENEREERRR
EEENEREERNFSERRIEER
AR BEFABSNEREE - HMIE
TREERSERPANEE  REME
ENBABEERE -TETR(BEB
MBRARTETIR) TE0BARIKEER
B RIFEREESBEEEANRE39
SAAAENBERERTA -

N,

N

BAR BEN BRSNS RAERY
RREBAR EEFIE - ArEEDS
DR EA BB ER - S AR EE
2 )5 B 7 045 4 B A 7 T AR
WA B S A8 - B AR 8 T X [
AR FTBEE T AR -

HaBBEEERAA 161



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

o 75 % 3R B

30 June 2018
2018%F 6 A30H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

162

POLICIES (Continued)

Investments and other financial assets (Continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. After initial measurement, such assets are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate method less any allowance for impairment.
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and includes fees or
costs that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The
effective interest rate amortisation and the loss arising from

impairment are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Held-to-maturity investments

Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments and fixed maturity are classified as held to maturity
when the Group has the positive intention and ability to
hold them to maturity. Held-to-maturity investments are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate method less any allowance for impairment.
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and includes fees or
costs that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The
effective interest rate amortisation and the loss arising from

impairment are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Available-for-sale financial investments

Available-for-sale financial investments are non-derivative
financial assets in listed and unlisted equity investments and
debt securities. Equity investments classified as available for
sale are those which are neither classified as held for trading
nor designated as at fair value through profit or loss. Debt
securities in this category are those which are intended to be
held for an indefinite period of time and which may be sold
in response to needs for liquidity or in response to changes in
market conditions.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Investments and other financial assets (Continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments (Continued)

After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial
investments are subsequently measured at fair value, with
unrealised gains or losses recognised as other comprehensive
income in the available-for-sale investment revaluation
reserve until the investment is derecognised, at which time
the cumulative gain or loss is recognised in the statement
of profit or loss, or until the investment is determined to be
impaired, when the cumulative gain or loss is reclassified
from the available-for-sale investment revaluation reserve to
the statement of profit or loss. Interest and dividends earned
whilst holding the available-for-sale financial investments are
reported as interest income and dividend income, respectively
and are recognised in the statement of profit or loss as other
income in accordance with the policies set out for “Revenue

recognition” below.

When the fair value of unlisted equity investments cannot be
reliably measured because (a) the variability in the range of
reasonable fair value estimates is significant for that investment
or (b) the probabilities of the various estimates within the range
cannot be reasonably assessed and used in estimating fair
value, such investments are stated at cost less any impairment

losses.

The Group evaluates whether the ability and intention to
sell its available-for-sale financial assets in the near term are
still appropriate. When, in rare circumstances, the Group is
unable to trade these financial assets due to inactive markets,
the Group may elect to reclassify these financial assets if
management has the ability and intention to hold the assets for
the foreseeable future or until maturity.
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POLICIES (Continued)

Investments and other financial assets (Continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments (Continued)

For a financial asset reclassified from the available-for-sale
category, the fair value carrying amount at the date of
reclassification becomes its new amortised cost and any
previous gain or loss on that asset that has been recognised in
equity is amortised to profit or loss over the remaining life of
the investment using the effective interest rate. Any difference
between the new amortised cost and the maturity amount is
also amortised over the remaining life of the asset using the
effective interest rate. If the asset is subsequently determined to
be impaired, then the amount recorded in equity is reclassified
to the statement of profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group’s consolidated

statement of financial position) when:

e the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or

J the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a
third party under a “pass-through” arrangement; and
either (a) the Group has transferred substantially all
the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of

the asset.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Derecognition of financial assets (Continued)

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement,
it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risk
and rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the Group
continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the
Group’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also
recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the

rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over
the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original
carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of

consideration that the Group could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a
group of financial assets is impaired. An impairment exists if
one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition
of the asset have an impact on the estimated future cash flows
of the financial asset or the group of financial assets that can
be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may include
indications that a debtor or a group of debtors is experiencing
significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments, the probability that they
will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation and
observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease
in the estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears

or economic conditions that correlate with defaults.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

166

POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group first
assesses whether impairment exists individually for financial
assets that are individually significant, or collectively for
financial assets that are not individually significant. If the
Group determines that no objective evidence of impairment
exists for an individually assessed financial asset, whether
significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of financial
assets with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively
assesses them for impairment. Assets that are individually
assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss is,
or continues to be, recognised are not included in a collective

assessment of impairment.

The amount of any impairment loss identified is measured
as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding
future credit losses that have not yet been incurred). The
present value of the estimated future cash flows is discounted
at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e., the
effective interest rate computed at initial recognition).

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use
of an allowance account and the loss is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss. Interest income continues to be
accrued on the reduced carrying amount using the rate of
interest used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose
of measuring the impairment loss. Loans and receivables
together with any associated allowance are written off when
there is no realistic prospect of future recovery and all
collateral has been realised or has been transferred to the
Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated
impairment loss increases or decreases because of an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is increased or reduced
by adjusting the allowance account. If a write-off is later
recovered, the recovery is credited to the statement of profit or

loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Assets carried at cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been
incurred on an unquoted equity instrument that is not carried
at fair value because its fair value cannot be reliably measured,
or on a derivative asset that is linked to and must be settled by
delivery of such an unquoted equity instrument, the amount
of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future
cash flows discounted at the current market rate of return for
a similar financial asset. Impairment losses on these assets are

not reversed.

Available-for-sale financial investments

For available-for-sale financial investments, the Group assesses
at the end of each reporting period whether there is objective
evidence that an investment or a group of investments is

impaired.

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount comprising
the difference between its cost (net of any principal payment
and amortisation) and its current fair value, less any
impairment loss previously recognised in the statement of
profit or loss, is removed from other comprehensive income
and recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

In the case of equity investments classified as available
for sale, objective evidence would include a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of an investment below
its cost. “Significant” is evaluated against the original cost of
the investment and “prolonged” against the period in which
the fair value has been below its original cost. Where there is
evidence of impairment, the cumulative loss — measured as
the difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair
value, less any impairment loss on that investment previously
recognised in the statement of profit or loss — is removed from
other comprehensive income and recognised in the statement
of profit or loss. Impairment losses on equity instruments
classified as available for sale are not reversed through the
statement of profit or loss. Increases in their fair value after
impairment are recognised directly in other comprehensive

income.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
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POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments (Continued)

The determination of what is “significant” or “prolonged”
requires judgement. In making this judgement, the Group
evaluates, among other factors, the duration or extent to which
the fair value of an investment is less than its cost.

In the case of debt instruments classified as available for
sale, impairment is assessed based on the same criteria as
financial assets carried at amortised cost. However, the amount
recorded for impairment is the cumulative loss measured as
the difference between the amortised cost and the current fair
value, less any impairment loss on that investment previously
recognised in the statement of profit or loss. Future interest
income continues to be accrued based on the reduced
carrying amount of the asset using the rate of interest used to
discount the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring
the impairment loss. The interest income is recorded as part
of finance income. Impairment losses on debt instruments
are reversed through the statement of profit or loss if the
subsequent increase in fair value of the instruments can be
objectively related to an event occurring after the impairment
loss was recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as
loans and borrowings.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and
net of directly attributable transaction costs.

Subsequent measurement of loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest rate method unless the effect of discounting
would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.
Gains and losses are recognised in the statement of profit or
loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through
the effective interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount
or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral
part of the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate
amortisation is recognised in the statement profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Derecognition of financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under

the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the
terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such
an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of
the original liability and a recognition of a new liability, and
the difference between the respective carrying amounts is

recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the
net amount is reported in the statement of financial position
if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on
a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities

simultaneously.

Shares held under the share award scheme

Where shares of the Company are purchased from the open
market for the share award scheme, the consideration paid,
including any directly attributable incremental costs, is
presented as “Shares held under the share award scheme”
and deducted from equity. No gain or loss is recognised in
the statement of profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or
cancellation of the Group’s own equity instruments.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined on the weighted average basis. Net
realisable value is based on estimated selling prices less any
estimated costs to be incurred to disposal.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

170

POLICIES (Continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand
deposits, and short term highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short
maturity of generally within three months when acquired, less
bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an

integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and at banks, including term deposits, and assets similar in

nature to cash, which are not restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be

made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end of
the reporting period of the future expenditures expected to be
required to settle the obligation. The increase in the discounted
present value amount arising from the passage of time is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

A provision for reinstatement costs is recognised when a
contractual obligation under the terms of an operating lease
has arisen to reinstate a leased property at the end of the lease.
Reinstatement costs are provided at the value of the expected
costs to settle the obligation at the end of the reporting
period using estimated cash flows and an equivalent asset is
recognised and depreciated over the term of the operating
lease. The estimated future costs of reinstatement are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial year end.
Changes in the estimated future costs are added to or deducted
from the cost of the corresponding asset.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised
outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period, taking into consideration interpretations and practices
prevailing in the countries/jurisdictions in which the Group
operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their

carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary

differences, except:

e when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at
the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting
profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

J in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences can be controlled and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable

future.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

172

POLICIES (Continued)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary differences,
the carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses

can be utilised, except:

e when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or

loss; and

J in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures, deferred tax assets are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that the temporary differences
will reverse in the foreseeable future and future taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at the
end of each reporting period and are recognised to the extent
that it has become probable that sufficient taxable profit will
be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and
only if the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred
tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority on either the same
taxable entity or different taxable entities which intend either
to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to
realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in
each future period in which significant amounts of deferred tax

liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or recovered.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be
measured reliably, on the following bases:

(a) from the provision of healthcare solution services,
upon the provision of the relevant services or on a time
proportion basis over the terms of the fixed-fee service
contracts (including annual retainer and capitation plans).
Further explained in the accounting policy for “fixed-fee

service contracts” below;

(b)  from the rendering of medical and dental services, upon

provision of the relevant services;

(c) from the provision of healthcare management services
and administrative support services, upon rendering of

services;

(d) dividend income, when the shareholders’ right to receive

payment has been established; and

(e) interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the
expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter
period, when appropriate, to the net carrying amount of
the financial asset; and

(f)  rental income under operating leases is recognised on the
straight-line basis over the terms of the relevant leases.
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POLICIES (Continued)

Fixed-fee service contracts

The Group has certain medical, dental and other service
contracts, in which the Group agrees to provide specific
services over the terms of the contracts for a fixed-fee in which
the level of services depends on uncertain future events (the
“Fixed-fee Service Contracts”). The Fixed-fee Service Contracts
are in general of one to two years and the Group receives the
related service fees upfront. The contract customers cannot
recover the service fee upon the expiration of the respective
fixed-fee service contracts period irrespective of whether the
plan members utilised any services under the Fixed-fee Service

Contracts.

At the end of each reporting period, tests are performed
to ensure the adequacy of the contract liabilities under
the Fixed-fee Service Contracts. In performing these tests,
current best estimates of future contractual cash flows under
the Fixed-fee Service Contracts are used. Any deficiency is
immediately charged to the statement of profit or loss by
establishing a provision for losses.

Fees received or receivable under the Fixed-fee Service
Contracts are recognised on a time proportion basis (i.e.,
straight-line basis) over the terms of the Fixed-fee Service
Contracts. At the time of revenue recognition, plan members
may not utilise any services under the Fixed-fee Service
Contracts and hence, no direct cost will be incurred by the
Group in association with the professional services rendered
by the doctors, dentists and auxiliary service providers.
Accordingly, expenses incurred in connection with the Fixed-
fee Service Contracts are charged to the statement of profit or

loss as incurred.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Share-based payments

The Company operates share option schemes and a share
award scheme for the purpose of providing incentives and
rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the success
of the Group’s operations. Employees (including directors) and
consultants of the Group receive remuneration in the form of
share-based payments, whereby employees and consultants
render services as consideration for equity instruments

(“equity-settled transactions”).

In situations where the share-based payment transactions
are with employees of the Group, the cost of equity-settled
transactions is measured by reference to the fair value of
the equity instruments at the date at which they are granted,
taking into account the terms and conditions upon which
these equity instruments are granted. In situations where the
share-based payment transactions are with non-employees of
the Group, the cost of equity-settled transactions is measured
by reference to the fair value of goods or services received,
unless that fair value cannot be estimated reliably. If the
Group cannot estimate reliably the fair value of the goods or
services received, the Group measures the goods or services
received, indirectly, by reference to the fair value of the equity
instruments granted.
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POLICIES (Continued)

Share-based payments (Continued)

The fair value of the share options granted is determined by
an external valuer using a binomial model, further details of
which are given in note 31 to the financial statements.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised in
employee benefit expense, together with a corresponding
increase in equity, over the period in which the performance
and/or service conditions are fulfilled. The cumulative expense
recognised for equity-settled transactions at the end of each
reporting period until the vesting date reflects the extent
to which the vesting period has expired and the Group’s
best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will
ultimately vest. The charge or credit to the statement of profit
or loss for a period represents the movement in the cumulative
expense recognised as at the beginning and end of that period.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not
taken into account when determining the grant date fair
value of awards, but the likelihood of the conditions being
met is assessed as part of the Group’s best estimate of the
number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. Market
performance conditions are reflected within the grant date fair
value. Any other conditions attached to an award, but without
an associated service requirement, are considered to be
non-vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions are reflected in
the fair value of an award and lead to an immediate expensing
of an award unless there are also service and/or performance

conditions.

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market
performance and/or service conditions have not been met,
no expense is recognised. Where awards include a market or
non-vesting condition, the transactions are treated as vesting
irrespective of whether the market or non-vesting condition is
satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or service

conditions are satisfied.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Share-based payments (Continued)

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as
a minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not
been modified, if the original terms of the award are met. In
addition, an expense is recognised for any modification that
increases the total fair value of the share-based payments, or is
otherwise beneficial to the employee as measured at the date

of the modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as
if it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense
not yet recognised for the award is recognised immediately.
This includes any award where non-vesting conditions within
the control of either the Group or the employee are not met.
However, if a new award is substituted for the cancelled
award, and is designated as a replacement award on the date
that it is granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated as
if they were a modification of the original award, as described
in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as
additional share dilution in the computation of earnings per
share.

Other employee benefits

Pension schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”)
under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for those employees who are eligible to participate
in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made based on a
percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and are charged
to the statement of profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of
the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group
in an independently administered fund. The Group’s employer
contributions vest fully with the employees when contributed
into the MPF Scheme.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
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POLICIES (Continued)

Other employee benefits (Continued)

Pension schemes (Continued)

The Group also operates a defined contribution occupational
retirement scheme (the “ORSO Scheme”) under the
Occupational Retirement Schemes Ordinance for those
employees who are eligible to participate in the ORSO
Scheme. The ORSO Scheme operates in a similar way to the
MPF Scheme, except that when an employee leaves the ORSO
Scheme prior to his/her interest in the Group’s employer
contributions vesting fully, the ongoing employer contributions
payable by the Group are reduced by the relevant amount of
forfeited contributions.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in
Mainland China are required to participate in a central pension
scheme operated by the local municipal government. These
subsidiaries are required to contribute certain percentages
of their payroll costs to the central pension scheme. The
contributions are charged to the statement of profit or loss
as they become payable in accordance with the rules of the

central pension scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in
Macau are required to participate in a social security fund
operated by the government of Macao Special Administrative
Region. These subsidiaries are required to contribute certain
fixed amounts of their payroll costs to the social security fund.
The contributions are charged to the statement of profit or loss
as they become payable in accordance with the rules of the
social security fund.

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are
approved by the shareholders in a general meeting. Proposed
final dividends are disclosed in the notes to the financial

statements.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared,
because the Company’s memorandum and articles of
association grant the directors the authority to declare interim
dividends. Consequently, interim dividends are recognised
immediately as a liability when they are proposed and declared.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars,
which is the Company’s functional currency. Each entity
in the Group determines its own functional currency and
items included in the financial statements of each entity are
measured using that functional currency. Foreign currency
transactions recorded by the entities in the Group are initially
recorded using their respective functional currency rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at
the functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the end
of the reporting period. Differences arising on settlement or
translation of monetary items are recognised in the statement
of profit or loss. Non-monetary items that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions.

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries and
joint ventures are currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar.
As at the end of the reporting period, the assets and liabilities
of these entities are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the
exchange rates prevailing at the end of the reporting period
and their statements of profit or loss are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange rates for the
year. The resulting exchange differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange
fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the
component of other comprehensive income relating to that
particular foreign operation is recognised in the statement of
profit or loss.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation
and any fair value adjustments to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities arising on acquisition are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign operation and translated at the
closing rate.

20185 3R

R M

30 June 2018
2018F 6 A30H

24 EEESTHBEME )

Sk
MBBRIAETZ2Y) > BT AARA
MIEEYR AKBEETEERI AT
REEINGEER  MEEBYHHRKRA
HERAZNEERE - AEERE
BOINER ZENMBERE  RAES
BHINEEERZENAHERA
B OMNESHEZEBEENAGBRA
ZHMEMREXRGINESBITERTNEE
E¥SE BAHELNEEREEIAA
BEF OREERER - NINER
BSEKAGEZIFERIAR - RAK
RXHBHMZERFH -

ETHBINIBRRARABEATNYREE
ERETTANERE - RBEHR - %F
ERMNEENABERAREHRMES
WERETL MEBSREAZFERN
IAEFHERFERETT - UL ELH
ERLEZH BASEMEERRLERE
AREFEED R - HEBINEBE -
5 B2 5% SN S 75 A8 B A9 EL A 2 T W 2 P
R IBERPHER

\m][V

i

U B g SN TS E A B R AT R
BMELNEERBBEREEZIAAE
BHRAE GRESZBIINEFTNEER
BEYRARREZETHE -

HaBBEEERAA 179



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

St 75 3 2= B R

30 June 2018
2018%F 6 A30H
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POLICIES (Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into
Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the dates
of the cash flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of overseas
subsidiaries which arise throughout the year are translated into
Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange rates for

the year.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets
and liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that could
require a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the
assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart from
those involving estimations, which have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Income taxes

The Group has exposure to income taxes in different
jurisdictions. Significant judgement is involved in determining
the provision for income taxes. Determining income tax
provisions involves judgement on the future tax treatment of
certain transactions and interpretation of tax rules. The Group
carefully evaluates tax implications of transactions and tax
provisions are set up accordingly. The tax treatment of such
transactions is reconsidered periodically to take into account
all changes in tax legislation, interpretations and practices in
respect thereof.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Judgements (Continued)

Fixed-fee Service Contracts

The Group enters into certain Fixed-fee Service Contracts in
which the Group uses its own medical and dental centres, staff
and other resources, including affiliated clinics and affiliated
service providers, to provide healthcare services covered
by the contracts. The level of services to be rendered under
the Fixed-fee Service Contracts is uncertain and depends on
uncertain future events. The Group has to consider whether
the cost of meeting its contractual obligations to provide the
services under the Fixed-fee Service Contracts may exceed the
revenue it will receive and the probability of such risk (the
“Risk”), when assessing the pricing and provisioning for such

contracts.

The frequency and severity of the Risk are affected by many
factors, including, inter alia, the health status and awareness
of the persons covered by the Fixed-fee Service Contracts and
that of the general public in Hong Kong, the outbreak/potential
outbreak of any epidemic, climatic changes, the duration of
those contracts (which in general are of short duration), as
well as a diversity of social, industrial and economic factors.
The risk associated with such factors (including any undue
concentration thereof and the probability of the occurrence of
certain events affected by them) on the actual utilisation ratio
for individual contracts is the key source of uncertainty that
needs to be estimated.

The Group manages the Risk through periodic review of the
estimated and actual utilisation ratio of individual contracts
and considers such assessment in revising the relevant fee
schedules and whether or not to renew such Fixed-fee Service
Contracts.

Revenue from provision of healthcare services

The Group provides clinical healthcare services and corporate
healthcare solution services to its contract customers. The
healthcare services can broadly be further categorised into two
types, that is, out-patient services; and in-patient services.

20185 3R

3.

R M

30 June 2018
2018F 6 A30H

BRI HE R &R @

# i (%)

BEEERARBEN
AEEFVETEEERRBEHN &
TAKEBRBEAABERERNIITRFBL
BENHEMBER(BREBED M EHE
RBIRMEE) BRESOMRENERR
AR - RIFE T & ARG A KPR HE
Rz REAEETHEM  BURRAR
THESHE - RETERRE SO
EERBEER  ARERZERBENE
BHEBETRERBHNANEBTKR AR
BEBBHREE YA - A R B
(THHEARE R |) EAEMMEK -

HERREENEXREERERZR
AEFE HPERETERRKEAN
BEALTREFBEARNREARANE
B ERRITRBREBERE  RIK
B - EHAMM (—RBEH) U E
Bitg TEREERE - LERELH
MERMAEMS - B FEEMERN
R (BFEERBNRETRIETZEDN
ETEMMBELERE) BFEFELMGE
H) E BN HETE 1R ©

AEEBEETEPEHEESONEFT K
ERMBXRAEEMEERR LR ZT
R ZBIERERKRERERELER
HEEEERARBEL -

REBRARRBEZOBA
AEBRHESOEFREHEBRBERRRE
Ri% R b EERRBBRTRRE - B
BRERBARLAIE T RMEA
BIFT R0 AR %5 R (£ Be AR 75

HaBBEEERAA 181



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

o 75 % 3R B

30 June 2018
2018%F 6 A30H

3.

182

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Judgements (Continued)

Revenue from provision of healthcare services (Continued)

In determining whether the Group is acting as a principal
or as an agent in the provision of healthcare services and
corporate healthcare solution services requires judgement
and consideration of all relevant facts and circumstances.
The Group is acting as a principal when it has exposure to
the significant risks and rewards associated with rendering of
services and report revenue on the gross inflows of economic
benefits. In evaluation of the Group acting as a principal, the
Group considers, individually or in combination, whether the
Group has (i) the primary responsibility for providing goods
or services to the customers or for fulfilling the order; (ii)
inventory risk before, during or after the customer order; (iii)
latitude in establishing prices, either directly or indirectly;
and (iv
due from the customer. Conversely, the Group is an agent

) bears the customer’s credit risk on the receivable

when it does not have exposure to the significant risks and
rewards associated with the rendering of services and report
revenue on the net inflows of economic benefits (that is, net
of the amounts collected on behalf of the principal). Having
considered the relevant facts and circumstances, the directors
consider that the Group is exposed to significant risks and
rewards associated with the rendering of out-patient services
while the Group is not exposed to significant risks and rewards
associated to the in-patient services. Accordingly, the Group is
acting as a principal for the out-patient services and the related
revenue is presented on a gross basis while the Group is acting
as an agent for the in-patient services and the related revenue
is presented on a net basis.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are described below.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least
on an annual basis. This requires an estimation of the value
in use of the cash-generating units to which the goodwill is
allocated. Estimating the value in use requires the Group to
make an estimate of the expected future cash flows from the
cash-generating units and also to choose a suitable discount
rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash
flows. The carrying amount of goodwill at 30 June 2018 was
HK$62,637,000 (2017: HK$41,357,000). Further details are
given in note 13 to the financial statements.

Impairment of non-financial assets (other than goodwill)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment for all non-financial assets at the end of each
reporting period. Non-financial assets are tested for impairment
when there are indicators that the carrying amounts may not
be recoverable. An impairment exists when the carrying value
of an asset or a cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable
amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs of
disposal and its value in use. The calculation of the fair value
less costs of disposal is based on available data from binding
sales transactions in an arm’s length transaction of similar
assets or observable market prices less incremental costs for
disposing of the asset. When value in use calculations are
undertaken, management must estimate the expected future
cash flows from the asset or cash-generating unit and choose a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value of
those cash flows.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to
the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will
be available against which the tax losses can be utilised.
Significant management judgement is required to determine
the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised,
based upon the likely timing and level of future taxable profits
together with future tax planning strategies.
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3.

184

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Impairment of loans and receivables

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a loan/receivable is
impaired. To determine whether there is objective evidence
of impairment, the Group considers factors such as the
probability of insolvency or significant financial difficulties
of the debtor and default or significant delay in payments.
Where there is objective evidence of impairment, the amount
and timing of future cash flows are estimated based on
historical loss experience for assets with similar credit risk

characteristics.

The Group maintains an allowance for estimated impairment
of receivables arising from the inability of its customers and
debtors to make the required payments. The Group makes
its estimates based on, inter alia, the aging of its receivable
balances, customers’ and debtors’ creditworthiness, past
repayment history and historical write-off experience. If
the financial condition of its customers and debtors was to
deteriorate so that the actual impairment loss might be higher
than expected, the Group would be required to revise the
basis of making the allowance and its future results would be
affected.

UMP HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into
business units based on their products and services and has

two reportable operating segments as follows:

(a) Corporate healthcare solution services (“Corporate
Healthcare Solution Services to Contract Customers”)
segment engages in the provision of corporate healthcare
solutions to contract customers; and

(b) Clinical healthcare services (“Clinical Healthcare
Services”) segment engages in the provision of medical
and dental services, health check and other auxiliary

services.

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating
segments separately for the purpose of making decisions about
resources allocation and performance assessment. Segment
performance is evaluated based on reportable segment profit/
loss, which is a measure of adjusted profit/loss before tax.
The adjusted profit/loss before tax is measured consistently
with the Group’s profit before tax except that interest income,
other income and gains, and share of profits and losses of joint
ventures and associates as well as head office and corporate
expenses are excluded from such measurement.

Segment assets exclude goodwill, investments in joint ventures
and associates, financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss, held-to-maturity investments, available-for-sale
investments, assets of a disposal group classified as held for
sale and other unallocated head office and corporate assets as
these assets are managed on a group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude liabilities directly associated with
the assets classified as held for sale and unallocated head
office and corporate liabilities as these liabilities are managed

on a group basis.

Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with reference
to the selling prices used for sales made to third parties at the
then prevailing market prices.

20185 3R

R M

30 June 2018
2018F 6 A30H
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30 June 2018

2018%6H30H
4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. RESBER (@)
(Continued)
Year ended/as at 30 June 2018 HBZE201856A30B LEE R
2018 6A30H
Corporate
Healthcare
Solution
Services Clinical
to Contract Healthcare
Customers Services Total
EESES)
EFRREM
TEER
REBER iR PR B8 &
T RIR#& R 18 BR 7% &5t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FAT
Segment revenue: DEBUYA -
External sales HNEREEE 346,506 239,124 585,630
Intersegment sales D EPEHE 2,332 84,369 86,701
348,838 323,493 672,331
Reconciliation: SHAED -
Elimination of intersegment sales 53 B ) 4 45 (86,701)
Revenue WA 585,630
Segment results DEEE 36,311 40,044 76,355
Reconciliation: SHED -
Interest income FEUA 4,934
Other income H Ao e A 6,657
Share of profits and losses of: JEAE R R B 18
Joint ventures ol /NEC 254
Associates /N 2,238
Corporate and other DA R EA R D B X
unallocated expenses (41,933)
Profit before tax B A5 A A 48,505
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)
Year ended/as at 30 June 2018 (Continued)

B 755 R 2R B B

30 June 2018
2018F 6 A30H

KEFHER (@)

B Z2018F6 8308 LEE R
2018F6H30H (&)

Corporate
Healthcare
Solution
Services Clinical
to Contract  Healthcare
Customers Services Total
EEEES)
BEFRREM
tEE®E
RAZ R IR R K B8 R
R = 62 iR 75 &5t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FAET FHET FET
Segment assets DEEE 129,280 177,716 306,996
Reconciliation: D
Elimination of intersegment 53 P ] e R TR 3K 8H
receivables (16,038)
Corporate and other unallocated REREMARDBEEE
assets 441,830
Total assets BEE 732,788
Segment liabilities PHEE 67,898 45,165 113,063
Reconciliation: SHE
Elimination of intersegment payables %> &5 & {<F 5k 78 4 8 (16,038)
Corporate and other unallocated RARHEMADEEE
liabilities 4,666
Total liabilities FEN=R 101,691
Other segment information: Hitp HEH :
Depreciation and amortisation I E K& 2,251 16,950 19,201
Capital expenditure* NG 2,492 26,900 29,392
Write-off of items of property, plant  H#i$5%1% - BE &
and equipment #IER - 54 54
Write-off of trade receivables 38 B 5 I W kI8 108 - 108

20185 3R

Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and
equipment including additions from the acquisitions of a subsidiary/
businesses and deposits paid for purchases of items of property, plant
and equipment.

* EARXBREAEYE BERRE -
BEFAWE-—BNBAR XK 2R
ENBEDE BELREBEARBEXAH
REE °
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30 June 2018

201846 H30H
4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. REHHER @)
(Continued)
Year ended/as at 30 June 2017 B ZE2017F6A30BLFEE R
20175 6A30H
Corporate
Healthcare
Solution
Services Clinical
to Contract Healthcare
Customers Services Total
EEENS)
ERREM
EERE
REERR R i IR B8
T ER RERTS ait
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET FET
Segment revenue: DEBUYA -
External sales SNER 3K & 310,520 203,503 514,023
Intersegment sales DEEEE 1,148 75,667 76,815
311,668 279,170 590,838
Reconciliation: SHET
Elimination of intersegment sales 73 B 6 84 & 15 8 (76,815)
Revenue WA 514,023
Segment results DEEE 31,673 23,678 55,351
Reconciliation: FHED
Interest income FEWA 3,061
Other income H g A 3,590
Unallocated gains A B s 46,975
Share of profits and losses of: FEAG ) R 18
Joint ventures A& N7 (14,002)
Associates i Rl/NE| 1,622
Corporate and other unallocated N REMAR D B X
expenses (39,503)
Profit before tax B A5 A1 A1 57,094
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30 June 2018
2018F 6 A30H

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. BESHER
(Continued)
Year ended/as at 30 June 2017 (Continued) BZE201756A30BLEE R
201756 HA30R (&)
Corporate
Healthcare
Solution
Services Clinical
to Contract Healthcare
Customers Services Total
EREFD
PR
hEBER
REERR R Fa IR B &
ERE REERTS ait
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FAET FHET FET
Segment assets DEEE 151,540 263,401 414,941
Reconciliation: D
Elimination of intersegment 53 P ] e R TR 3K 8H
receivables (76,060)
Corporate and other unallocated NANEMARDEEE
assets 359,558
Total assets BEE 698,439
Segment liabilities DEEE 80,569 97,039 177,608
Reconciliation: SHE
Elimination of intersegment payables %> &5 & {<F 5k 78 4 8 (76,060)
Corporate and other unallocated RARHEMADEEE
liabilities 1,277
Total liabilities FEN=R 102,825
Other segment information: Hitp EHEH :
Depreciation and amortisation I E K& 2,138 15,423 17,561
Capital expenditure* BEARFZ* 10,949 26,039 36,988
Loss on disposal of items of LEWE  BEKR
property, plant and equipment REEBMEE 61 17 78
Write-off of trade receivables i 55 2 5 M W GRIE 65 23 88

20185 3R

Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and
equipment including additions from the acquisitions of subsidiaries
and deposits paid for purchases of items of property, plant and
equipment.

* BEARXBRAENME BERRE -
BERBUEBHBERRZAERBEY
¥ BELKRERAXNNRES -
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4.

190

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

Geographical information

During the year ended 30 June 2018, the Group operates
within three geographical locations, Hong Kong, Macau and
the PRC. Approximately 87% (2017: 86%) of the Group’s
revenue was generated in Hong Kong. Less than 15% of
the Group’s revenue was generated in Macau or the PRC.
Accordingly, no geographical information in respect of revenue

from external customers is presented.

4.

KEFHER (8

i 15 & #
HE2018F6A308 LFE @ KREBP
@A (BIEAS - BFIRPE) L&
7% o NEELI87% (20179 : 86%) WA
RKEBRE - AEBLRI5%BAKRER
FIg B - At - WEZFREIINDE
P M B 48 R 35 R o

Non-current assets ERBEE
2018 2017
20184 20174
HK$’000 HK$’000
T FAET
Hong Kong BB 151,335 73,366
The PRC =8 26,222 22,806
Macau YR P 3,825 1,754
181,382 97,926

The non-current asset information above is based on the
locations of the assets and excludes financial instruments and
deferred tax assets.

Information about major customers

Revenue from two major customers which accounted for 10%
or more of the Group’s revenue from the Corporate Healthcare
Solution Services to Contract Customers segment is set out

LRFRBEEERNIEREEZM
B TEEERMIAREEREEE -

TEFFES

KEMBEREF (AAKEXRARAG
MEPRELEBEEREBIRT ZRS
D EEBRAT10%THIA EHIE ) Bl A

below: HImMT
2018 2017

20185 20174

HK$’000 HK$’000

THET FAET

Customer A ZEE A 68,226 61,249
Customer B ZF B 42,707 37,327

UMP HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED
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30 June 2018

2018%6 A30H
5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 5. WA~ Bl AR W as
Revenue represents the aggregate of the gross amounts WA F AR EBRREMRRT
received and receivable from third parties for the provision of PR K B K B8 B AR & AR 7S 1T 2 W sk pE
corporate healthcare solution services and clinical healthcare WE=FHRIE 4% -
services during the year.
An analysis of revenue, other income and gains is as follows: WA~ Hfp g AR 2 DT -
2018 2017
20184 20174
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Bt =+ FERT THET
Revenue KA
Provision of corporate healthcare MENEFPRHERBERR
solution services to contract fERRTTRRTE
customers:
Medical services BERS 329,520 295,567
Dental services oF B AR 7% 16,986 14,953
Provision of clinical healthcare RIEBRRERRERS -
services:
Medical services BER 182,974 151,636
Dental services T RHR 56,150 51,867
585,630 514,023
Other income and gains Hip g A R 2
Administrative support fees THRIZEREA 2,394 2,350
Bank interest income RATH B WA 376 662
Interest income on held-to-maturity REZIHEENSHA
investments 2,870 1,904
Interest income on available-for-sale AfEERENBBA
investments 1,688 495
Rental income e WA 784 -
Dividend income from financial assets & A/ BEF ABZIH
at fair value through profit or loss TREERSKA 85 84
Fair value gains on financial assets EAnEBEFABRD
at fair value through profit or loss TRMEENARLBEKS 71 330
Gain on disposal of held-to-maturity HERBEEIHREN KR
investments, net R 169 =
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale ~ H & A #H EXRER U
investments, net FRE 78 =
Gain on bargain purchase EAEL T 35 - 401
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries B M E A Al e e 36 - 23,397
Gain on remeasurement of previously  E¥ it EBEMBZTAEE
held interests in joint ventures AR R - 22,847
Gain on remeasurement of previously — Bzt EBAEE —E A #
held interest in an available-for-sale HERERRN WS
investment 500 =
Foreign exchange differences, net PE 3 =8 OFE) 833 -
Waiver of other payable #h o H At FE 1 5K IR 152 &
Others HAth 1,591 1,156
11,591 53,626
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6.

192

PROFIT BEFORE TAX

The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging/

B %t A 7

AEBEOGKBTARBENE GEA) T

(crediting): 5| B IREB
2018 2017
20185 20174
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B =E THET FET
Auditor’s remuneration ZEEN 2 2,388 2,253
Cost of inventories consumed EREFERE 23,730 20,500
Cost of services rendered ERHERB KR 309,264 287,603
Depreciation and amortisation e R 19,997 17,561
Employee benefit expense (including E%%Eﬂﬁﬁﬁ (2
directors’ remuneration (note 7))": 121,405 94,312
Salaries, allowances, bonuses and other %4 - 28 - #4 &
benefits
Equity-settled share option expense VARE 25 45 S 0O BB AR A 2 1,679 7,340
Pension scheme contributions (defined iR {K& 5134t 3
contribution schemes)* (EREAFRETEN) 9,062 6,420
132,146 108,072
Equity-settled share option expense BRI ERERS
(including employees and professional (@%@E\&;ﬁ;%ﬁﬁ )
consultants) 31 1,771 8,066
Foreign exchange differences, net bE 5 E R (7\5@) (833) 129
Loss on disposal of items of :
property, plant and equipment - 78
Write-off of items of property, plant and Mﬁ%%% 5 M a%
equipment 54 =
Minimum leases payments under
operating leases 36,325 35,132
Write-off of trade receivables W iHE 5 e WA 116 88
Write-off of receivables due from a %Z%JE Q & BEE 7T RO
related party 195 -
Impairment /(reversal of impairment) of %H&Hﬁﬁ%@ﬁj%’xlﬁﬁﬁ/
amounts due from associates 23 2,149 (282)
Fair value gains on financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss ﬁ@ﬂ’\] AN Efﬁ”ﬁl?& (71) (330)

Inclusive of employee benefit expense of HK$10,718,000 (2017:
HK$7,781,000) paid/payable to the Group’s employees for
the rendering of professional services, which was classified as
“Professional services expenses” in the consolidated statement of

profit or loss.

As at 30 June 2018, the Group had no material forfeited
contributions available to reduce its contributions to the pension

schemes in future years (2017: Nil).

UMP HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and
(f) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of

B 755 R 2R B B

30 June 2018
2018F 6 A30H

EEME

AEREEESWMEREBESEHERBA
ERARERLEMRA - BERQFUES
%383(1)(@) ~ (b) * (O RMEREHERF]
(BEESAMZER) RHI 28 E W

the Hong Kong Companies (Disclosure of Information about N
Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as follows:
2018 2017
20185 20174
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx TETT
Fees we 1,718 1,850
Other emoluments: HAb B
Salaries, allowances and other benefits e EMEEMET 14,249 7,596
Equity-settled share option expense NEREEOERER X 1,021 6,782
Pension scheme contributions BRIREET B 79 68
15,349 14,446
17,067 16,296

During the year ended 30 June 2016, certain directors were
granted share options, in respect of their services to the Group,
under the share option schemes of the Company, further details
of which are set out in note 31 to the financial statements.
The fair value of such options, which has been recognised

HE2016F6A30HILFERN BT =
ERFEEMAEEIRERBMBEARD
AN BB AT B B - AR —
P BEHRTBRERM T - ZEFBR
ENAREBERRYBHET  IRE

in the statement of profit or loss over the vesting period, was BHNEBZEREDR Wit ARKE
determined as at the date of grant and the amount included in EBRRENSESIEE it fyE =
the financial statements for the current year is included in the 2IWE -
above directors’ remuneration disclosures.
(@) Independent non-executive directors (@) B HITES
The fees paid to independent non-executive directors FRNEMNBIIERITEELLSD
during the year were as follows: T
2018 2017
20185 20174
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT TET
Mr. Lee Luen-Wai, John BBS JP  FEHEEA (EFEE - KFML) 250 250
Dr. Li Kwok Tung, Donald SBS JP ZBEIfREL (REAEE - KF#1) 200 200
Mr. Yeung Wing Sun, Mike 5 o 28 5t 200 200
650 650
HaBBEEERAA 193
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30 June 2018

2018F 6 HA30H
7. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (Continued) 7. EEMEew
(@) Independent non-executive directors (Continued) @ BIFHTES (E)
There were no other emoluments payable to the FABRBEMNBIIERITEED
independent non-executive directors during the year HmE S (20174 - &) o
(2017: Nil).
(b) Executive directors (b) HITESE
Salaries,
allowances  Equity-settled Pension
and other  share option scheme Total
Fees benefits expense contributions remuneration
¢ ERR NEREEN Bie
we HiER  BRERX R AL
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
THT TET THT TR FHET
2018 20184
Dr. Sun Yiu Kwong HiRLE 200 7,373 538 = 8,111
Ms. Kwok Cheuk Kwan, Jacquen $&E 4+ 200 4,290 229 28 4,747
Mr. Tsang On Yip, Patrick BRRELE 200 - 12 10 222
Dr. Sun Man Kin, Michael BREs 200 = 12 10 222
Mr. Lee Kar Chung, Felix FRBEE 200 2,586 230 28 3,044
Dr. Lee Pak Cheung, Patrick* TR 68 - - 3 71
1,068 14,249 1,021 79 16,417
2017 20174
Dr. Sun Yiu Kwong BRIRAE 200 4,112 3,004 = 7,316
Ms. Kwok Cheuk Kwan, Jacquen ~Z8Z%+ 200 1,950 1,794 26 3,970
Mr. Tsang On Yip, Patrick BRRELE 200 - 95 8 303
Dr. Sun Man Kin, Michael BXBRELE 200 = 95 8 303
Mr. Lee Kar Chung, Felix FRELE 200 1,534 1,794 26 3,554
Mr. Jiang Tianfan? ST RN 4 200 = = = 200
1,200 7,596 6,782 68 15,646

194

the Company.

On 15 June 2017, Mr. Jiang Tianfan resigned as a director of

e On 28 February 2018, Dr. Lee Pak Cheung was appointed as a

director of the Company.

UMP HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED
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30 June 2018

2018%6 A30H
7. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (Continued) 7. EEME @)
During the year, no remuneration was paid or payable by FR - FAEEREINKENESHE
the Group to the directors as an inducement to join or upon ERMAREB R IMAREBR & EE
joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office (2017: SAERBERAE (20175 - &) -
Nil).
There was no arrangement under which a director waived or FABEEENEIRERETAHE
agreed to waive any remuneration during the year (2017: Nil). B HE (20174 : &) o
8. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 8. HLEmAFMES
The five highest paid employees during the year included three FRN LIEEeFMEERE=S
(2017: three) directors, details of whose remuneration are set QQOI7F:ZR)EE BENMEFS
out in note 7 above. Details of the remuneration for the year of RN EXME7 - FRBTMAE (2017
the remaining two (2017: two) highest paid employees who are F-MB)BRFERRAEEFHIETERAE
neither a director nor chief executive of the Company are as FEaFMEENMESFENT -
follows:
2018 2017
20184 20174
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHERT FHT
Salaries, allowances and other benefits & - 285 & &t 18 7 2,963 2,532
Equity-settled share option expense AR S E R RAER 71 558
Pension scheme contributions RIKNE ET B 42 41
3,076 3,131
The number of non-director and non-chief executive highest BREFMEEEMIETHRAEHEEET
paid employees whose remuneration fell within the following TIHERIE AT

bands is as follows:

number of employees

BEAE
2018 2017
20184 201746
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHT
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 #7TZ 1,500,000 77T - 1
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7T = 2,000,000 77T 2 1
2 2
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8.

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES (Continued)

During the prior years, share options were granted to a non-
director and non-chief executive highest paid employee in
respect of her services to the Group, further details of which
are included in the disclosures in note 31 to the financial
statements. The fair value of such options, which has been
recognised in the statement of profit or loss over the vesting
period, was determined as at the date of grant and the amount
included in the financial statements for the current year is
included in the above non-director and non-chief executive

highest paid employees’ remuneration disclosures.

INCOME TAX
Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5%

(2017: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits arising
in Hong Kong during the year. Taxes on profits assessable

elsewhere have been calculated at the rates of tax prevailing in

the countries/jurisdictions in which the Group operates.

TERSHFMER &)

RBREER  —RIEEEMETRAR
MBS E S 3t H A= B RS T
BEIE - BRE — SHBHNTBR
KMEITHWE - REBREDAALE
ERELBRET  DREEHNER
HERBR - M ARREEHEERE
MEEEEE LIS ERIETRAR
SEHMEE ML HE -

P 18 B
ERENESHERNFERNEEEEENMGR
FERRFE A E1%16.5% (20174  16.5%)
TR REHR e - Bt (@ FERR A A
MR AN EEERERR, 5 A%E
EMIRITHEE o

2018 2017
20185 20174
HK$’000 HK$’000
THERT THET
Current — Hong Kong BVH — &%
Charge for the year FAXH 7,655 6,864
Underprovision/(overprovision) BEFERETR
in prior years (FBREE) (493) 200
Current — Elsewhere BIER — Hfthith[R
Charge for the year FAXH 2,941 1,878
Withholding tax B - (71)
Underprovision/(overprovision) BEFERBEIR
in prior years (ERRRR ) 115 (365)
Deferred (note 28) BT (M45E28) 785 344
Total tax charge for the year FRTBIAR X B 11,003 8,850
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30 June 2018

20186 A30H
9. INCOME TAX (Continued) 9. FiE%iu)
A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before REBABTEEEHE (AR AKRE
tax using the Hong Kong statutory tax rate (the statutory tax PR B X R SR B S P FE LA (& 600K
rate for the jurisdiction in which the majority of the Company’s ERE) G EEARERBATAEN RS
subsidiaries are domiciled) to the tax charge at the Group’s % B LA B BR B RSt E B 5 AR
effective tax rate is as follows: [UNNE
2018 2017
20184 20174
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHERT THETT
Profit before tax BR B A FIE 48,505 57,094
Tax at the Hong Kong statutory tax rate &2 E%E 16.5% (2017 F : 16.5%)
of 16.5% (2017: 16.5%) FY A TE B 2R Pt i B 8,003 9,421
Difference in tax rates for specific YR RAE R O E R A K
jurisdictions or enacted by local tax B R 2R T
authority, net (536) 355
Adjustments in respect of current tax of FtiBF HAM A & BRI TR 1EFH &
previous periods (378) (165)
Profits and losses attributable to joint & & 2 7 K& & A &) FE A5 78
ventures and associates & E#E 411) 2,043
Income not subject to tax BAGMTIAZ WA (774) (8,565)
Expenses not deductible for tax A 2 X 3,345 3,115
Tax losses utilised from previous periods BB+ B8 B 2 i EE B (1,875) (840)
Tax losses not recognised AR HIEEE 3,567 2,600
Withholding tax in respect of dividend P& B 3+ #8f8 2 FE 02
payments = (71)
Others Hth 62 957
Tax charge at the Group’s effective rate EANEBEREHEFTE 2 HBE ST M 11,003 8,850
20185 % BEBEBEEERAR 197



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5o 75 3 2% B &

30 June 2018

201856 A30H
10. DIVIDENDS 10. BB
2018 2017
20184 20175
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHERT FHET
Dividends recognised as distribution FARABRD KBRS
during the year:
Final 2017 — HK2.2 cents 2017 REI B — SR B
(2016: HK2.0 cents) per ordinary 2280 (20165 : 2.07%1L)
share 16,566 14,720
Less: Dividend for shares held under g : B2 {9 2Bzt &1 B T 1B
the share award scheme B AR 1 B A 2 (103) (44)
16,463 14,676
Interim 2018 — HK0.55 cent 2018 FHIR B — BT B
(2017: 0.5 cent) per ordinary share 0.557% 1l (20174 : 0.5/ L) 4,144 3,680
Less: Dividend for shares held under & : B D #EENETEITE TS
the share award scheme B PR 17 B Pz R (28) (22)
4,116 3,658
20,579 18,334
Dividend proposed after the end of the ¥4 HiR & KR IR B, -
reporting period:
Proposed final 2018 — HK2.35 cents ~ #E##2018F KR B — SR LB
(2017: HK2.2 cents) per ordinary %235l (20174 : 2.27%1L)
share 17,752 16,283
The proposed final 2018 dividend of HK2.35 cents per FARRER2018FRARE TR T B
ordinary share for the year is subject to the approval of the 235BNIZAFA R BIRRAEERRE
Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming annual general FRE LHE -
meeting.
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11.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
COMPANY

The calculation of the basic earnings per share amount is based
on the profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders
of the Company of HK$37,555,000 (2017: HK$44,085,000),
and the weighted average number of ordinary shares of
744,431,364 (2017: 733,369,479) in issue during the vyear,
as adjusted to exclude the shares held under the share award

scheme.

The calculation of the diluted earnings per share amount
is based on the profit for the year attributable to ordinary
equity holders of the Company of HK$37,555,000 (2017:
HK$44,085,000). The weighted average number of ordinary
shares used in the calculation is the number of ordinary shares
of 744,431,364 (2017: 733,369,479) in issue during the year
and excluded the shares held under the share award scheme,
as used in the basic earnings per share calculation, and the
weighted average number of ordinary shares of 13,995,134
(2017: 9,300,829) assumed to have been issued at no
consideration on the deemed exercise of all share options into
ordinary shares.

20185 3R

11.

B 755 R 2R B B

30 June 2018
2018F 6 A30H

RAREERBEREARLSE
iR & R

BREABRMNESEDNERARAREBE
m A AEEFERNFE37,555,000/8 7T
(20174 : 44,085,000/87C) R ERN D &
17 AR b4 T 19 AR 21744,431,3640%
(20174 : 733,369,4790%) (ZFHE - T
BERMDEBEEIETEZNRM) &

= o
Ean

BREBRNSENERAQAL B
&= AE A B ERFIE37,555,000
70 (20174 : 44,085,000/% 75) &
HoTERMAMNTBRMNEEESRE A
HESREABAAANFAB R
744,431,3648% (20174F : 733,369,479
) LTRBREE - W BIERSZEF
ZBETEBNRGD  UWERBERAAE
BREFESAETEALTBRE &
EEFTABTHEBRINETHRE
13,995,1340% (20174 : 9,300,8290%) °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5o 75 3 2% B &

30 June 2018
2018%F 6 A30H

12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 12. IE - BERRKE

Furniture,
fixtures Computer
Leasehold  and office Medical  equipment Motor
Buildings improvements  equipment equipment  and software vehicle Total
BE-
BE £ER EHRA
BF  DEEE  ROERE  BRRE RE# hE ait
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T Tin TiEn T Tin Tin T
30 June 2018 2018568308
At30 June 2017 and at 1 July 2017: 2017564308
WI757R18:
Cost mA - 33,703 5,665 40,707 14730 537 95,342
Accumulated depreciation ZithE - (15,400) (2380 (2297 (1030 (389)  (51409)
Net carrying amount EEFE = 18,303 3,285 17,770 4428 148 43,934
At T July 2017, net of accumulated VIIVEIRIER
depreciation Bk EHTE - 18,303 3,285 17,70 4428 148 43,934
Additions 5E 113,738 5751 1,068 6,492 37 -1
Acquisitions of subsidiaries (note 35) WEEHE A (3tss) - 149 4 5,328 39 - 5,560
Disposalshwrite-off HE /i - (55) 3 (18) (1) - (111)
Depreciation provided during the year BEHRNE = (8,308) (1,131) (7,133) (3,158) (156) (19,886)
Assets included in  disposal group SHASBRRELEN-ELE
classified as held for sale (note 37) SERNAE (Wih7) (56,613) = - - - - (56,613)
Exchange realignment ERA% - 107 5 3 10 8 153
At30 June 2018, net of accumulated 182018563308 -
depreciation Enkzang 57,15 15,947 3,234 22,462 5,041 - 103,809
At 30 June 2018: 12018564308 -
Cost s 57,125 39,480 6,659 52,175 18,350 555 174,344
Accumulated depreciation 2inE - (23,533) (3,425) (29,713) (13,309 (555) (70,535)
Net carrying amount BH3E 57,125 15,947 3,034 22,462 5,041 - 103,809

UMP HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED
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(Continued)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

B 755 R 2R B B

30 June 2018
2018F 6 A30H

12. ¥ - BERRE @

Furniture,
fixtures Computer
Leasehold ~ and office Medical ~ equipment Motor
improvements  equipment equipment  and software vehicle Total
e
ik RER BB
nEkE  BAZRE  BERE Rat RE ait
HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000
Thn ThnL T TEn TEn TEn
30 June 2017 2017568308
At T July 2016 120165718
Cost s 26297 4,879 34,046 10,902 546 76,670
Accumulated depreciation BithE (10,769) (2,452) (16,901) (7,886) (246) (38,254)
Net carrying amount BAFE 15,528 2427 17,145 3,016 300 38,416
At T July 2016, net of accumulated 0165718
depreciation EEIEY Spi 15,528 2427 17,145 3,016 300 38,416
Additions RE 11,566 2,365 9,969 3,965 . 27,865
Acquisitions of subsidiaries (note 33) WERIEAR (H35) 253 198 3 260 ~ 746
Disposalshwrite-off e/ (16) (61) (6) - = (83)
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 36) L EMBR R (H336) (2,048) (599) (2,459) (209) - (5,315)
Depreciation provided during the year EFiHRNE (6,887) (1,023) (6,794) (2,598) (148) (17,450)
Exchange realignment [E A% (93) (22) (120) (6) 4 (245)
At 30 June 2017, net of accumulated R201756A308
depreciation BNk Z:HE 18,303 3,285 17,770 4,428 148 43,934
At30 June 2017: R201756A308 :
Cost KA 33,703 5,665 40,707 14,730 537 95,342
Accumulated depreciation ZHHNE (15,400) (2,380) (22,937) (10,302) (389) (51,408)
Net carrying amount ROFE 18,303 3,285 17,770 4,428 148 43,934

20185 3R
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5o 75 3 2% B &

30 June 2018

2018%6H30H
13. GOODWILL 13. B8
2018 2017
2018% 20174
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHEIT
At beginning of year e 41,357 32,755
Acquisitions of subsidiaries/businesses WEEH B AT, %1%
(note 35) (B$5E35) 21,280 8,602
At end of year RER 62,637 41,357
Impairment testing of goodwill 7 2 R (E R B

202

Goodwill acquired through business combinations is allocated

to the following cash-generating units for impairment testing:
o Hong Kong medical services cash-generating unit;

J PRC medical services cash-generating unit; and

J Hong Kong dental services cash-generating unit

The carrying amount of goodwill allocated to each of the

cash-generating units is as follows:

RABRE BRXBEHELNRE
DEENIREEEEN

EREBERGASELEM

s HEBERBRSELENL

s BAETMRBREELEM

PTEEEREELBVNFHEREEN
TR

Hong Kong PRC Hong Kong

medical services medical services dental services Total

ERBREHE HEBREK ERINEHS CH
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
018 2017F 20185 017 2018 2017% 018 2017F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEn TAT TEn TER TER TATL TEn TATL
Carrying amount of goodwill ~ FEHEHEE 29,217 9,653 8,602 8,602 24,818 23,102 62,637 41,357

UMP HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

13. GOODWILL (Continued)

Impairment testing of goodwill (Continued)

The recoverable amounts of the above cash-generating units
have been determined based on a value in use calculation
using cash flow projections based on financial budgets
approved by senior management covering a five-year period.
The growth rates and discount rates applied to the cash flow

projections are as follows:

B 755 R 2R B B

30 June 2018
2018F 6 A30H

13. BE %)

R (R 3 ()
RIS A A B KBS AR IR
REELTHENES  NERSRE
2 B A i L B R 3
8 S b R S b o
ERRFREMT :

2018 2017
2018% 20174
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Hong Kong medical services BEBERYE
Growth rate BRE 3-10% 3-10%
Discount rate I =x 14% 12%
PRC medical services o B RS
Growth rate iR R 10% 10%
Discount rate WIE =X 18% 15%
Hong Kong dental services EAETRR
Growth rate # R R 10% 10%
Discount rate W= 14% 12%

Assumptions were used in the value in use calculation of the
cash-generating units for 30 June 2018 and 30 June 2017.
The following describes each key assumption on which
management has based its cash flow projections to undertake
impairment testing of goodwill:

Budgeted revenue — The basis used to determine the value
assigned to the budgeted revenue is the average revenue
achieved in the year immediately before the budget year,
taking into account the expected growth rate.

Crowth rate — The growth rate is determined with reference
to the growth rate for the relevant unit, adjusted for expected
business, market development and economic condition.

Discount rate — The discount rate used is before tax and
reflects specific risks relating to the relevant unit which is
determined with reference to the weighted average cost of
capital of the Group.

20185 3R

2018F6H308 &2017F6A30H &f
BEHRSEXENFEFREERKATR
H BEEBDEMNANEEREFAR
eRERAEITEEREANR

BHEUA — AREEEERABNE
B2 4 B TR A — S ATENS
FHRA - AR RS RE -

BRE — EREZSEFHWEMNIE
REMETE  YREHEL  THER
R AR AT T AT EE o

FrHE — PERAE TR R BR AL

RERSZZEREEEANKA IAEFHIEH
BENEBEEMNSERR -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B ISR M A

30 June 2018
2018%F 6 A30H

14. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSET

14 Hitb B EE

Customer relationship

EFBR#%

2018 2017

2018%F 20174

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHERT FHET

At beginning of year R F ) 222 333

Amortisation provided during the year FNETIREH (111) (111)

At end of year RER 111 222
At 30 June: m6H30R8 :

Cost A A 333 333

Accumulated amortisation Rt N (222) (111)

Net carrying amount BREDFE 111 222

15. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES

15. REEQRTNKRE

2018 2017

2018 20174

HK$’000 HK$’000

FTHER FHET

Share of net assets FEIEFEE 1,196 920

The amount due from a joint venture was unsecured,
interest-free and had no fixed terms of repayment.

During the years ended 30 June 2018 and 2017, the Group

had the following material transactions in connection with its

investments in joint ventures:

204 UMP HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED
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15.
(a)

20185 3R

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES (Continued)

On 28 July 2016, the Group entered into a joint venture
agreement with independent third parties to subscribe
for 50% equity interest in FBABBEMBEBERAD
Al (“Shanghai He Dun”) for a consideration of RMBI1
million (equivalent to HK$1,151,000). Shanghai He Dun
is primarily engaged in the provision of dental services in
Shanghai, the PRC.

On 30 August 2016, UMP Healthcare (Beijing)
allotted 4,501 ordinary shares to the Group at par for
a consideration of US$45.01 (equivalent to HK$351),
which was settled through current account with UMP
Healthcare (Beijing).
due from UMP Healthcare (Beijing) to the Group of
RMB24.25 million (equivalent to HK$29,122,000) was
capitalised as investment in UMP Healthcare (Beijing).

On the same date, an amount

On 23 March 2017, UMP Healthcare (Beijing) disposed
of its 100% equity interests in UMP Medical Centre
Management Limited and its subsidiaries to Healthcare
Assets Management Limited (“HAML”) and assigned the
shareholder’s loan to HAML for a consideration of in the
sum of RMB79.5 million and HK$2.8 million (equivalent
to HK$92,091,000, in aggregate).

On the same date, the Group completed the UMP
Healthcare (Beijing) Subscription. Immediately after the
UMP Healthcare (Beijing) Subscription, the Group’s
equity interest in the UMP Healthcare (Beijing) Group
increased from 50% to 70% and the UMP Healthcare
(Beijing) Group became subsidiaries of the Group
thereafter. A gain on remeasurement of previously held
interests in joint ventures, net of release of exchange
fluctuation reserve of HK$979,000, of HK$22,847,000
was recognised in other income and gains in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year
ended 30 June 2017. Further details of this business
combination are included in note 35 to the financial
statements.

R M

30 June 2018
2018F 6 A30H

15. EAAE’D\TE’J?Eﬁ &)

R2016F7A28H - $%@Eﬁié’%
NE=ZFEN—MAEEHE Lx

RBLESHBEMKARA
(TEB A 2]) 50%A 4 ﬁ{%?ﬁ%

ARBE1HE T (HE 71,151,000
BIT) o FEBARTERGTE L
W EREFRIRE -

#2016F8 A308 » B & B 7 (4t
ﬁ)ﬁ?ﬁ@ﬁﬁﬁl@a%’% 5010%
LB REA45.01E T (FHE
R3518TT) @ ThiE B A B
(ER) 2EREFERN-RAB -
ﬁﬁé%ﬁ‘k(it,?d ERAEEM
RBAR®24 2558 T (HER
29,122,000/ 70) B EAREAR
BAERE (LR MRE -

201753 A238 @ B A B (4
FRBEEEEEARAR([E
BEEEEE)NEERHAER
FLOEEBEERARLENEB QG
RI100%M%#E - WHBEEEE IR
EZRFEER  REAEARE79.5
BETISESE BT AN (&
KM EK92,091,00087T) °

AB AEETKESES (It
R)RBEE - ZEHAERS (I
RORBREE  AEERBAEH
B OOER) &8 2 RER50%E =
70% ' MEtE 8% (QtR) SEHE
BRARNEEBNHNBAR - EH
AERAMBAERRINIEED
U a5 (FNBREE XK B B %
#8979,000/% 7T) /22,847,000
JC REE2017%6A308 ILFE
CIREEBERERBEMBAR
Wz - RINEBAHNE—DFD
B B TS R R BT FE35 o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

St 75 3 2= B R

30 June 2018
2018%F 6 A30H

15.

206

INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES (Continued)

(d)  On 5 December 2017, the Group set up a joint venture,
UMP Dental Centre JV Limited (“UMP Dental JV”), on
50:50 basis with an independent third party. UMP Dental
JV is primarily engaged in the provision of dental services

in Hong Kong.

Particulars of the Group’s joint venture as at 30 June 2018 are

15. REEQATNERE @)

(dy F2017F12A5H » REEBER—%

BYE=ZFUAEMH—FBRENS
ARLAEERABAEERTRE

BERA T(Fﬂﬁﬁé\%i‘%%ﬁﬂéﬁ
~Al) - BMABHIAMEERA
TERNEBEERETRRS -

KEBAEEQARAN2018F6 308 M5

as follows: ER NN
Place of Percentage of effective interest
registration/ BYERER
Particulars of capital/  incorporation Ownership Voting Profit
Name issued share held and business interest power sharing  Principal activities
BEEX/ 307 3110240
1 ERTROFE REXME BRERR RKRE  AEIRK  EERE
Shanghai He Dun Registered capital of PRC 50 50 50  Provision of dental
RMB1,000,000 services
LBRH EMERARE T E BR ¢t 7T B R 75
1,000,0007T
UMP Dental JV Ordinary shares of Hong Kong 50 50 50  Provision of dental
HK$2 services
BABBINAERA EAKET BA R T RRE

The above investments are indirectly held by the Company.

The Group has discontinued the recognition of its share of

losses of UMP Dental JV because the share of loss of the joint

venture exceeded the Group's interest in the joint venture and

the Group has no obligation to take up further losses. The

amount of the Group’s unrecognised share of loss of this joint

venture for the current year was HK$580,000 (2017: Nil).

UMP HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED

AEREHARBEERA -

AEBEERIEREBLHBEER T
REERRIKERE - J?l%ﬂﬁ%im\
ARAMEBEBEARAEERZEE
A A & $§%l§lﬂ?ﬂi§ﬁ&7¥<%iﬁ—
FER -RAFE  AEBEGLEE
R AR R HE R BT 18 £ %5 /2580,00078 7T
(20174 « #&) -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
g

30 June 2018
2018F 6 A30H

15. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES (Continued)  15. REE QAR HPRE (&)

The following table illustrates the financial information of TRHMAR2018F6HA308 @A TBE
the Group’s joint ventures as at 30 June 2018 that are not AHAEBAERANMEER

individually material:

2018 2017
2018% 20174
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET TET
Share of the joint venture’s profit/(loss) and fE{k& & A & 7, (E18) &
total comprehensive income/(loss) for the FRZEU A, (EIE) 258
year 275 (231)
Aggregate carrying amount of the Group’s K&EBREE QAN
investments in the joint ventures REREAE 1,196 920
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5o 75 3 2% B &

30 June 2018
2018%F 6 A30H

16. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES

208

16. REEEZE RN TINIRE

2018 2017
20184 20174
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHB T FAT
Share of net assets B FEE 5,485 3,116
Particulars of the associates are as follows: B ARIMFFAEBROT ¢
Place of

Particulars of
capital/issued

registration/
incorporation

Percentage of

ownership interest

Name shares held and business attributable to the Group  Principal activities
BEEX/ i/ ERRT  AKERGEEERS
2R ERTROFHE REXBH BEAL TEER
2018 2017
018F 2017
Causeway Bay MRI Centre Limited Ordinary shares Hong Kong 20 20 Provision of medical laboratory
scanning services
MEEHA AR LERDA LEk BB REBR(CRFERS
Flash Mover Limited Ordinary shares Hong Kong 25 25 Provision of magnetic resonance
imaging services
REBRAF ERER &b BR L 0 AR A 1 IR 7%
Sunny Wealth Consultants Limited Ordinary shares Hong Kong 30 30 Provision of surgical services
HEBRRBRAR EBK &b R F MR
Tiger Era Limited Ordinary shares Hong Kong 30 30 Provision of surgical and
consultation services
EBBARAA L &b BEGET10 J o A AR 7
UMP Eyecare and Optometry Centre  Ordinary shares Hong Kong 50 50 Provision of medical services
Limited (“UMP Eyecare”) and sale of spectacles
FRBEBRMRERGA LT L LBk BB REBRRERHERR
BRAR (HARE)
UMP Medical Centre (Tsing Yi) Limited ~ Ordinary shares Hong Kong 50 50  Provision of medical services
Bag®mL(ER)ERAR gl BB REERRY

UMP HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED

2018 ANNUAL REPORT



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

16. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

Particulars of the associates are as follows: (Continued)

Particulars of
capital/issued

Place of
registration/

incorporation

16.

B 755 R 2R B B

30 June 2018
2018F 6 A30H

REEEQNTNERE (B
BMANFMEAERET : (&)

Percentage of

ownership interest

Name shares held and business attributable to the Group  Principal activities
BRER/ Hft/ERRY AREREREAREES
=L BRORBHE REXHE Bt EX:E 3
2018 2017
018  2017F
UMP Medical Centre (Grandiose) Ordinary shares Hong Kong 50 50 Provision of medical services
Limited (“UMP Grandiose”)
BagBHL (BHE)BERAA gl BB REERRY
(MHAEHE])
UMP Medical Centre (Yuen Long) Ordinary shares Hong Kong 50 50 Inactive
Limited (“UMP Yuen Long")
BagBPL (LB BRAF ERER 'R TEE
L =pl)
FYNEERRPZHER QA Registered capital ~ PRC 20 - Provision of medical services
HfEA E RHERRS

* On 8 January 2018, the Group subscribed for 20% equity interest in
FYNB=REIFIZ EAR A ) for a consideration of RMB2,000,000

(equivalent to HK$2,370,000).

The above investments are indirectly held by the Company.

The statutory financial statements of the above associates were
not audited by Ernst & Young, Hong Kong or another member
firm of the Ernst & Young global network.

The Group has discontinued the recognition of its share of
losses of associates, UMP Eyecare, UMP Grandiose and UMP
Yuen Long, because the share of losses of these associates
exceeded the Group’s interests in these associates and the
Group has no obligation to take up further losses. The amounts
of the Group’s unrecognised share of losses of these associates
for the current year and cumulatively were HK$396,000 (2017:
HK$604,000) and HK$3,526,000 (2017: HK$3,130,000),
respectively.

20185 3R

< R2018F 1888  AEBEUARE
2,000,0007t (48 & 12,370,000 7T) K
RERBFRBERZRMZ2HERAA
HI20%M% 7 °

FRRERARBEERFTEH

A LB R R ORTE M B HRALIFREH
B IO BRTEI EH Ok BIRESE 5
—KERAIEZ -

AEBERIEREELBEARBAE
BREL - BAEBHERBE TN ES -
AAEEELEHEARNEEEBEHA
SERABEHENRNERS  MASE
WEETREE—PER NEBKRE
REOELZERELABEERAFEFER
25T £ 55 R A396,00078 7T (20174 -
604,000/ 7T) %3,526,0005% 7t (2017
13,130,000/ 70) °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5o 75 3 2% B &

30 June 2018

201856 A30H

16. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 16. REF&E QX AMNRE (@)
The following table illustrates the aggregate financial TRHABMTEE RO R KB E R
information of the Group’s associates that are not individually AR E RSB R
material:

2018 2017
20184 20174
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHERT FHET
Share of the associates’ profit and total FREMLEEARFER
comprehensive income for the year EEK AL 2,249 1,622
Aggregate carrying amount of the Group’s AREE R E R FMIEE
investments in the associates WBER A 5,485 3,116
17. HELD-TO-MATURITY INVESTMENTS 17. R ZIHRE
2018 2017
20185 20174
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET THET
Debt investments, at amortised cost BIEEE @ REBHEA AT E 69,497 61,022
Analysed into: DHTHE -
Non-current portion JEBNEAER 58,570 46,017
Current portion BUER &R 5 10,927 15,005
69,497 61,022
As at 30 June 2018, the Group’s held-to-maturity investments HZE2018F6H308  AEEFHZEE
represented debt investments with fixed maturity dates B AFETESH AT F20185F
between 2018 and 2023 and fixed interest rates ranging from B2FMEBRE  ELFEMEN
4.25% to 8.5% per annum (2017: 1.3% to 4.9% per annum). F4.25%%8.5% (20174 : FFENF

1.3%%E4.9%) °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
g

30 June 2018

2018F 6 A30H
18. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 18. fHHERE

2018 2017

20185 20174

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHExT FHET

Unlisted equity investments, at cost ELEMRERE @ EKAR 2 4,146 3,510

Listed debt investments, at fair value THEBKRE AR EBE
e 5,702 5,915
9,848 9,425

During the year, the gross loss in respect of the Group’s
available-for-sale investments recognised in other
comprehensive loss amounted to HK$213,000 (2017: gross
gain of HK$418,000).

As at 30 June 2018, the unlisted equity investments were stated
at cost less impairment because the range of reasonable fair
value estimates is so significant that the directors are of the
opinion that their fair values cannot be measured reliably. The
Group does not intend to dispose of them in the near future.

FR - RAEENAIHESEEERR
EmamEEEFRNEIERTE A213,000
BT (20174 : Uz 42%8418,00057T) ©

2018F6A30H @ 3E LM RERE IR
RABREYE  REAREREAREE
HEt2BEEX WHEBZRBEAA
BETEWAIRIE AEBEENE
HABELE -

19. INVENTORIES 19. B &
2018 2017
20184 20174
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx T T
Pharmaceutical supplies EEEfE 8,244 6,685
20184 %R HaBBEEERAA 211
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B ISR M A

30 June 2018
2018%F 6 A30H

20. TRADE RECEIVABLES

212

0. B2 BURE

2018 2017

20184 20174

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHB T FAT

Trade receivables 2 5 WA 78,800 56,791

The Group’s trading terms with its contract customers are
mainly on credit. The credit period is generally one month,
extending up to two months for certain customers. Each
contract customer has a maximum credit limit. The Group
seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding receivables
and has a designated policy to monitor and minimise credit
risk. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by senior
management. The Group does not hold any collateral or other
credit enhancements over its trade receivable balances. Trade

receivables are non-interest- bearing.

An aging analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of the

reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

AEBEAESHEPZEZHRREIEN
EEIRET - FEEH—KRR/—EA
HBETEFPAEREMEA - BREH
EFORBERSEREE - AKREAXK
H R (B R FE YRR R BBIE S AR
BREBE AR SEERRRE
RE - BARERASREEECHE
8o AREETERZEE H RBFAR
BERAFEMERRIEMERERAR
R BHRURETEE °

RBEHRNE ZRUGRIAREZ B
HBRER DT T -

2018 2017

20185 20174

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHERT THET

Within 1 month 1&#H A 56,718 48,544
1 to 2 months 1221 A 11,802 3,127
2 to 3 months 2Z31E A 3,216 4,187
Over 3 months 31 A A 7,064 933
78,800 56,791

UMP HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

20. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

The aging analysis of the trade receivables that are not
individually nor collectively considered to be impaired is as

follows:

B 755 R 2R B B

30 June 2018
2018F 6 A30H

20. E 5 EWFEIE (&)

R 75 51 5 25 AL E 8 B 55 AR
AN ERASTIT :

2018 2017

20184 20174

HK$’000 HK$’000

THET FET

Neither past due nor impaired R 8 B TR R R E 56,968 48,544
Less than 1 month past due B HER D E A 11,640 3,127
1 to 3 months past due #E1 2318 A 7,060 3,809
More than 3 months past due A% R 31E A 3,132 1,311
78,800 56,791

Trade receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
relate to a large number of diversified customers for whom
there was no recent history of default.

Trade receivables that were past due but not impaired relate
to a number of independent customers that have a good track
record with the Group. Based on past experience, the directors
of the Company are of the opinion that no provision for
impairment is necessary in respect of these balances as there
has not been a significant change in credit quality and the
balances are still considered fully recoverable.

Included in the trade receivables as at 30 June 2018 are trade
receivables due from related companies of HK$586,000 (2017:
HK$499,000), which have the same credit period as other
contract customers. CTFE is a major beneficial shareholder of
these related companies in which Mr. Tsang On Yip, Patrick,
an executive director of the Company is the Chief Executive
Officer of CTFE.

20185 3R

REHITRBENE 5 EUGRIREAE
VETMRELCENTREFER -

ERRERBENESEKKIALES H
RAKEBERFRHLEBHNBILEFE
B - RIEAEER  ARRESRAH
RERERIEERNE (L - ARXEHE
DER DA ZBRE - WEFIUZFH
RRERE R -

2018F6 A30HME 5 B U KB RIE
B R R AR E 5 FE W FKIE586,000
T (20174 © 499,0008 7T) * % F &
ENEERHEEMENTFER - AX
BEERZEEBAANEIEZEEZR
R ARAMITESTYELRELEERAK
REEMITHRER -

HaBBEEERAA 213



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5o 75 3 2% B &

30 June 2018

201896 A30H
21. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 21. BRARIE - RESRHEMER
RECEIVABLES IR
2018 2017
2018 20174
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT THETT
Prepayments FafRIE 4,041 2,745
Deposits paid for purchases of items of BEWME  BWERZE
property, plant and equipment HEXNORESR 2,144 8,377
Deposit paid for acquisition of subsidiaries Y& I B2 7] & 1 KR & & 6,000 -
Deposits REFE 11,833 10,488
Other receivables H A & W R IR 3,940 2,502
27,958 24,112
Less: Portion classified as W D BRIERBDEENT D
non-current assets (15,696) (15,263)
Current portion mEE D 12,262 8,849

22.

214

None of the above assets is either past due or impaired. The

financial assets included in the above balances relate to

deposits and receivables for which there was no recent history

LA EEERDPLRE - BIREN L
REERA R S B8 B AT B I B R R RS 8
MRE S REYHIERR -

of default.
FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 22. BAAREESAEZENERE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS E
2018 2017
20185 20174
HK$’000 HK$’000
T FHT
Listed equity investments, at fair value FRERE
(BAREBETE) 2,427 2,356

The above listed equity investments at 30 June 2018 and 2017

were classified as held for trading.

UMP HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED

it A20184F 2017F6 A308 H) F
R EDBABIEES -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
g

30 June 2018

201856 H30H
23. BALANCES WITH ASSOCIATES 23, B E QN ANEER
2018 2017
20185 20174
HK$’000 HK$’000
TET FHT
Due from associates JE Y Bk 2 N B FRIB 12,533 10,937
Impairment B (6,893) (4,744)
5,640 6,193
The balances with associates are unsecured, interest-free and HBENR 2 &G AERT 28 E
have no fixed terms of repayment. ElEEERR -
The movements in provision for impairment of amounts due FEUWE 2 RARIBRERE 2EHM
from associates are as follows: K
2018 2017
20185 20174
HK$’000 HK$’000
THERT FHET
At beginning of year R E 1) 4,744 5,026
Impairment losses recognised (note 6) BrERBEEE (Mitte) 2,149 =
Impairment losses reversed (note 6) B EREEE (Mite) - (282)
At end of year RER 6,893 4,744
Included in the above provision for impairment of amounts VA b e HsE & X RI SR IR Y R E B E B 18
due from associates is a provision for individually impaired Bt & B R B X 186,893,000 7T (2017
amounts of HK$6,893,000 (2017: HK$4,744,000) with a %F 4,744,000 7T) EHI VBB - BB
carrying amount before provision of HK$7,505,000 (2017: AR BREE A7,505,000/8 7T (20174 ¢
HK$6,322,000), of which the related debtors were in financial 6,322,000/ 70) + MERBEER A LR R
difficulties and only a portion of the receivables is expected to REE - FuL - TEERE A E 30 5 e WK
be recovered. I o
24. BALANCES WITH RELATED COMPANIES 24. ERAE D AR A ER
2018 2017
20185 20174
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT THET
Due from related companies JE U B B A B 2hE 2,735 5,284
Due to related companies JE& 1<F B BsE 1% R) IR 452 423
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5o 75 3 2% B &

30 June 2018
2018%F 6 A30H

24. BALANCES WITH RELATED COMPANIES

216

(Continued)
The balances with related companies are unsecured, interest-

free and have no fixed terms of repayment.

Particulars of the amounts due from related companies,
disclosed pursuant to section 383(1)(d) of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance and Part 3 of the Hong Kong Companies
(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors)

Regulation, are as follows:

24, HEB AT 2 &R @

ER RA B N ) Z ter A . o8 AE
& 7 {8 i B

FEUBAE: A R FRIBFIE  BREBERE QA
BEHIE3I83MDERE B AR (FEE
ERZER) RO FEIHHEDOT

Maximum Maximum
amount At 30 June amount
At outstanding 2017 and  outstanding At
30 June during at 1 July during the 1 July
Name EA 2018 the year 2017 prior year 2016
20174
6A308 K&
R2018F FRESF 2017 FAKE  R20165F
6A30H 7ATE  AEEFE 7A1H
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TR FHT TET TET
Guangzhou Ruian Enterprise EMNHRRE
Management Company Limited ~ EEBRAF
(“GZ Ruian")* (TEMFR])* 117 117 57 57 -
HAML and its subsidiaries® BEBEEEN
HEWBRA): 2,618 12,933 5,227 85,930 -
S GZ Ruian is controlled directly by Dr. Sun Man Kin, an executive S BHIMRRARRRHTEERAXREL
director of the Company. B -
d HAML and its subsidiaries are jointly controlled by a subsidiary of Z BRAEEERAEMBARNREARER

Chow Tai Fook Enterprises Limited (“CTFE”). Mr. Patrick Tsang, an
executive director of the Company, is the Chief Executive Officer of
CTFE.

UMP HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

25. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND

PLEDGED DEPOSITS

B 755 R 2R B B

30 June 2018
2018F 6 A30H

25 BERRASEB/BYREFFR

2018 2017

20184 20174

HK$’000 HK$’000

FERT FART

Cash and bank balances Be RIRTTH 294,137 404,894
Time deposits EHATE R 1,185 30,000
295,322 434,894

Less: Pledged deposits (note) B ERE R (M) (1,352) (821)
Cash and cash equivalents RekBFEEEYD 293,970 434,073

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank balances
of the Group denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”) amounted
to HK$19,437,000 (2017: HK$15,154,000). The RMB is not
freely convertible into other currencies, however, under
Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange
RMB for other currencies through banks authorised to conduct
foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates. Short term time deposits are made for
varying periods of between one day and three months
depending on the immediate cash requirements of the Group,
and earn interest at the respective short term time deposit
rates. The bank balances and time deposits are deposited with
creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.

Note: Included in the pledged deposits as at 30 June 2018 are deposits
of HK$500,000 (2017: HK$500,000) and HK$529,000 (2017: Nil)
in connection with surety bonds issued by a bank in favour of
independent third parties for potential damages of dental equipment
and potential disruption of medical services, respectively.

Included in the pledged deposits as at 30 June 2018 is another
deposit of HK$323,000 (2017: HK$321,000) in connection with a
bank guarantee issued by a bank in favour of a landlord for leasing of
a medical centre of the Group.

20185 3R

RBBEBMR AEEUAARE (TA
REDFENRSZERITERR
19,437,0007% 7t (20174 : 15,154,000
B c AREBYIIFEmBERAEME
®oRMm - REBHEARKMBEINEE
BIRPIMEE SENMMEEERTE
REEE LS BREREETTINERTEH
RITERAARBEEMEE -

RIOTEFEFRENRTARTERMEL
FEBHEEE - AT BFXROHEA
E-A-BEZEATE KRI¥EAEKHE
MBI IR & & - &8 HIE BF5KF
REREA B - RITAE R NE BT SE R
REBRIFBIHYEEZNCEHENR
i o

MEE  72018F6 A30B IR M ER B IFHE A
—FRITHREETRREEEREES
BERETEABLE=HEENEHR
FHEENER - £8 9 514500,0007 T
(20174 : 500,000/ 7T) 529,000/ 7T
(20174 : #&) -

1R2018F6 A30BMIEAGERRES 2
BB —RERTRAEAEE —HEBFE L
M—BEEHLMRITEREBOER
& ¥8 /323,000 7T (20174 : 321,000
BIT) °
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B ISR M A

30 June 2018
2018%F 6 A30H

26.

27.

218

TRADE PAYABLES
An aging analysis of the trade payables as at the end of the

26. EZENFIE
RIS IR A B BN RIB R R Z A 1

reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows: BRI DT
2018 2017
20185 20174
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FHET
Within 1 month 1@ AR 18,318 22,506
1 to 3 months 12316 A 20,318 30,866
Over 3 months 3B A AL 516 375
39,152 53,747

The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are normally
settled on terms ranging from 30 to 90 days.

BHRNFIAREE B —RN30EI0KR

REEE o

==

OTHER PAYABLES, ACCRUALS AND 27. HihERRKIE - BEFFTEARIE
DEFERRED INCOME FE T A

2018 2017
20185 20174
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
Bt 5 FHERT FHET
Other payables E h JE A 5RIE 12,468 12,806
Accruals S g3 7,191 5,940
Deposits received ERRES 3,458 463
Deferred income EEW A 16,286 8,515
Due to non-controlling interests e IEE R R FB 8,973 8,523
Deferred rental EEEE 110 436
Provision for reinstatement costs 18 R B 2N s 29 = 472
48,486 37,155

Other payables and accruals are non-interest-bearing and are
normally repayable on demand. The amounts due to non-
controlling interests of subsidiaries are unsecured, interest- free
and have no fixed terms of repayment.

UMP HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED

HiENREAREFERDR2E R —
e ESKIEIE - ETPIE 1 A FE AL
SRALERR  2EREETEEEN
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
g

28. DEFERRED TAX

The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the

year are as follows:

Gross deferred tax assets

28. IEERIE

ELEBEEERLE
Losses

Depreciation

available for

30 June 2018
2018F 6 A30H

FANECHBAEELBBEZHWT

in excess offsetting
of related future
depreciation taxable
allowance profits Total
B R A ARE
FEREBN RRRB
e FMEHEER CEll
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET FHET
At 1 July 2016 M20165F7H1H 310 1,506 1,816
Deferred tax charged FRINKREAERRK
to the consolidated statement B FE B TR (T RE9)
of profit or loss during the year
(note 9) (45) (238) (283)
Disposal of subsidiaries LEME QR (MiE36)
(note 36) (10) - (10)
At 30 June 2017 and MR2017F6H30H &
at 1 July 2017 201747818 255 1,268 1,523
Deferred tax credited/(charged) to F A&t A/ (%) 474
the consolidated statement of BEROELTHIE
profit or loss during the year (Mt3E9)
(note 9) 74 (476) (402)
At 30 June 2018 R2018%6A308 329 792 1,121
e BB EEAR 219
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5o 75 3 2% B &

30 June 2018

201856 A30H
28. DEFERRED TAX (Continued) 28. JEFER A (7)
Gross deferred tax liabilities ELEHEEEHEE
Depreciation Fair value
allowance adjustments
in excess of arising from
related business
depreciation combination Total
AR EBaH
wEN BEEN
FERE LABERE &t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TR TET TAET
At 1 July 2016 R2016%F7H1H 1,001 55 1,056
Deferred tax charged to the FRNHBGEEIERER
consolidated statement of B IR RE 5 I8
profit or loss during the year (FfF5E9)
(note 9) 61 - 61
At 30 June 2017 and R201756 308 &
at 1 July 2017 720177818 1,062 55 1,117
Deferred tax charged/(credited) to F R, (Gt A) 44
the consolidated statement of B RARELERIE
profit or loss during the year (PfF5E9)
(note 9) 474 91) 383
Acquisition of a subsidiary W B — FEl Y B 2 &
(note 35) (B5E35) - 211 211
At 30 June 2018 201856 H30H 1,536 175 1,711
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

28. DEFERRED TAX (Continued)

For presentation purposes, certain deferred tax assets and
liabilities have been offset in the consolidated statement of
financial position. The following is an analysis of the deferred

tax balances of the Group for financial reporting purposes:

B 755 R 2R B B

30 June 2018
2018F 6 A30H

28. IR IE (1)

REJNEN BETETCHREEEMAE
ERGEMBRRKREERE - U TR
LTS IR S B RO M 5 B A AN SR BIR T
BEHRIN

2018 2017
2018 20174
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FET
Net deferred tax assets recognised in RERE B AR R R
the consolidated statement of R IEE EFER
financial position 1,016 1,375
Net deferred tax liabilities recognised Rz & BB R R
in the consolidated statement of RERIEEEFEE
financial position (1,606) (969)
(590) 406

At 30 June 2018, the Group had unrecognised tax
losses arising in Hong Kong of HK$15,617,000 (2017:
HK$13,354,000), subject to the agreement by the Hong Kong
Inland Revenue Department, that are available indefinitely for
offsetting against future taxable profits of the companies in
which the losses arose. The Group also had unrecognised tax
losses arising in Mainland China of HK$18,381,000 (2017:
HK$12,129,000), subject to the agreement by the relevant
taxation authority, that will expire in five years for offsetting
against future taxable profits of the companies in which the
losses arose. Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in
respect of these losses due to unpredictability of future taxable

profit streams.

20185 3R

R2018F6A3080 AEBERBESE
B R MER T IBEE 8 /15,617,000 7T
(20174 : 13,354,000 7C) (B 1ZEH
MEBRAE)  ZEHEEBAERE
BEREEEBEBN QRN KRRER
TFE o NEBNBEFREABEEED
KRR IEE 818,381,000 7T (2017
112,129,000 7T) (B FEHE B 4 14
BRE ZEMEBEERAFTAE
o AR SHE £ BB A RIM KRR
FERBEFE o A EIETER R R ERBL
FBERR A EnxEEBRRIE
EFRIHEE ©
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o 75 % 3R B

30 June 2018
2018%F 6 A30H

28. DEFERRED TAX (Continued)

222

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign
investors from the foreign investment enterprises established in
Mainland China. The requirement is effective from 1 January
2008 and applies to earnings after 31 December 2007. A
lower withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax
treaty between Mainland China and the jurisdiction of the
foreign investors. For the Group, the applicable rate is 5%
or 10%. The Group is therefore liable for withholding taxes
on dividends distributed by those subsidiaries established
in Mainland China in respect of earnings generated from 1
January 2008.

At 30 June 2018, no deferred tax has been recognised for
withholding taxes that would be payable on the unremitted
earnings that are subject to withholding taxes of the Group’s
subsidiaries established in Mainland China. In the opinion
of the directors, it is not probable that these subsidiaries
will distribute such earnings in the foreseeable future. The
aggregate amount of temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries in Mainland China for which
deferred tax liabilities have not been recognised totalled
approximately HK$1,149,000 at 30 June 2018 (2017:
HK$1,312,000).

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the

payment of dividends by the Company to its shareholders.

UMP HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED

28. IRIERIE (1)

BREFBREMETE - RABEIRERX
U2 ECEMIIEKEETIR
Z R BERI0%E B o WL E B
20084F 1 A1H # 4 & + I i A 72007
F12A3181%& 2 8H) o fir 9 B Kz 8251
BUI% & & FTIE RLARE R 2 AR L BB R
4 BB AREZTENMBIE - KNE
EEARENHEA5%10% ° ALt
REBE AR B ALK B A F
B2008F1 H1HRELEZBF 9IRS
&8 AN FE 0L -

M2018F6H30H » WEFLEAREBER
A B K P AR S O B B R B R K BB H & R
(EHMTEMTE) M EMS BN E
REERE -EERE  ZEMBAF
RA] B RE T RAIgE D IR B EERF o
R2018F6A308 BT E N B A RE
WHEARBENARRELCHEARE
WERMEERS HLAT1,149,000% 7T
(20174 : 1,312,000 7T) °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 755 R 2R B B

30 June 2018

20186 A30H
29. PROVISION 29. Bk

2018 2017
2018%F 20174
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHER FET
At beginning of year e 1,546 1,718
Addition during the year F R 668 =
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 36) 6 BB A R (B EE36) = (163)
Exchange alignment ME 38 B 8 9)
At end of year RER 2,222 1,546

Less: Portion classified as current W D BERRBABNHING
liabilities (note 27) (B¥sE27) = (472)
Non-current portion ERBE S 2,222 1,074

Pursuant to the terms of the respective tenancy agreements
entered into by the Group, the Group is required to return
certain of its leased properties to the conditions as stipulated in
the respective tenancy agreements at the expiration or sooner
determination of the corresponding lease term as appropriate.
The provision for reinstatement costs was estimated based on
certain assumptions and estimates made by the directors with
reference to quoted prices and/or other available information.
The assumptions and estimates are reviewed on an ongoing

basis and revised as appropriate.

20185 3R

BREBEAEBMIZHNABESHRHRN
iRk - RAARATH B fE M SR R R LI
(RIBREEME)  AEEBAKEE
THENFEREERMHEEHZ AN
MEE - BRRABRBIHIEREFTZER
BE/REMAFEMMELNE TR
& R fhETMIEA o R MR E T AR
B YRR EE BT -
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B ISR M A

30 June 2018
2018%F 6 A30H

30. SHARE CAPITAL 30. R
Shares % 4
2018 2017
2018% 20174
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHER FHT
Authorised: JETE ¢
5,000,000,000 (2017: 5,000,000,000) 5,000,000,000/%
ordinary shares of HK$0.001 (20174 : 5,000,000,0000%)
(2017: HK$0.001) each FAREE0.0018 T
(20174 : 0.001%7T)
RSl 5,000 5,000
Issued and fully paid: BETRERE
753,405,000 (2017: 737,492,000) 753,405,000%
ordinary shares of HK$0.001 (20174 : 737,492,000/%)
(2017: HK$0.001) each FHRE{E0.001% T
(20174 : 0.001587T)
EOR=R 753 737
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
g

30 June 2018

20186 A30H
30. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued) 30. B (@)
Shares (Continued) B 1 (%8)
The movements in the Company’s authorised and issued share RATREZE2017F k201656 H30H
capital during the years ended 30 June 2017 and 2016 are as WEFEEZEERBETRAZBHOT
follows:
Nominal
Number value of
of ordinary ordinary
shares shares
TEREA TR EE
Note HK$’'000
B TET
Authorised: ERE
At 1 July 2016, at 1 July 2017 #2016F7H1R
and at 30 June 2018 R2017F7R18 &
M2018%F6H30H 5,000,000,000 5,000
Issued and fully paid: BT REE
At 1 July 2016 7R2016F7A1H 736,000,000 736
Exercise of share options 171 BB AR (a) 1,492,000 1
At 30 June 2017 and R2017F6A308 &
at 1 July 2017 R2017F7AH1H 737,492,000 737
Exercise of share options 17 {50 B PR 4 (b) 15,913,000 16
At 30 June 2018 7K2018%F6H30H 753,405,000 753
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51 75 R 2% BT

30 June 2018
2018%F 6 A30H

30.

31.

226

SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)
Shares (Continued)

(@) The subscription rights attaching to 1,492,000 share options were
exercised at the subscription price of HK$1.2228 per share, resulting
in the issue of 1,492,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.001 each for
a total cash consideration, before expenses, of HK$1,824,000.
An amount of HK$508,000 was transferred from the share- based
payment reserve to the share premium account upon the exercise of
the share options.

(b)  The subscription rights attaching to (i) 14,700,000 share options
were exercised at the subscription price of HK$1.2228 per
share, resulting in the issue of 14,700,000 ordinary shares of
HK$0.001 each for a total cash consideration, before expenses,
of HK$17,975,000; (ii) 1,213,000 share options were exercised at
the subscription price of HK$1.27 per share, resulting in the issue
of 1,213,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.001 each for a total cash
consideration, before expenses, of HK$1,541,000. An aggregate
amount of HK$5,401,000 was transferred from the share-based
payment reserve to the share premium account upon the exercise of
the share options.

Share options and share awards

Details of the Company’s share option schemes and the share
options under the schemes and the Company’s share award
scheme are included in notes 31 and 32 to the financial

statements, respectively.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

The Company operates a pre-initial public offering share
option scheme (the “Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme”)
and a share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”)
(collectively, the “Schemes”) for the purpose of providing
incentives and rewards to eligible participants who contribute
to the success of the Group’s operations. The principal terms
of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme are similar to the terms
of the Share Option Scheme except that (i) no further options
could be granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme;
and (ii) the exercise price and the exercise period of the share
options are different as further detailed below.

UMP HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED

30.

31.

& NE

B3 (&)

(@ 1,492,00017 B8 A% 42 A7 BT 3R B8 4 & 1%
REETRI.2228B LT - ABE
171,492,0000% & & E {E0.001% 7T 2
TER HMBRASAZESREBRSE
51,824,000 7T « IR AT{E BB IR i 1% -
508,000/ 7T ) & BB FR AR ) A EHER T
REFHEBRERMDEER -

(b)  (i)14,700,00017 & A% # Fr BT 57 8 18 M %
RBETR1.22288T/TE - AT
14,700,000 & & E1H0.00178 T K &
B ONMBRAIINRSNRERES
17,975,000/ 7t ¢ (i) 1,213,000 & B%
HAMREREERRBESRI27E T
T > AR E 171,213,000 & % E &
0.001B LM LB HBRFAIANERES
R{E4REEA1,541,0008 7T » RITHEER
HE1% A $£5,401,000% A £ BE B AR
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31.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued)

Eligible participants of the Schemes include the Company’s
directors, including independent non-executive directors, other
employees of the Group, consultants of the Group, suppliers
of goods or services to the Group, customers of the Group, the
Company’s shareholders, and any non-controlling shareholder
in the Company’s subsidiaries. The Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme was approved and adopted on 18 August 2015. The
Share Option Scheme became effective on 27 November 2015
and, unless otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain in

force for 10 years from that date.

The maximum number of unexercised share options currently
permitted to be granted under the Schemes is an amount
equivalent, upon their exercise, to 10% of the shares of the
Company in issue at any time. The maximum number of shares
issuable under share options to each eligible participant in
the Schemes within any 12-month period is limited to 1% of
the shares of the Company in issue at any time. Any further
grant of share options in excess of this limit is subject to
shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of their
associates, are subject to approval in advance by the
independent non-executive directors. In addition, any share
options granted to a substantial shareholder or an independent
non-executive director of the Company, or to any of their
associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the Company
in issue at any time or with an aggregate value (based on the
closing price of the Company’s shares at the date of grant)
in excess of HK$5 million, within any 12-month period, are
subject to shareholders’ approval in advance in a general

meeting.
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30 June 2018
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31. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued)

228

The exercise price of share options under the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme is HK$1.2228 and the share options are
exercisable after a vesting period of one to two years in the

following manner:

Vesting period of
the relevant percentage of the options

BREAEAIOLNEBE

1. BIRESTE ()

ENGE S G R PR T
RITTIEEA1.22288 70 - BBIRERT R —
ERFHEBHEEZATHATE

Maximum
percentage of
options
exercisable
AT 8 BB A Y

R ADHL

From 18 August 2015 to 17 August 2016

From 18 August 2015 to 17 August 2017

2015%F8A18B £2016%F8H17H 10%

20158 A18H £2017F8A17H 90%

The offer of a grant of share options under the Share Option
Scheme may be accepted upon payment of a nominal
consideration of HK$1 in total by the grantee. The exercise
period of the share options granted under the Share Option
Scheme is determinable by the directors, and commences after
a vesting period and ends on a date which is not later than 10
years from the date of offer of the share options.

The exercise price of share options under the Share Option
Scheme is determinable by the directors, but may not be less
than the higher of (i) the nominal value of the shares; (ii) the
closing price of the Company’s shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheets on the date of offer of
the share options; and (iii) the average of the closing prices
of the Company’s shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotation sheets for the five trading days immediately
preceding the date of offer.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends

or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.
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31. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
g

30 June 2018
2018F 6 A30H

31. BRRAESTE (8

The following share options under the Pre-IPO Share Option

Scheme were outstanding during the year:

FARBRD

RARITER B AT

PSRBT BT

2018 2017
20185 20174

Weighted Weighted

average average
exercise Number of exercise  Number of
price options price options
InREF g BRE T BB A
TEE #E 1TE(E A

HK$ HK$
per share 000 per share 000
BERET TH BRET T
At beginning of year R E 1) 1.2228 44,908 1.2228 46,400
Exercised during the year FENITE 1.2228 (14,700) 1.2228 (1,492)
At end of year RER 1.2228 30,208 1.2228 44,908

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise for

share options exercised during the year was HK$2.04 (2017:

HK$4.15) per share.

20185 3R

FRTEERERITEES BaEFEY
%8 A &R%2.048 7T (20174 : 4.15/8

JE) ©
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30 June 2018

201856 A30H
31. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued) 31. RE IR AESH 8l )
The following share options under the Share Option Scheme FR - BRESTEIET BWARITERAOER
were outstanding during the year: BT
2018 2017
20185 20174
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise Number of exercise  Number of
price options price options
bnE g BRE In#E ¥ 13 BB A
TREE 2B TEME 28
HK$ HK$
per share 000 per share 000
BRET T4 BERET T
At beginning of year R E 1) 1.27 2,426 1.27 2,426
Granted during the year FRIRH 2.06 1,000 - -
Exercised during the year FRITHE 1.27 (1,213)
At end of year KN 1.63 2,213 1.27 2,426

230

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise for

share options exercised during the year was HK$2.32 per share

(2017: No share options were exercised).

The exercise prices and exercise periods of the share options

FRITHEEBRERITEE B AMNEFY
& E A SR2.328 7T (20174F « WEE

A REITEE) -

RS IR BIH T R ARITEREREDN

outstanding under the Schemes as at the end of the reporting TEERITERDT :
period are as follows:
2018 20184
Number
of options Exercise price*  Exercise period
BRERE TREE*  TES
‘000 HKS$ per share
T4 FBRAET
1,678 1.2228 18 August 2016 to 26 November 2022 2016585180 £2022411526H
28,530 1.2228 18 August 2017 to 26 November 2022 201748 A18H £2022411H26H
1,213 1.27 30 June 2018 to 30 June 2021 201846 A300 £2021F6H30H
340 2.06 30 June 2017 to 30 June 2022 201796 A300 £202256A30H
330 2.06 30 June 2018 to 30 June 2022 201856 H30H £202296H30H
330 2.06 30 June 2019 to 30 June 2022 201956 A30H £2022F6H30H
32,421

UMP HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED
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31. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 755 R 2R B B

30 June 2018
2018F 6 A30H

31. BRRAESTE (8

2017 20175
Number Exercise
of options price¥  Exercise period
BEEA TIEEx 1TEH
HK$
000 per share
T BRERT
3,148 1.2228 18 August 2016 to 26 November 2022 201658 H18H 2022411 H26H
41,760 1.2228 18 August 2017 to 26 November 2022 20178 H18A E2022F 11 H26H
1,213 1.27 30 June 2017 to 30 June 2021 201756 A30H 202156 A30H
1,213 1.27 30 June 2018 to 30 June 2021 2018%6H30H £202146 H30H
47,334
* The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment * 8 B ) 77 {58 {8 AT [ 414 A ol T P 3 7T 2K

in case of rights or bonus issues, or other similar changes in the

Company’s share capital.

The fair value of the share options granted during the current
year was HK$687,000 (HK$0.68 to HK$0.69 each).

The fair value of equity-settled share options granted during

AR EAE B AR SE AR B T 5 -

AFEERHBERENAABEE
687,000 T (F190.68/8 7T £0.69/8
JC) °

E—FERENESAENBEREND

the prior year was estimated as at the date of grant using a AEBERKEABRNA —BEAGE - &5t
binomial model, taking into account the terms and conditions Ko BB R R TR L B R R B AR - TR T
upon which the options were granted. The following table lists HETARANBASH
the inputs to the model used:
2018

2018%F
Dividend yield (%) A& B 28 R (%) 1.37
Expected volatility (%) 78 HA K 18 (%) 49.27
Risk-free interest rate (%) #2 [31 B ) 3R (%) 2.009
Expected life of options (year) ﬂﬁﬁx%?ﬁiﬁﬂiﬁﬁ (%) 5.03
Weighted average share price (HK$ per share) hiE R E (BB TT) 2.06

The expected life of the options is not necessarily indicative of

the exercise patterns that may occur. The expected volatility

reflects the assumption that the historical volatility is indicative

of future trends, which may also not necessarily be the actual

outcome.

20185 3R
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31.

32.

232

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued)

No other feature of the options granted was incorporated into
the measurement of fair value.

The Group recognised a share option expense of
HK$1,771,000 (2017: HK$8,066,000) during the year ended
30 June 2018.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had
32,421,000 share options outstanding under the Schemes. The
exercise in full of the outstanding share options would, under
the present capital structure of the Company, result in the
issue of 32,421,000 additional ordinary shares of the Company
and additional share capital of approximately HK$32,000 and
share premium of approximately HK$40,506,000 (before issue

expenses).

At the date of approval of these financial statements, the
Company had 30,421,000 share options outstanding under
the Schemes, which represented approximately 4.0% of the
Company’s shares in issue as at that date.

SHARE AWARD SCHEME
On 30 June 2016, the Company adopted a share award scheme

(the “Share Award Scheme”) for the purpose of recognising
the contributions by certain eligible participants and providing
them with incentives in order to retain them for the continual
operation and development of the Group and to attract suitable
personnel for the growth and further development of the
Group.

Eligible participants of the Share Award Scheme include the
Company’s directors, senior management and other employees
of the Group, and employed experts of the Group. The Share
Award Scheme will remain in force for 10 years from 30 June
2016, unless otherwise cancelled or amended.

The maximum number of shares currently permitted to be
granted under the Share Award Scheme is limited to 2% of
the issued share capital of the Company at any time. The
maximum number of shares which may be awarded to each
eligible participant in the Share Award Scheme is limited to
1% of the issued share capital of the Company in each year.

UMP HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

32. SHARE AWARD SCHEME (Continued)

The eligible participant for participation in the Share Award
Scheme (the “Selected Participant”) is selected and the number
of shares to be awarded under the Share Award Scheme is
determined by the board of directors. The shares to be awarded
under the Share Award Scheme will be purchased by a trustee
(the “Trustee”) from the open market out of cash contributed
by the Group and be held on trust for the Selected Participant
until such shares are vested with the Selected Participant in

accordance with the provisions of the Share Award Scheme.

The Trustee shall not exercise the voting rights in respect
of any shares held on trust for the Group or the Selected

Participant.

During the year, the Group purchased 2,664,000 (2017:
4,454,000) of its own shares through the Trustee from open
market. The total amount paid to acquire the shares was
approximately HK$4,909,000 (2017: 5,843,000) and has been
deducted from equity. As at 30 June 2018, such shares were
classified as treasury shares of the Company as they were not
yet vested.

The movements in the Company’s shares held under the share
award scheme during the year are as follows:

B 755 R 2R B B

30 June 2018
2018F 6 A30H

32. R RBEE ()
/Eﬁiﬂxfﬁ}’i%ﬁbﬁriﬂﬁ’]/\éf 2mE ([ %
B2EE|)ABEESET - MRERD
RBra T RONRNBEHESTS
BE o REBRD EEE B TR B AR
MBI FEA(TZFEAD AAREEA
MIRERAFTHEBA - LAEFEEA

REZZ2EERE  BEZFROHRE
Befn BN &G RE THAKES E
ERL -

MRITEAEREASAEEL
B 45 A ) (LT AR D A FORAE -

xﬁm XH

g K
\ﬁ >
pis N

FR AEEERITABRAATS
BAEKRERKM2,664,0008% (2017
1 4,454,0000%) ° WK 1D P72 T &9
4 & B84 54,909,0007% 7T (201 7¢ :
5,843,000 7T) - EBEEP K o
2018%F 6308 - mﬁéﬁﬁaﬂxfﬁrﬁﬂim
B MENBEAERRRMEFRMD -

AR BB B2 B FT 81IR TR B R
FRAZEBHWT :

Shares held

under the

Number of share award

ordinary shares scheme

PR 17 3% B =t 2l

TEREE BETHEHBARG

HK$’000

FET

At 1 July 2017 R2017%F7 818 4,454,000 5,843
Purchases of shares for the share award  BLA& {7 22 Eh &t 21 388 B A% D

scheme 2,664,000 4,909

At 30 June 2018 7R2018%6HA30H 7,118,000 10,752

During the year, the Company did not award any shares to any
eligible participant under the Share Award Scheme (2017: Nil).

20185 3R
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33. RESERVES

234

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements
therein for the current and prior years are presented in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages 124 to
125 of the financial statements.

Capital contribution reserve

Capital contribution reserve represents (i) the fair value of
the shares of the then ultimate holding company that were
used to satisfy the consideration of the Group’s acquisition of
equity interests in certain subsidiaries and additional interests
in certain subsidiaries in 2014; (ii) the waiver of amounts
due to the then ultimate holding company and a major
beneficial shareholder of the Company for the acquisition of
a subsidiary; and (iii) the waiver of other payable by a former

non-controlling shareholder.

Share-based payment reserve

The share-based payment reserve comprises the fair value of
share options granted which are yet to be exercised, as further
explained in the accounting policy for share-based payments
in note 2.4 to the financial statements. The amount will either
be transferred to the share premium account when the related
options are exercised, or be transferred to retained profits

should the related options expire or be forfeited.

Legal reserve

The legal reserve represents the transfer of the profit generated
from subsidiaries incorporated in Macau from retained profits
to the legal reserve in accordance with article 377 of the
Macao Commercial Code until the legal reserve balance
reaches half of the capital of the relevant subsidiaries. The
legal reserve is not distributable.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
g

30 June 2018

20186 A30H
34. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH 34. FEEARFERBESZNFEE
MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS Ff 8 2 =)
Details of the Group’s subsidiaries that have material non- REEAFEREZNAEERB A
controlling interests are set out below: AHBEIINT
2018 2017
20185 20174
Percentage of equity interest held by BMeaBBRELAKRER
non-controlling interests of UMP ([MeB8BPESE IJ)
Healthcare China and its subsidiaries HIEERESRFAN
(the “UMP Healthcare China Group”) RHEE Dt 20% 20%
2018 2017
20185 20174
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET TETT
Profit/(loss) for the year allocated to DETHABHETEE
non-controlling interests of the UMP R ER O FA
Healthcare China Group @/ (E8) (1,707) 4,070
Accumulated balance of non-controlling  R¥R&E H A EKHEEE
interests of the UMP Healthcare China IR SR 2T 4
Group at the reporting date 63,325 65,032
The following table illustrates the summarised financial TRIPHEBHPREEEMBERE
information of the UMP Healthcare China Group. The amounts Z o PR EE & F i AR BRI A R
disclosed are before any inter-company eliminations: H
2018 2017
20185 20174
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FET
Revenue WA 56,550 15,555
Profit/(loss) for the year FRFE (&) (8,534) 753
Total comprehensive (loss)/income FRAZE (BB MALE
for the year (8,477) 754
Current assets mEBEE 140,041 199,849
Non-current assets FERBEE 28,509 23,631
Current liabilities mEasE (8,679) (56,953)
Non-current liabilities JEMBBE (839) (40)
Net cash flows used in operating activities & )E&FTAEHE @R EFE (43,204) (7,234)
Net cash flows used in investing activities ¥ & /EB)FTHAR &M= F5E (88,372) (2,698)
Net cash flows used in financing activities B Z /EBIFTAR € RE/F5E = (51,190)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents IR ¢ &I5 € EE YR D F5E (131,576) (61,122)
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35. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

In order to develop the Group’s corporate healthcare solution

236

and clinical healthcare businesses and to continually provide

comprehensive and integrated healthcare services for the

benefit of the patients, the Group entered into the following

transactions during the years ended 30 June 2018 and 2017:

(a)

On 17 October 2016, the Group acquired 100% equity
interest in UMP Lujiazui from an independent third party
for a consideration of RMB8.3 million (equivalent to
HK$9.5 million). UMP Lujiazui is primarily engaged in
the provision of medical services in Shanghai, the PRC.

On 23 March 2017, the Group completed the UMP
Healthcare (Beijing) Subscription. Immediately after the
UMP Healthcare (Beijing) Subscription, the Group’s
equity interest in the UMP Healthcare (Beijing) Group
increased from 50% to 70% and the UMP Healthcare
(Beijing) Group became subsidiaries of the Group
thereafter.

On 24 July 2017, the Group acquired the business of
a dental clinic operation (the “Dental Clinic Business”)
from an independent third party for a consideration of
HK$2 million.

On 1 April 2018, the Group acquired 60% equity interest
in a medical laboratory and imaging business (the
“Imaging Business”) from an independent third party for a
consideration of HK$21.0 million.

On 1 June 2018, the Group, through its 60%-owned
subsidiary, acquired a further 45% equity interest
in Longway for a consideration of HK$2.8 million.
Longway was previously a 10%-owned available-for-sale
investment of the Group. Upon the completion of the
acquisition, the Group’s equity interest in Longway
increased from 10% to 55% and it became a subsidiary
of the Group thereafter. Longway is principally engaged
in the provision of medical imaging services in Hong
Kong.
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R)EBNERRAREAEENMER
Al e

(c) FM2017%F7R248 - A& E 2B

BETHORER—RBLE=TTK
BRE-FIMDANER (7F
M2 MER]) -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
g

30 June 2018

2018%6 A30H
35. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (Continued) 35. B A6t ()
Year ended 30 June 2018 HZE201856A30HLFE
The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of REBEOBEH - TRIZMEHRNRH
Dental Clinic Business and the provisional fair values of the MEENBENARBENARBETR
identifiable assets and liabilities of Imaging Business and EBRRENAIBNEERBENET
Longway as at the dates of business combinations were as AnEEMT :
follows:
Fair value/
provisional
fair value
Dental recognised
Clinic Imaging on business
Business Business*  Longway* combinations
eSS
AHMER
HAR
FREHR  BEXA EE /4%
5% £ RE* DQAEE
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
P &E TER TEX TET TET
Property, plant and equipment ME  BER&E 12 284 3,862 1,414 5,560
Trade receivables B 5 RWHIE = = 1,265 1,265
Deposits and other receivables RE & R AR IE - - 171 171
Tax recoverable AU EFiIE - - 50 50
Cash and bank balances ReRRTEH = = 1,207 1,207
Trade payables, other payables and & SEM A - EtbEH
accruals FEREER - - (522) (522)
Due to a related company JE 1~ —FE g A R OB - - (44) (44)
Due to shareholders JET AR R 3K 0E - - (1,000) (1,000)
Deferred tax liabilities BEERERE 28 - - (2171) (211)
Total identifiable net assets at B BEIIR A HA
fair value REERR 284 3,862 2,330 6,476
Non-controlling interests RS - (1,545) (461) (2,006)
284 2,317 1,869 4,470
Goodwill on acquisition WEELHNFE 13 1,716 18,683 881 21,280
Total consideration BH(E 2,000 21,000 2,750 25,750
Satisfied by: TR B BER :
10% equity interest previously BERREMENI0%
held in Longway % 12 = = 500 500
Cash consideration Ref(E 2,000 21,000 2,250 25,250
2,000 21,000 2,750 25,750
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35. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (Continued)

35. ¥ &80t

Yearended 30 June 2018 (Continued)

The goodwill arising from the above acquisitions of Imaging Business
and Longway is determined on a provisional basis as the Group is
in the process of completing a valuation to assess the fair values
of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed. The
provisional fair values recognised on acquisition as shown above
may be adjusted upon the completion of the initial accounting for
the business combinations during the measurement period, which
shall not exceed one year from the acquisition.

The fair values of the trade receivables and other receivables
as at the dates of business combinations amounted to
HK$1,265,000 and HK$3,000,
contractual amounts of trade receivables and other receivables
were HK$1,265,000 and HK$3,000, respectively.

respectively. The gross

The Group incurred transaction costs of HK$61,000 for these
business combinations. These transaction costs have been
expensed and are included in other expenses, net in the

consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Goodwill arose from the acquisitions of the Dental Clinic
Business, the Imaging Business and Longway represented
premium paid for the benefits of expected synergies from
combining operations of the Dental Clinic Business, the
Imaging Business, Longway and the Group to provide
comprehensive and integrated services for the patients. None
of the goodwill recognised is expected to be deductible for tax

purposes.

An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the combinations of
the Dental Clinic Business, the Imaging Business and Longway

is as follows:

BZE2018F6H308 LEE (&)

* ui%%%?%@%ﬁ&ﬁ%%%im
HEDRETELETET BERRAS
@EE%%—Eﬁmvuﬁiﬂﬁﬂm
BB EAERFAEAGBENAAEME-
REBAHNEABZRE - FEFR
RKETMEROE T AL BERT RN
B (MR ERBKEET —F) N T
PR -

B 5 EWGIE R E M ERRIBRES
é\{%EH}%E’JQﬁ{;“Eﬁ 3 5 1,265,000
7T 3,000 7T - B B EIHKIER

HMERRIENENRSED R A
1,265,000,%71&3,000;%75 g

AREERLEERAHEEL HHRA
61,0007 - WERX AL ZEIL AT
AGREEBERNEME Y FE -

WEIMDHER BEZEEHERE
EELNBEEAREEHI MDA
X% BEREEEK RERAKER
BERBGEE R —BICRBNEESK
) 125 50 2K 8 10 28 2 T S AN g B = LA
EREEHERMAENHR A -

BAMZAERYT BEXEEBLRRE
MEHNRERESNAOT :

HK$’000
THET
Cash consideration ReKE (25,250)
Cash and bank balances acquired FTIEIR & RIRITAE &4 1,207
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents SFAREBEHARERENNE S K
included in cash flows used in investing REEBYR L FE
activities (24,043)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

35. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (Continued)

Year ended 30 June 2018 (Continued)
Since the combinations, the contributions to the Group’s

revenue and consolidated profit for the year ended 30 June
2018 were as follows:

B 755 R 2R B B

30 June 2018
2018F 6 A30H

35. ¥ 86t

HZE201856HA308 LLFEE (&)
EHE  HASEEEZ2018F6H30H
HEEHRARGEAFBERDT

Revenue Profit/(loss)

LON @, (ER)

HK$’000 HK$’000

THET THET

Dental Clinic Business FRIZ T ER 1,967 (832)
Imaging Business BEXRED 4,108 972
Longway RiE 614 99
6,689 239

Had the combinations of the Dental Clinic Business, the
Imaging Business and Longway taken place at the beginning
of the year ended 30 June 2018, the revenue of the Group and
the profit of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2018 would
have been HK$608,457,000 and HK$40,890,000, respectively.

20185 3R

WMETEZHMER BEXEREBR
REMAGHFREZE2018F68308 IE
FEFUHET AEBEBHE2018%6
A30B EFEBNWRARFEE S B &
608,457,000/ 7T £240,890,000/% JT °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
51 75 R 2% BT

30 June 2018
2018%F 6 A30H

35. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (Continued) 5. ¥ &6t

Year ended 30 June 2017 HZE201756A30H L FE
The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of UMP REBAFRE - FERBREHAE
Lujiazui and the UMP Healthcare (Beijing) Group as at the BULR) EENAIBENEEREBBHNR
dates of business combinations were as follows: REENT
UMP Fair value
Healthcare recognised
UMP (Beijing) on business
Lujiazui Group  combinations
E¥EBE G
BeB% [k 4]
LiERER (ER)&EE DNREE
Notes HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
B THER TER TER
Property, plant and equipment ¥ % - & K& E 12 235 511 746
Trade receivables 2 5 EMRE 18 - 18
Deposits and other receivables {7 & & I H b B U308 78 210 288
Due from the Group JER AR EERIE 1,403 = 1,403
Due from related companies JE W R = B BB A R
of the Group - 9,600 9,600
Cash and bank balances Be RIRITES 110 129,267 129,377
Trade payables B HRENMN TR = (114) (114)
Other payables and accruals Hb R R EATE A (386) (488) (874)
Due to the Group EAANEE B (572) (46,217) (46,789)
Due to a related company JE 1+ AR 52 1B — i g Bt
of the Group YNSEF O] - (1) (1)
Total identifiable net assets BARBEIIRD
at fair value ] A F A E R 886 92,768 93,654
Non-controlling interest IR ER = (27,830) (27,830)
886 64,938 65,824
Goodwill on acquisition WEEENHE 13 8,602 - 8,602
Gain on bargain purchase REFEBRENEM 5
recognised in other income WA Rz iR
and gains in the consolidated F % B B
statement of profit or loss - (401) (401)
Total consideration BHE 9,488 64,537 74,025
Satisfied by: AT 3 & EELR
Cash iﬁﬁ 9,488 36,306 45,794
50% equity interest in REAER (R &E
the UMP Healthcare #950% s 12
(Beijing) Group - 28,231 28,231
9,488 64,537 74,025
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

35. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (Continued)

Year ended 30 June 2017 (Continued)

The fair values of the trade receivables and other receivables as
at the dates of business combinations amounted to HK$18,000
and HK$83,000, respectively. The gross contractual amounts
of trade receivables and other receivables were HK$18,000
and HK$83,000, respectively.

The Group incurred transaction costs of HK$257,000 for
these business combinations. These transaction costs have
been expensed and are included in other expenses, net in the

consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Goodwill arose in the acquisition of UMP Lujiazui because
the consideration paid for the acquisition effectively included
amounts in relation to the benefits of expected synergies from
combining operations of UMP Lujiazui and the Group. These
benefits are not recognised separately from goodwill because
they do not meet the recognition criteria for identifiable
intangible assets. None of the goodwill recognised is expected
to be deductible for tax purposes.

The gain on bargain purchase of HK$401,000 arising from
the business combination of the UMP Healthcare (Beijing)
Group was primarily attributable to the consideration for the
UMP Healthcare (Beijing) Subscription of RMB32.3 million
(equivalent to HK$36.3 million) being less than the fair value
of equity interest of the UMP Healthcare (Beijing) Group
subscribed.

20185 3R

35.

B 755 R 2R B B

30 June 2018
2018F 6 A30H

KBS0
BZE201756A30B LLEFEE (&)

B RWGRBEMEMEKRIERERE
BFEEN AR EBESD BIA18,0008 T &

83,0008 7T » B 5 FE WA M H b g Uk
FIEMENBRERED R A18,0008 7T K&

83,000/ 7T °

AEERLEEEREAHEERIEA
257,000 WERXHHAE T HI

FFARABERNEMSOFHE
WiE EBRBRAREENE BT AN

BEEMXNREERALFESH LER
%ﬁf%&z&%l%%szﬁzmwsmﬂ
=S BHTETSHEESH
BR - REAABETNFAAMAELEE
MERZE HECHRANBEEHE
Mz A -

MeBB(UtR) SEEKEHEEANZ
B U BB I 25401,0008 TE B R OB S
BB (UtR) RESENREARKE32]
A& (HER36.3BEBIT) BATRE
AR (Ut SERENAREE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B ISR M A

30 June 2018
2018%F 6 A30H

35. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (Continued)
Year ended 30 June 2017 (Continued)
An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the combinations of
UMP Lujiazui and the UMP Healthcare (Beijing) Group is as

follows:

E Yy SRt AE))
BHZE201756A30B LLFEE (&)
FERBREBEER (LR REMNE
BAaHNRERESTUET ¢

HK$’000

FHET

Cash consideration ReRE (45,794)

Cash and bank balances acquired Fri g IR & RIRTTH R 129,377
Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents FARBEHMELRESREAN

included in cash flows from investing activities BeEMREEEMRAFRE 83,583

Since the combinations, the contributions to the Group’s
revenue and consolidated profit for the year ended 30 June

2017 were as follows:

EOHE HAEEEZ=2017F6H30H
HFEEHRARGSEFBEEROT

Revenue Profit/(loss)

A R (R

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHERT FERT

UMP Lujiazui FERBR 7,476 2,613
UMP Healthcare (Beijing) Group BMeBEK(UtR)EE - (2,793)
7,476 (180)

Had the combinations of UMP Lujiazui and the UMP
Healthcare (Beijing) Group taken place at the beginning of the
year ended 30 June 2017, the revenue of the Group and the
profit of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2017 would
have been HK$520,253,000 and HK$61,337,000, respectively.

242 UMP HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED

Wl EBRBREBMEES (R &
MAEHREE2017F6A30H IEF
EEMET AEBEEZE2017F6H
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
g

30 June 2018

20186 A30H
36. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES 36. i EKME AT
On 23 March 2017, the Group disposed of its 100% equity 2017538238 - REBHRIERE
interest in the UMP Management Il Group to HAML and EHARK2D2IFEETRIABEET
assigned the shareholder’s loan to HAML for a consideration of A HBER28,471,000870) © M EBE&E
in the sum of RMB22.3 million and HK$3.4 million (equivalent BEEBHEMSCERERE =B
to HK$28,471,000, in aggregate). 100% %1 R EE KRR E K °
2017
20174
Notes HK$'000
B 5 FET
Net assets disposed of: P& FEE
Property, plant and equipment W - BEREE 12 5,315
Deferred tax assets BIEHTREE 28 10
Inventories FE 109
Trade receivables B 5 rEFRIE 117
Prepayments, deposits and FART IR - R & NE 8 KRR
other receivables 2,091
Due from the Group FE MR S B R 257
Cash and bank balances We MIRTTAEER 1,029
Trade payables B 5’ A (23)
Other payables and accruals H Al e RIE N BB A (3,003)
Due to the Group JE N R &= B 5K IR (590)
Due to a joint venture of the Group ENAEE—FH&ERQRREA (653)
Tax payable FEAT B 1A (18)
Provision 5 29 (163)
4,478
Exchange fluctuation reserve BEE 34, % Eh ki 596
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries 6 BB A B B M e 23,397
28,471
Satisfied by: B -
Cash e 28,471

20184 %R HaBBEEERAA 243



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B ISR M A

30 June 2018
2018%F 6 A30H

36.

37.

244

DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

An analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in
respect of the disposal of the UMP Management Ill Group is as

follows:

6. HEME QA @)

HERCERKERE-SENHES KR
SFEBYMRAFEITOT

HK$’000

FHET

Cash consideration RERE 28,471

Cash and bank balances disposed of Frb &3 & RIRITE R (1,029)
Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents included FFAREBEHAMEAREREN

in cash flows from investing activities RekBeEFEMRANFHE 27,442

DISPOSAL GROUP CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR
SALE

On 21 June 2018, the Group entered into a provisional
sales and purchase agreement with an independent third
party whereby the Group agreed to dispose of its entire
equity interest in Excellent City for a consideration of
HK$65,920,000. Excellent City is a property holding company
in Hong Kong. The transaction is expected to be completed
prior to end of September 2018. Accordingly, the assets and
liabilities of Excellent City as at 30 June 2018 were classified
as a disposal group held for sale.

The major classes of assets and liabilities of Excellent City

37. 2 EARBFEHENHERE

R2018F6A21H  AEBEE—ZBF L
BE=FEN—HEREERR - Bt -
AN & E [\ & 5A65,920,0005% T K K B
i & H R Excellent CltyE’]%ﬁBHx*& g
Excellent City/ — & B % E =K

Al - EHIZIEAR S K M20185F9 4 Xﬁu
FERK o Bt - Excellent City2018%F6
A30BMEERABIEABELEN
HEER -

7201896 A30HExcellent CityD %84

classified as held for sale as at 30 June 2018 were as follows: BEEHENEENBENTEHARN M
T
Note HK$’000
B 5 FAET
Assets BE
Property, plant and equipment W - WERE 12 56,613
Deposits RES® 58
Assets classified as held for sale DEABEBIELHENERE 56,671
Liabilities =0
Accruals EErER (43)
Liabilities directly associated with the HOMARIEHENEEER
assets classified as held for sale EEMNEE (43)
Net assets directly associated with the HHESEEEE@AMNFEE
disposal group 56,628

UMP HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED
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38.

39.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CAPITAL CONTRIBUTION BY

NON-CONTROLLING INTEREST
On 23 March 2017, Dynamic Ally completed the UMP

Healthcare China Subscription for a consideration of RMB110
million (equivalent to HK$123,526,000). Immediately after
the UMP Healthcare China Subscription, the UMP Healthcare
China Group is owned as to 80% by the Group and 20% by
Dynamic Ally. The carrying value of the 20% interest in the net
assets of the UMP Healthcare China Group as at the date of
the UMP Healthcare China Subscription was HK$33,182,000.
Accordingly, the difference of HK$90,344,000 was recognised
in retained profits. The proportionate share of the cumulative
amounts of legal reserve and exchange fluctuation reserve
of the UMP Healthcare China Group recognised in other
comprehensive income is reattributed to the non-controlling

interests.

NOTE TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT

OF CASH FLOWS

Major non-cash transaction

During the current year, the Group entered into tenancy
agreements in respect of certain of its medical centres and
office premises under operating leases. Pursuant to the
terms of respective tenancy agreements entered into by the
Group, the Group is required to restore the leased properties
to the conditions as stipulated in the tenancy agreements.
Accordingly, a provision for reinstatement costs in respect of
the leased properties of the Group amounting to HK$668,000
was recognised and these costs were included as part of the
cost of the property, plant and equipment of the Group and
reflected as additions to leasehold improvements of the Group

during the current year.

20185 3R

38.

39.

B 755 R 2R B B

30 June 2018
2018F 6 A30H

FERERHE

201743 HA23H * Dynamic Ally
KMREAR®1I10BE T (HER
123,526,000/ 7T) 7CBK B & B8 15 1 B
REFH ZEEBABBETERES
HE BEBBETRERBAEER
Dynamic Ally% 5l # B 80% &% 20%7#
wmoRBMABKTHERESEAN B
EBEBPREEEEEFEI20%ES

AR A A33,182,000%8 7T « Bt - R
B1EFHHER Z%590,344,000/8 7T ° &
LE 1l FE A 78 Ho At 2 T WA P BT TSR ESE &
BERPBUE TR RIENL R FEE R

SEOBS - BHBET IR -
HERETRERME
TEFRERS

RAFERN  AEBBELSEHESET
METERERLEHAEYEI LA
EE BEASEMIIVEAEER
FNBRR AREABHEENEBEER
THERZTAEHME - Bt - EHER
REBEHEYWEEIRKAEFE668,000
BT MUEERTEAAERETEED

¥ BEREEXNAN—ZBD - WHA
FERMARNEFHAEMERLENIEL
B e
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5o 75 3 2% B &

30 June 2018
2018%F 6 A30H

40. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

246

The Group leases certain of its office properties and medical
centres under operating lease arrangements. Leases for
properties are negotiated for terms ranging from 1 to 9 years
(2017: 1 to 9 years). Certain leases are terminable with notice
periods of 2 to 3 months (2017: 2 to 3 months) given by the
Group.

At 30 June 2018, the Group had total future minimum lease

payments under non-cancellable operating leases falling due as

40. KREHEHRIE
REEREBKEHERHBERES T
NYERBEHEF L -MEREFHLEE
BN F1EIE (2017F  189F) - &
FHERBHAERLS T223(EA (2017
F283@A) MBAEKLE -

R2018F6 A30H » ANE B R E 1A H
HEEHERNORRFEHEFRIE L

follows: BN TSI BRI -
2018 2017
20185 2017
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET THETT
Within one year —FA 21,859 30,430
In the second to fifth years, inclusive E_ZLE(BEEEMSF) 19,015 13,900
Over fifth years ENHFE 53 -
40,927 44,300

UMP HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
g

30 June 2018

20186 A30H
41. COMMITMENTS 41. &I
In addition to the operating lease commitments detailed B £ SCHfsr40h st 0 48 A B AR
in note 40 above, the Group had the following capital Hh - REIERIR - NEEBE R AEL
commitments at the end of the reporting period: I
2018 2017
20184 20174
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTER FAET
Contracted, but not provided for: AT AEREE -
Leasehold improvements Tﬁﬁ'%%%ﬂ? 181 443
Fixtures and office equipment REMBRERE 61 25
Medical equipment = $ R 1,065 116
Computer equipment and software i 5% 1 R 1,289 59
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 46(a)) uﬁz,ﬂ% Bt 8 2 =) (B EE 46(a)) 22,470 50,985
25,066 51,628
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B ISR M A

30 June 2018
2018%F 6 A30H

42. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(a) In addition to the transactions, arrangements and
balances detailed elsewhere in these financial statements,
the Group had the following material transactions with

2. BB AR
@) B BTE IR & 5 b BT EE R

MR 5 - R RERIN  REA
REBEBHRITETHNERR S

related parties during the year: N
2018 2017
20185 20174
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Lo THET THET
Associates: BENT
Administrative support fee income  {TH X #& B A (i) 744 704
Professional services expense EERKER (ii) 4,631 4,562
Healthcare services income BEREREKA (iii) 138 153
Joint ventures: AEAT:
Administrative support fee income  {TH X8 BUA (i) 64 258
Management fee income EEERRKA (vi) - 518
Professional services expense EERKER (ii) 130 1,538
Related companies”: BE AR
Property rental and related MEBERAEER (iv)
expenses 5,865 5,724
Contract healthcare solution EHBRRERR (v)
services income GES G ON 14,306 11,878
Management fee income EEBRRA (vi) 6,334 2,673
Administrative support fee income  TE X HEAKA (i) 179 25
Professional services expense EERKER (vii) 3,781 850
3 Certain directors and/or beneficial shareholders of the & AQRIETEER /HERRR

Company are also directors and/or beneficial shareholders of
these related companies.

248 UMP HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

42. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
(Continued)

(@)

20185 3R

Notes:

(D

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

The administrative support fee income was related to
administrative support services, such as payroll services,
rendered by the Group and was charged at terms mutually
agreed between the relevant parties.

The professional services expense was related to healthcare
services rendered by associates and joint ventures and was
charged at terms mutually agreed between the relevant parties.

The healthcare services income was related to medical
services rendered by the Group and was charged at terms
mutually agreed between the relevant parties.

The property rental and related expenses were related to
the leasing of certain medical centres or premises for the
Group’s operation and were charged at terms stipulated in the
respective tenancy agreements.

Contract healthcare solution services income was related
to the provision of healthcare services to the employees of
related companies and was charged at terms mutually agreed
between the relevant parties.

The management fee income was related to the administrative
and management services rendered by the Group and
was charged at terms stipulated in the respective service
agreements.

The professional services expense was related to healthcare
services rendered by the related companies and was charged
at terms mutually agreed between the relevant parties.

B 755 R 2R B B

30 June 2018
2018F 6 A30H

42. BB AR S (&)

(%)
CEE

(@)

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

T E AR A RBARE RN
FRBEEE X RSB L
VA ERARRE TS HE B KD TE IR E -

SERBERDBERAREE
RAAAEERRORERS - &
TR BT A8 B 1 T B IR R -

B 5 4R 2 AR S M A LR 5% (B 2 i
BB RIS ER Y AR AR E
BRI E -

MEREREREREEAEET
BT LRAEENKLSMA
B WENEEEERERTRN
R & -

BHBERRREBERTRRITEA
HEE A A EBIRHU AN ER
REERBAAMALRIZERETHE
BRI E -

EEERRAENEEREHROT
BREERBEBLREEBR
T 15 5 P AR E RN & -

BERGEMEBHARREHRY
ERRIERIAER - WRIEART
HEHENERKE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5o 75 3 2% B &

30 June 2018

201856 A30H
42. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 42. BH R R 5 (#)
(b) Other transactions with related parties by HEMBEHELIRS
Professional services fees paid to the executive directors RATEERHBRRERSE
of the Company in relation to the rendering of healthcare FTERARAMTEENEERKE
services to the Group are as follows: HINMT :
2018 2017
20185 2017
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Dr. Sun Man Kin, Michael B BREE 1,283 2,671
Dr. Lee Pak Cheung, Patrick* AR A 1,412 -
2,695 2,671
= Only included professional service fees paid to Dr. Lee Pak E EREFNFEBER2018F2728
Cheung, Patrick after his appointment as director on 28 HEZAREZEMAZINNE
February 2018. ¥RBE -
(c) Compensation of key management personnel of the (c) XEEXTEEEAESWEREH :
Group:
2018 2017
20185 20176
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Short term employee benefits RHEE RN 14,889 10,069
Post-employment benefits BERk 1218 A 80 94
Equity-settled share option expense  JAfEzs 45 & ) BE IR HE R X 1,068 7,151
Total compensation paid to key ENFEERABZHMARE
management personnel 16,037 17,314
Further details of directors’ emoluments are included in ERESHM & —THFBEHR
note 7 to the financial statements. B mKRMIEE7 -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
g

30 June 2018
2018F 6 A30H

43. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

43. TRITESHE
RIBEHKR - SESRTAMNETED

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial

instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows: I
2018 20184
Financial assets THEE
Financial
assets at
fair value
through Available-
profit or Held-to- for-sale
loss — held maturity Loans and financial
for trading  investments  receivables assets Total
BRAREE
STAREMN
tREE— BEE EXR AHnE
BIFEE IHRE [ 3 tREE CE
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
TR TET TR TET TR
Held-to-maturity investments  #74 Z 3| H#% & - 69,497 - = 69,497
Available-for-sale investments 7] it 1 &£ 1% & - = = 9,848 9,848
Trade receivables B HRWE - = 78,800 = 78,800
Financial assets included in 3t ATENFUIE  REE R
prepayments, deposits and  E ft FEUF AR
other receivables SREE - - 15,773 = 15,773
Financial assets at fair value A EBEABZE
through profit or loss MemEE 2,427 = = - 2,427
Due from associates JEUHEE RN EIRIR - - 5,640 = 5,640
Due from related companies  FEUK B3R A 8] 5008 - - 2,735 - 2,735
Due from a joint venture Bl —HaERRIFE - - 415 - 415
Pledged deposits BRAER - - 1,352 - 1,352
Cash and cash equivalents B2 KRS EEY - - 293,970 - 293,970
2,427 69,497 398,685 9,848 480,457
20184 %R HaBBEEERAA 251
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B ISR M A

30 June 2018
2018%F 6 A30H

43. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

(Continued)
2018 (Continued)
Financial liabilities

43. TR T ESE &)

20184 (&)

EEAE

Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
REH
BAGTEN
TRAE
HK$’000
THET
Trade payables EE ) INES 39,152
Financial liabilities included in other payables, FFAEMEMNRIE BRrEAR
accruals and deferred income BEWARSRIBE 24,767
Due to associates JE 1~ Bk & X B 5RIE 207
Due to related companies J& < B Bt X B 5RIE 452
64,578
2017 20175
Financial assets TREE
Financial
assets at
fair value
through Available-
profit or Held-to- for-sale
loss — held maturity Loans and financial
for trading  investments  receivables assets Total
BAREE
FTABEH
EREE— BEE ERR AftHE
HIFEE IRE W R tREE At
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TR TAT TR TR THT
Held-to-maturity investments  #74 Z 2| ##% 4 = 61,022 = = 61,022
Available-for-sale investments ] {it &5 & - = = 9,425 9,425
Trade receivables B WA = = 56,791 = 56,791
Financial assets included in s ATENFIE  REE R
prepayments, deposits and  E i W FHIAR
other receivables TREE - - 12,990 - 12,990
Financial assets at fair value A A EEF ABR
through profit or loss MEREE 2,356 - - - 2,356
Due from associates FE Ui & A RIFRIR - = 6,193 = 6,193
Due from related companies & B 5 A 8508 - = 5284 = 5,284
Pledged deposits BERER - - 821 - 821
Cash and cash equivalents HEeRIREZEY - = 434,073 = 434,073
2,356 61,022 516,152 9,425 588,955
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
g

30 June 2018
2018F 6 A30H

43. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 43. e T A2 ¥ @)

(Continued)
2017(Continued) 20174 ()
Financial liabilities cREE
Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
biog &
BN g =x:|
TRHAE
HK$’000
FAT
Trade payables B 5 RN IR 53,747
Financial liabilities included in other payables, FFAEMEMNRIE  BFrEAR
accruals and deferred income BERANSREE 24,745
Due to associates FE B & 2 B RIR 213
Due to related companies J& <t B Bk & B 53R 423
79,128

44. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY 4. TRTENAREBERAARE

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BEE®R
The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’s financial rEENEREE(REAEEQAREE
instruments, other than those with carrying amounts that are SERAENEREERIN HREER
reasonably approximate to fair values, are as follows: NABERAT :
Carrying amounts Fair values
IREE DAREE
2018 2017 2018 2017
20185 20174 20185 20174

HK$’000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000
TERT TAT TR TAET

Financial assets SREE
Held-to-maturity investments #7852 iR &
Listed debt investments, at LEHEBERE -
amortised cost TR B $8 AR A 69,497 61,022 68,516 62,447
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30 June 2018
2018%F 6 A30H

44. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY

254

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and
cash equivalents, pledged deposits, trade receivables, trade
payables, financial assets included in prepayments, deposits
and other receivables, financial liabilities included in other
payables, accruals and deferred income, balances with
associates, related companies and a joint venture approximate
to their carrying amounts largely due to the short term
maturities/no fixed terms of repayment of these instruments or
the effect of discounting is not material.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are
included at the amount at which the instrument could be
exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties,
other than in a forced or liquidation sale.

The fair values of listed equity and debt investments are based
on quoted market prices.

UMP HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED

44.

EMIBENAREERAAE
BEHK @

EREEHE R kBR2FEY-
BRER  BHRKFE  EHEMR
B FTABEMER  RESREMBERK
KBRS BEE  FFAEMENK
B CRFAEBAMETRAANSEA
& BEERR BABMARR—HEE
RAMBEHRN AR EERREKEENR
FoOXZRAMETARERERNIIE,
VEEEEEDNRIRAURFZELITE
* o

T

TREELABNAABERERRS
77 (M3EaEsBRIFEE) REAR ST
R TENSBARK -

EHBEEREBRENAABERERA
MM REET

2018 ANNUAL REPORT



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
g

30 June 2018
2018F 6 A30H

44. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY 4. THITENAREBERAAE

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) BEER @

Fair value hierarchy DREBEESR

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement TR AEESRT AN ABER
hierarchy of the Group’s financial instruments: EFL&:

Assets measured at fair value: RAABHEFENEE:

As at 30 June 2018 R2018%F6A30H

Fair value measurement using

DABENERANER
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total

ERTE  EATERE EATUBE
HE DN ¢ BARE

(B—E) (B=RE) (5=18) &t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TER TER TER TER
Available-for-sale investments: 7] ff £ &% & :
Debt investments BEBRE - 5,702 = 5,702
Equity investments at fair value &2 # EEFTA
through profit or loss BRORERE 2,427 - - 2,427
2,427 5,702 - 8,129

20184 BEBBEEARAR 255



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5o 75 3 2% B &

30 June 2018

2018%F6A30H

44. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY 4. THITENAREBERAARE
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) BE &K@
Fair value hierarchy(Continued) PMREESFR(E)
As at 30 June 2017 R2017F6A30H

Fair value measurement using

AnEEFERANEE
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total

mEmE  EAUBEE EATUEER
RIE GABE BABRE

(F—FE) (E=FB) (B=E) Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FTiET FTiET FTiER TAET
Available-for-sale investments:  AJfff H & & & :
Debt investments BEEEE = 5,915 = 5,915
Equity investments at fair value &2 R BEET A
through profit or loss BRAORERE 2,356 = - 2,356
2,356 5,915 - 8,271
During the year, there were no transfers of fair value RER SRMEEF EEE_EQAR
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers BEAECHTEEYE  FZEHTE
into or out of Level 3 for financial assets (2017: Nil). A B (20174 : ) ©
The Group did not have any financial liabilities measured at 72018F6 H308 » A& B I & £ 7] A
fair value as at 30 June 2018 (2017: Nil). ARBEFENSHMARE (2017F : &) -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise cash
and cash equivalents and short term deposits. The main
purpose of these financial instruments is to finance the Group’s
operations. The Group has various other financial assets and
liabilities such as trade receivables and trade payables, which
arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments
are credit risk and liquidity risk. The board of directors reviews
and agrees policies for managing each of these risks and they
are summarised below.

Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
third parties. It is the Group’s policy that all customers who
wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification
procedures. In addition, receivable balances are monitored on
an ongoing basis and the Group’s exposure to bad debts is not
significant.

With respect to listed equity and debt investments, the Group
purchases and holds only through various creditworthy
financial institutions.

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets, which
comprise cash and cash equivalents, pledged deposits,
trade receivables, financial assets included in prepayments,
deposits and other receivables, financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss, unlisted available-for-sale investments,
and amounts due from associates, related companies and a
joint venture, arises from default of the counterparty, with a
maximum exposure equal to the carrying amounts of these
instruments. Concentrations of credit risk are managed by
customer/counterparty.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had certain
concentrations of credit risk as 13% (2017: 20%) and 33%
(2017: 54%) of the Group’s trade receivables were due
from the Group’s largest debtor and the five largest debtors,
respectively.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure to
credit risk arising from trade receivables are disclosed in note
20 to the financial statements.

20185 3R

R M

30 June 2018
2018F 6 A30H

5. MBRARBEEEBRRBE

AEENIZESRIABERE RS
SEMARERER - ZFERT AN
TEAMRRAAKEMNEERKTES -
AEBEZRERHEZEELNEM
TREENRAGE MEZRUFARE
5 & 3R

rEBeMIAELANTIERARARESR
R MR#tRR EE5SRFARE
EEREZERROBERLBAINT

EERR
AEBERERUREEAIENE=S
ETRG - WRAKEOEEK - FTA#R
BERGIETRINEP BARBE
ERERRFRE  TAMEE - WIN AK
EenaEmRYGRRERNER - 2
FrES R ERRARYE TEX -

AEEEEREERFNMBEHERE
kEBHEmEEREHRE

rEBEBeREE (BERRAS RS
FEY ERER BZERKFR &
AFANFRIA ~ R8N H M YR IR R
TREE BRAoABEMABRSNESE
BE -FLmAfhERE  BUREE
RARABARNFRIE) NEERRE
RHHFHEROMESE  KeEBRESE
RZETANKEE EFERRETE
DREF/HFHTER -

RIERR  AEEFREETEEET
Ek - AAEBNE SHREKHIES @ o
AAE13% (20174 : 20%) 33% (2017
F:54%) BEBAEERRNEREAR
ARBEHARKIE °

AEEELRE HREFENEERR

Wi O E 3 — S S L BUR I B R S RE
Bf7E20 ©
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45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (Continued)
Liquidity risk

The Group monitors and maintains a sufficient level of cash

and cash equivalents deemed adequate by the management

to finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the effects of

fluctuation in cash flows. Management reviews and monitors

the Group’s working capital requirements regularly.

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at

45.

BEEREERBRREE®
7B B

AEEEEREFEEERARANS
SRALEEY UEALEENLE

REECUEHRRESRE

KERRE -

AIEIEHE%?E&@_T REENLEER

RBEHR - AEERE

HIRBEZR SR

the end of the reporting period, based on the contractual ETHeREBEINHBEREINNAT
undiscounted payments, is as follows:
2018
20184
No fixed
terms of
repayment/ Less than
on demand 3 months Total
BEZE
HEHR
REREE DR3ME A CEil
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET FHERT
Trade payables B 5 e 5IE 516 38,636 39,152
Financial liabilities included in ST A E b AT FRIE -
other payables, accruals and FE=T & R KR IE WA
deferred income MEREE 24,767 = 24,767
Due to associates XN R/NETE L] 207 - 207
Due to related companies e REEE A B 2k 1E 452 - 452
25,942 38,636 64,578
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45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 45. BiIREBREEEEREE @)

AND POLICIES (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued) B AR ()
2017
20174
No fixed
terms of
repayment/ Less than
on demand 3 months Total
BEHER
RERER  PRIEA A&h
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET
Trade payables 5 ENFIE 375 53,372 53,747
Financial liabilities included in AT A E fth JE S 5RIB
other payables, accruals and FEET B B MEEW A
deferred income MEE AR = 24,745 24,745
Due to associates X NG /TAIE 213 - 213
Due to related companies FETREESE N B I8 423 _ 423
1,011 78,117 79,128
Capital management EAREE

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are
to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern
and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its
business and maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions
and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. To
maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to
shareholders or issue new shares. The Group is not subject to
any externally imposed capital requirements. No changes were
made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing
capital during the years ended 30 June 2018 and 30 June
2017.

The capital of the Group represents equity attributable to
owners of the Company.

20185 3R

AEEEAEENEEARRAREAE
BFELENR DL HFREZNHE R
Ko AXHEEBERBRRAERKE
3o

AEBREBEEREZCRABEED
FREHRERERAERLEALREE - B
Rk A& ARG % REES AR
TPRENRRS -« REEAR TR K
THRAD o AL B WA Z A [ S0 EBiE AN
B ERZERBR o REE20185F6H30
H&2017F6A30B IEFE  EAER
B2 RSB R £ &

AEBNERNSARREE AEIERE

N
S o
Im
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30 June 2018
2018%F 6 A30H

46. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

The Group had the following significant events occurred after

260

the end of the reporting period:

(a)

On 24 July 2018, the Group has completed an
acquisition of 70% equity interest in a group of
companies which is engaged in the provision of medical
physiotherapy service in Hong Kong from an independent
third party for a consideration of HK$28.5 million, out of
which a deposit of HK$6 million was paid by the Group
during the year. The remaining balance of consideration
was fully settled on 23 July 2018.

On 27 July 2018, the Company entered into a legally
binding memorandum of understanding with Zheng He
pursuant to which the Company agreed to issue the
unlisted warrants conferring Zheng He (or any company
or trust under the control of Mr. Law Siu Wah. Eddie
nominated by Zheng He) to subscribe for 110,411,000
ordinary shares of the Company (representing (i)
approximately 14.61% of the total issued Shares as
at 27 July 2018; (ii) approximately 12.75% of the
Company’s issued share capital as enlarged by the issue
of the warrant shares), at the exercise price of HK$2.06
per warrant share. The issue of warrants is subject to
the entry of a formal agreement and fulfilment of the
condition(s) therein, among others, the obtaining of
the approval of Shareholders of the Company at an
extraordinary general meeting. Further details are set
out in the announcements of the Company dated 27 July
2018 and 30 August 2018.

UMP HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED

46. HEHREIH
REEMERE - AEEFETHEX
FE

(a)

R2018F7 A248 » KEEZKA
—EBUE=FWE-—BAQAE
(EEARERHBEYIRLE
fRT5) B970%A% # - KB AR28.58
BB AREERFRAZNER
CEBELHRES -REHKEE
R2018%F7 A23 B 284 -

R2018%7 278 » A F HEA
RIS — 1D BABERHR IHREEE
S8 Bt - AREIREBEBITIEL
MaRRER - B T8 (A
REXBEERETHNHEAR
RIS {5 7E) M FREE110,411,000
IR B E AR (FHE R1)72018
F7R27AMEHITRHBELD
14.61% « R(INEEITRAKRER
RDIERHARAREBEITRAL
12.75%) " TR ERTRABKE
FRR1D2.068 7T - RIREFBRFR
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g

30 June 2018

47. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF

THE COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position of the

2018F 6 A30H
47. A QBB MR R R

BREARHRERARERBHBRRAKNE

Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows: BT
2018 2017
20185 20175
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FEMEBEE
Investments in subsidiaries REBEARNKE - =
Held-to-maturity investments BEZIRE 58,570 46,017
Available-for-sale investments AHHERE 5,702 5,915
Deposit paid for acquisition of subsidiaries W BE I B R 7l X [ HRFE & 6,000 -
Total non-current assets IERBEERE 70,272 51,932
CURRENT ASSETS mENEE
Prepayments and other receivables T8 5 SRR Ko H b FE W KR 1,003 915
Held-to-maturity investments REZIEKRE 10,927 15,005
Due from subsidiaries JE YR BT B8 A R) 5K 78 289,346 187,948
Tax recoverable A] W B % 18 783 =
Cash and cash equivalents RekReEEY 122,112 132,645
Total current assets mENEEER 424,171 336,513
CURRENT LIABILITIES mENE A
Accruals and other payable FET & A K H b & {4 58 921 1,044
Due to subsidiaries FEAT BT B A A ZRIB 87,761 4,045
Tax payable JE A~ 58 18 — 734
Total current liabilities mEAEARE 88,682 5,823
NET CURRENT ASSETS mEBEEFE 335,489 330,690
Net assets BEFR 405,761 382,622
EQUITY S
Issued capital BEITRA 753 737
Reserves (note) EACACIED) 405,008 381,885
Total equity B 405,761 382,622
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47. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 47. AR R M BERR T @)
THE COMPANY (Continued)

A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows: ARafEBEBRENT -
Shares Available for-
held under sale
Share the share  Share-based investment
premium award payment  revaluation Retained
account scheme reserve reserve profits Total
RO %R

FEET URHBER THUERE
ROEEE RHENEN WERHEE  ERRE  BEAE &
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THER THR FhR THR THR THR
(note 32) (note 33)
(Ws2)  (W&E33)

At 1 July 2016 201657518 353,229 - 7,546 - 15,391 376,166
Profit for the year ERFE - - - - 19,589 19,589
Other comprehensive income for the year: FREMZAMA :
Changes in fair value of A ERE
available-for-sale investments AHERED = = = 418 = 418
Total comprehensive income for the year A2 AMALE = = = 418 19,589 20,007
Final 2016 dividend 20165 RHRE = = S S (14,676) (14,676)
Interim 2017 dividend 2017FRERE - - - - (3,658) (3,658)
Issue of shares upon exercise TRBRERETRG
of share options 2,331 = (508) = = 1,823
Purchases of shares for the ARnREHEARERR
share award scheme = (5,843) = = = (5,843)
Equity-settled share option arrangements Wi B BB RIEL H - - 8,066 - = 8,066
At30 June 2017 and at 1 July 2017 2017864308 kR
2017%7A1H 355,560 (5,643) 15,104 418 16,646 381,885
Profit for the year FRFE - = = = 27,553 27,553
Other comprehensive income for the year: EREMZAMA :
Changes in fair value of A HERE
available-for-sale investments NhEEE - = = (213) - (213)
Total comprehensive income for the year A2 AMALETE = = = (213) 27,553 27,340
Final 2017 dividend 0175 RHRE = = = = (16,463) (16,463)
Interim 2018 dividend 2018FHERE - - - - (4,116) (4,116)
Issue of shares upon exercise T ERERZTRA
of share options 24,901 = (5,401) = = 19,500
Purchases of shares for the RROEBEEERR
share award scheme = (4,909) = = = (4,909)
Equity-settled share option arrangements iz B MR gL 5 - - 1,771 - - 1,771
At 30 June 2018 #2018E6 308 380,461 (10,752) 11,474 205 23,620 405,008

48. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 48. #t A B &4k R &

The financial statements were approved and authorised for BMEHRKRN2018F9A27BEE =G
issue by the board of directors on 27 September 2018. R AT -
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A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and non-
controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial years, as
extracted from the published audited financial statements, is set out

below.

CONSOLIDATED RESULTS

FINANCIAL SUMMARY
M BR

e N

BENIFERES
MBHR)FINWT -

fm

AEERBERRVPRFENREREE
BE (RRa 0 A hRER

Year ended 30 June
HZ6A30BLEE
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
20184 20174 2016%F 20155 20144
HK$’000  HK$'000  HK$000 HK$'000  HK$'000
FTHER FHT FHT FHET FHT
Revenue WA 585,630 514,023 456,020 401,037 353,025
Profit before tax B A5 A1 A1 48,505 57,094 14,254 47,780 49,199
Income tax expense P T 5 X (11,003) (8,850) (7,372) (6,920) (6,653)
Profit for the year FRFHE 37,502 48,244 6,882 40,860 42,546
Attributable to: LA &5 AL
Owners of the Company ZAN/NSIEZ ZS DN 37,555 44,085 6,676 41,392 41,537
Non-controlling interests ~ JE#Z % 25 (53) 4,159 206 (532) 1,009
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
EERAEE
As at 30 June
R68308
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
20185 20174 2016%F 20154 20144
HK$’000  HK$'000  HK$000 HK$'000  HK$'000
THER FHET FHET T T FHET
Total assets BEE 732,788 698,439 509,638 249,645 231,591
Total liabilities mEE 101,691 102,825 99,040 183,454 82,038
631,097 595,614 410,598 66,191 149,553
Equity attributable to: A& H LR :
Owners of the Company RRARIEER A 567,136 532,619 412,103 67,711 148,536
Non-controlling interests ~ JE# A% fE 25 63,961 62,995 (1,505) (1,520) 1,017
631,097 595,614 410,598 66,191 149,553
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GLOSSARY
A5

“2018 AGM”
[2018F BB FKE |

“Affiliated Clinic(s)”
[ B B8 52 Frr |

“Affiliated Doctor”,
“Affiliated Dentist”,
“Affiliated Auxiliary
Services Providers”

(B EmeEE] [BETE
[ B J28 5 B AR 75 1R 2

“Articles” or “Articles of
Association”

[ N A RNCIE RN

“Audit Committee”
[BxZEEg]

“Auxiliary Services”

[ %5 Bh BR 75 |

“Auxiliary Services Provider”

[ By IR TR &
“BBS”
[ERFEE]

“Board”

=3

the annual general meeting of the Company to be held on Thursday, 15 November
2018
ARAFR2018F11A158 (2HMM) BITHNRRBFAE

clinic(s) which is/are not operated by the Group but which has entered or will
enter into an agreement directly with the Group to offer Medical Services, Dental
Services and/or Auxiliary Services to the Plan Members
VIHAAEELLEECKRBEERAARAKER L IHA AR KB REERER
% ARRG RSB RS2

doctor(s)/dentist(s)/Auxiliary Services Provider(s) who has/have entered or will
enter into an agreement directly with the Group to provide services to Plan
Members and who, in accordance with the terms of such agreement, has/have
received or will receive an amount from the Group based on the volume of Plan
Members treated

ERF KB EERANKERZIHAAREKERERT ARBEHZ R EX
BeEELMtsREHERNASERIRENEE TR WM RERKE

the amended and restated articles of association of the Company currently in force
B ATEME AR B REET RESI QBRI

the audit committee of the Board

ExgeB IEn%8e

includes imaging and laboratory services, physiotherapy, traditional Chinese
medicine, vision care and optometry and child health assessment
BRESZEIMCRRE MELRE S8 RMHEERBIUMZERFEER
#HE

auxiliary services provider(s) who is/are or will be engaged directly by the Group
as a consultant to provide Auxiliary Services in the UMP Medical Centres in
accordance with the terms of a consultancy agreement with the Group, and the
Affiliated Auxiliary Services Providers

ERANEERBEAKRERE SR IARIREARSKEZRAT /R 7 10 R B
BEBPLOAREBDRENBRGIRHRE  UNBBEHRGIRHTE

Bronze Bauhinia Star
WA EE

the board of Directors

E

264 UMP HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED 2018 ANNUAL REPORT



“Chairman”

[(E7)]

“Chief Executive Officer”
(1T AR

“Code of Conduct for
Securities Transactions
by Employees”

[BEEETESFRXHH
B sr 2R

“Company”

AYNCIN

“Contract Customers”

“Corporate Governance Code”
[ &85 Al

“CR Phoenix”

[ EREEE]

“CR Phoenix Healthcare Group”

[EEREEREE ]

“CTFE”

[AR@EEE]

“Dental” or “Dental Services”

[ZF %) 3 o8 B iR %5

20184

GLOSSARY
A5

the chairman of the Board

EEEXR

the chief executive officer of the Company

RRBITHRARE

the Code of Conduct for Securities Transactions by Employees adopted by the
Company

ARBMERMANEEETESRZ OB TER

UMP Healthcare Holdings Limited, a company incorporated under the laws of the
Cayman Islands with limited liability on 5 November 2014
BMEBBEEERAR - R2014F11 ASERBRAEHESEAFTMERINER LA

collectively, insurance companies and corporations which have entered or
will enter into corporate plans with the Group for healthcare benefits for Plan
Members
BRI
B At T

R ENENBRRBEMNEANRETLERFAENRRABRER

the Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules

EWRRM ST A B EE AT

China Resources Phoenix Healthcare Holdings Company Limited (formerly known
as Phoenix Healthcare Group Co. Ltd.), a company incorporated in the Cayman
Islands with limited liability and listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
(Stock code: 1515)

ZEHEEBRERARAR (ABEEBREERBRAR) -
YRR ER EWHAR AR (BRI - 1515)

CR Phoenix and its subsidiaries

EHEREBREMEMBEARA

Chow Tai Fook Enterprises Limited, a company incorporated under the laws of
Hong Kong with limited liability
FARBEXBRAF  REFEEFEMRINBRRE

include primary dental services such as scaling and polishing and secondary

dental services such as crown and bridge, orthodontics, implants and whitening
BREEARTRRS (T RW) ARFE B RIRS (M ERIFRE ORI
B EERITEXA)
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GLOSSARY
AR
“Dentists”

[ oF &

“Directors”

=3

“Disposal”

[HEER]

“Doctors”
[ 4 |

“Existing Continuing
Connected Transaction

Agreements”

[REFEMER S HHE

dentist who is or will be engaged directly by the Group as a consultant to provide
Dental Services in the UMP Medical Centres in accordance with the terms of a
consultancy agreement with the Group, and the Affiliated Dentists
ERFHEERERNEBRZ B RER AR B E BT A0 B R 17 3 10 R R Bk
BEBHORRESMRETE - AN BT &

directors of the Company

ZA/NETE-5

the disposal of (i) UMP Medical Centre Management Limited, a company
incorporated in Hong Kong and the sole shareholder of three clinics in Bejing
located in Fortune Plaza, Wangjing Soho and Shuyi, pursuant to the sale and
purchase agreement dated 15 December 2016 and entered into between HAML
as purchaser and UMP Healthcare China as vendor, among others; and (ii) UMP
Medical Centre Management (lll) Limited, a company incorporated in Hong Kong
and the sole shareholder of a clinic in Shanghai located in Xintiandi, pursuant
to the sale and purchase agreement dated 15 December 2016 and entered into
between HAML as purchaser and UMP Healthcare (Beijing) as vendor, among
others. Please refer to the announcements of the Company dated 15 December
2016 and 23 March 2017 and the circular of the Company dated 8 February 2017
for further details. The Disposal was completed on 23 March 2017;

OWRE (EPER) BEEETE (FRED) MBABBTE ((FREN) AATLA
HR2016F 12 A1 ANEERBREM L EH S BHF OEREARAR (REBEMMK
YHRFE YARMRIERFEH L - ERSohoMIEERM =M@ e —ER) : &
(VRE(EPERRBR)BFEEEE (FRED) MEABHK (L) UERET) FIRI L
AMB2016F12AAMNEEHAMLERS BT LER (RZ)BRAF (R
BEEMAZH AT WARLR DGR — A2 —RR) - £—TF15
FLHARRBAHR/2016F12H158 R2017F3A23BMAEARARRBHA
20172 A8 M - HEFHEN2017F3 A23B %MK

doctor who is or will be engaged directly by the Group as a consultant to provide
Medical Services in the UMP Medical Centres in accordance with the terms of a
consultancy agreement with the Group and the Affiliated Doctors
ERIBEERERNEERE SRR AR AR B 2R 7] A B 172 1 IR R B
BEHBPLOAREBERENEL  URBBEL

the Existing Property Leasing Framework Agreement, Existing Consultancy
Agreement with Dr. Lee Pak Cheung, Patrick, an executive Director, and Existing
Medical Services Framework Agreement;

REMXHEEERGE HATESFTHFBLENRAEMEGENRE BRERS
TE2R 7%
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GLOSSARY

ok
AR 52
“Existing Consultancy the consultancy agreement dated 13 November 2015 entered into between the
Agreement with Company and Dr. Lee Pak Cheung, Patrick, an executive Director;
Dr. Patrick Lee”
(EFRFEBENRABEREGR] AARENTETTHEBEM LA R2015F11 A13B8 AR5
“Existing Medical Services the medical services framework agreement dated 13 November 2015 entered into
Framework Agreement” between the Company and CTFE;
[RABERBERmZ] ARREBFRBLEEMTZBHAR2015F11A13RNERRBIERDZ
“Existing Property Leasing the property leasing framework agreement dated 13 November 2015 entered into
Framework Agreement” between the Company and Rich Point Investment Holdings Limited, a company

incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability;
[(REMEREERGH ARAEEEREERERAR (—HRBEEMAINERAR) AIIZEHA
2015F 1T ASAMB X HEEREZ -

“FY2017” the financial year ended 30 June 2017

20178 B4F /| BZE2017F6A308 LA BFE

“FY2018” the financial year ended 30 June 2018

(2018 R/ | BLE2018F6 A30R LM FE

“general practitioner” Doctors trained in general practice and best suited to act as first point of contact

for patients, having the required knowledge to refer patients to the appropriate
specialists or services required

2R 8EL] ZXEMIRNEL  REC/BRERHEAZEH  AEAFARERTEENR
EEEAEN ARG
“Global Offering” or “IPO” the offer of the shares of the Company to the public in Hong Kong and outside

the United States of America in offshore transactions in reliance on Regulation
S, the details of which are set out in the section headed “Structure of the Global
Offering” of the Prospectus

[(2RBEIHERAFEE] ARRRABBRIRALRKE SROAEXBRINBEERZHEERD - FHEEAN
BRERIEREENRE] —HF

“Group”, “we”, “UMP” or the Company and its subsidiaries
“UMP Heathcare Group”
[REE] -~ [#F] - ZAN/NECTD S )= R/NC]

[MABEB s HaEEEE]

“HAML” Healthcare Assets Management Limited, a company incorporated in Hong Kong
with limited liability, which is owned as to 30% by Healthcare Ventures, 30% by
NWS Subsidiary and 40% by a subsidiary of New World Development Company
Limited (stock code: 17)

(BEEEERE] BREEAEEEARAF  REBEAMALNBRAF 55l H Healthcare
Ventures ~ S EIZM B AR LU RBERBR A (ROAKRK  17) W —HHBL
AHEA30% ~ 30% K 40%HE

20184} BEBKEEER AR 267
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“Healthcare Ventures”
[Healthcare Ventures ]

//HK$//
(A7)

“Hong Kong”
[ &

“Hong Kong & Macau Clinical
Healthcare Services”

[ &8 KR ER R
BEERIERS ]

“Hong Kong & Macau
Corporate Healthcare
Solution Services”

(&8 MRFIE EBERE
BRI RIRTE

//JP//
[ K4t

“Listing Date”
[T B8

“Listing Rules”

[ EmARA

“Macau”

[RF]

“Medical” or “Medical Services”

(B8R k[ B &R

“Model Code”

268
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Healthcare Ventures Holdings Limited, a company incorporated under the laws of
British Virgin Islands with limited liability, which is a substantial shareholder of
the Company and a wholly-owned subsidiary of CTFE

Healthcare Ventures Holdings Limited R EBE X B E Z B S AP L HBER A
A RARBNEERRLAABEENZENB AR

Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency of Hong Kong
BAEAEERET

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC
PEEBFRITHR

provision of clinical healthcare services to Self-paid Patients in Hong Kong and

Macau

REBMRPIR B B BEREEKBRERERS

provision of corporate healthcare solutions services in Hong Kong and Macau

RERMRPFHR R RBERBEIRT ZRHB

Justice of the Peace

KL

27 November 2015
201511 A27H

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange

Bt R FrRE s AR A

the Macau Special Administrative Region of the PRC
BRI BITTER R

include general practice and specialist practice
EEENMBELRENER

the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out
in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules
EFHRAME TS ETETAESTETESFRHNIEESTR
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//NWS//

Eiis-lf=d

“NWS Subsidiary”

[ % 832 B A A

//Pinyu//

[an 4]

”

“Plan Members

mn

[FHEIXE]

”

“Post-IPO Share Option
Scheme”

[BRAFESRBERERTS

//PRC//

[ E )

“PRC Health Check-up
Business”

[Fh B 8w 575 )

“Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme”

[BRARRERBRE S

“Prospectus”

[BRER]

“Remuneration Committee”

(FEZES

20184
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NWS Holdings Limited, a company incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability
and listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 659)
MAEEBEARAR  EAREZMRINBRAA - REXAERLED (BRHK
5% 659)

Dynamic Ally Limited, a company incorporated in Hong Kong with limited
liability which is an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of NWS

Dynamic Ally Limited - REBFMEA A ER QA - BMEIENHEEL2ENER
3

Pinyu Limited, a company incorporated under the laws of the British Virgin Islands
with limited liability, which is a substantial shareholder of the Company and an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of CR Phoenix

MW BRAR RERBRABEEVZIMAZINERRGE  REARREZTERRE
T REBREEERNEZEE2ENB ARG

members of the Group’s corporate healthcare benefits plans, who typically
include group medical insurance policyholders and employees of corporations
and/or their dependants
AEBRRBERREBAGTEKE
EBERHERE

—REESEBRERRRERAALBEDN

the post-IPO share option scheme approved and adopted by the Company on 2
November 2015
ARBR 2015 F 11 A 2 B#t/ERRRH ERRMAEERBRIESS

People’s Republic of China (excluding, for the purpose of this report, Hong Kong,
Macau and Taiwan)

g ARANE HABEME  FREES RFEARAE

provision of check-up services for (i) PRC residents traveling abroad for study or

for work and (ii) for corporate employees

AOFBINEEHTENPEERR)EEEE RHEBRRE

the pre-IPO share option scheme approved and adopted by the Board on 18
August 2015
EE2M 2015 8 A 18 A#t/ERRMH ER DG EABRE S

the prospectus of the Company dated 17 November 2015
ARRBEHA 2015 F 11 A 17 HNBRKRER

the remuneration committee of the Board

ExeBE THFMEES

i
B
e
e
@
B
=
S
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“RMB”
[AR®]

“Rich Point Group”
[EESE]

//SBS//
[REFES]

“Self-paid Patients”

(BERE]

“Shanghai Eaton Consulting

[ EERRREENA]

“Shanghai He Dun”
[ EEE%

“Share Award Scheme”

[ A% o 2@t 81 )
“Share(s)”
[R5 |

“Shareholder(s)”
[ A% 2R |

“Snow Lake Group”

SHEE ]

270
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Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC

BB A R

Rich Point and its associates

2ENMERZE QT

Silver Bauhinia Star
REFEE

patients who visit a UMP Medical Centre operated by the Group and pays for
services using cash or credit card

IAKREEENBABRTLUIRALERREKXERRINRBEERANES

LEBRREREARBEERAF
PRC and is an indirect subsidiary of the Company
tERRREEARBERAR  RABEKINEREERF  RARAHHEE
B 8 A Al

, a limited liability company established in the

FEABEERIEERZAHF , a company established in the PRC
FEAHBEMBRARLDR - RABIKIZHRA A

the share award scheme approved and adopted by the Board on 30 June 2016
EE2M20165F6A30 8 #E /4 RRM M) 2B 53

ordinary share(s) with a nominal value of HK$0.001 each in the share capital of
the Company
AR FIRAFRFREE 0.001E TR & B

holder(s) of Share(s)
BHEOEFE A

based on the publicly available information so far, Snow Lake China Master Long
Fund, Ltd., Snow Lake China Master Fund, Ltd., Snow Lake China Offshore Fund,
Ltd. (which holds 80.93% of Snow Lake China Master Fund, Ltd.), Snow Lake
Capital Limited (as investment manager of Snow Lake China Master Long Fund,
Ltd. and Snow Lake China Master Fund, Ltd.) and Snow Lake Capital (HK) Limited
(as investment manager of Snow Lake China Master Long Fund, Ltd. and Snow
Lake China Master Fund, Ltd.)

ERBAIAFA RIS E R Snow Lake China Master Long Fund, Ltd. * Snow Lake
China Master Fund, Ltd. * Snow Lake China Offshore Fund, Ltd. (7% Snow Lake
China Master Fund, Ltd. # 80.93%) * Snow Lake Capital Limited (#E/&Snow Lake
China Master Long Fund, Ltd. }& Snow Lake China Master Fund, Ltd. )% & & %
AN) REHER (FHE) ER 2 E (R Snow Lake China Master Long Fund, Ltd. &
Snow Lake China Master Fund, Ltd. )R & & & A )
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“specialist practice” or

“specialist services”

[EREZE] S ERRS]

“Stock Exchange”

(B 22 P

“UMP Healthcare (Beijing)”

(A E% ()]

“UMP Healthcare (Beijing)
Group”
Bt 8% (ER) K H]

“UMP Healthcare China”

(BEBEHHE]

“UMP Lujiazui”

[ EA&RERR]

“UMP Management”

20184
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the range of specialist practice offered by UMP, including Cardiology,
Dermatology, Endocrinology, Diabetes and Metabolism, Family Medicine,
Gastroenterology and Hepatology, General Surgery, Internal Medicine,
Nephrology, Neurology, Neurosurgery, Obstetrics and Gynaecology,
Ophthalmology, Orthopaedics and Traumatology, Otorhinolaryngology (ENT),
Paediatrics, Paediatrics Surgery, Radiology, Respiratory Medicine, Rheumatology
and Urology, an updated list of which is available on www.ump.com.hk
BeBBREN -RINENEBER  2FELOEMN  KER AW - BERRE KR
BRXEBE B NMTREE - T@EIE - AR BREE - HER  HEHNE R
ER R BREAIGHE  BEEWWRE - B NIV SR IR R
[E )R Bt B PR - A8 B ETE B www.ump.com.hk - 7] & B

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
EEBMARZMERAA

UMP Phoenix Healthcare Limited (to be renamed as “UMP Healthcare (Beijing)
Group Limited”, subject to the Registrar of Corporate Affairs of the British Virgin
Islands approving the change of company name), a company incorporated under
the laws of the British Virgin Islands with limited liability and owned by UMP
Healthcare China and Pinyu as to 70% and 30%, respectively

UMP Phoenix Healthcare Limited (# 5 % %[ UMP Healthcare (Beijing) Group
Limited Bt B (L) REER QA EAFRBREAHE AR EHKEMER
RILEERAREZWETAMEE)  REXBEZHSAFEMKINERAF
75 Bl B B & B8 5 R B K o 48 R 5 70% B3 0%

UMP Healthcare (Beijing) and its subsidiaries
BABEs (e REWE AR

UMP Healthcare China Limited, a company incorporated under the laws of
the Cayman Islands with limited liability and a 80%-owned subsidiary of the
Company

UMP Healthcare China Limited * RIER SHSEOIZMAZHOERLE » REAR
)9 B 80%& 21 O P /8 2 7

EBHRBIRMIZIBAR A F], a company established in the PRC
FERBRMAZHERLDE - RPBEKIZHRA A

UMP Medical Centre Management Limited, a company incorporated under the
laws of Hong Kong with limited liability and a wholly-owned subsidiary of HAML
BEBBHTLERARAR  REFBAVEMAINERLAF  REREEE
ENzEKEAR

HaBBEEERAA 271
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“UMP Management IIl”

[BeBERERE=

“UMP Medical Centre(s)”
[ & BB I5 AR O

“UMP Network”

[UMP#8 4% |

“UMP Pudong”
i3
//US$//

=

“Zheng He”

[ &5 70 ]

272 UMP HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED

UMP Medical Centre Management (lll) Limited, a company incorporated under the
laws of Hong Kong with limited liability and a wholly-owned subsidiary of HAML
HEBHEPLER(F)ARAA REFBAEIMRINERAGF  AER
BEEENZENB AR

medical centre(s) offering Medical Services, Dental Services and/or Auxiliary
Services which is/are operated by the Group

RUERRY  TEREE SIWHHRENEBF L AREELE

consists of (i) UMP Medical Centres which are operated by the Group and (ii)
Affiliated Clinics which are clinics not operated by the Group but each of which
has entered into an agreement with the Group to offer Medical Services, Dental
Services and/or Auxiliary Services to Plan Members
BREOVAEELENBABEBTONINBBL M (LIFMAEELENDH - ES
BEEAKEIT I BEAMEKERHEBRRYE - TERS R REHHRE)

EBHEPI2 A R Q al(formerly known as LB REBRPIZIBER AR, a
company established in the PRC and is an indirect subsidiary of the Company
LEBEMZHERAR (A1 LERBRAMZHERAR) - RPBEKIZIHRFE -
RERNTNEERE AR

US dollar, the lawful currency of the United States of America

XBEEEERET

Zheng He Health and Medical Resources Limited, a Private Company Limited by
Shares incorporated in the British Virgin Islands

Zheng He Health and Medical Resources Limited * — & 74 28 /& 5% 22 B% & s AR 32
A AR BIR A A
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